Public Document Pack

Development Control B
Committee
Agenda
Date: Wednesday, 13 October 2021
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: The Council Chamber - City Hall, College
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Ani Stafford-Townsend (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Lesley Alexander,
Fabian Breckels, Andrew Brown, Amirah Cole, Tony Dyer, Zoe Goodman and Guy Poultney
Copies to: Zoe Willcox (Director: Development of Place), Gary Collins, Laurence Fallon, Matthew
Cockburn, Jeremy Livitt, Rachael Dando, David Fowler (Members' Office Manager (Conservative)),
Stephen Fulham, Paul Shanks, Stephen Peacock (Executive Director for Growth and Regeneration)

Issued by: Jeremy Livitt, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Monday, 4 October 2021

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 7)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of the previous meeting held on Wednesday 1st
September 2021

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

Appeals

To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision.

6.

(Pages 17 - 25)

Enforcement

To note enforcement notices.

7.

(Pages 8 - 16)

Public Forum
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in public forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet
at the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply
in relation to this meeting:
Questions:
Written questions must be received three clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received
at the latest by 5pm on Thursday 7th October 2021.

(Page 26)

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

Petitions and statements:
Petitions and statements must be received by noon on the working day prior
to the meeting. For this meeting, this means that your submission must be
received at the latest by 12 Noon on Tuesday 12th October 021.
The statement should be addressed to the Service Director, Legal Services, c/o
The Democratic Services Team, City Hall, 3rd Floor Deanery Wing, College
Green, P O Box 3176, Bristol, BS3 9FS or email democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Members of the public who wish to present their public forum statement,
question or petition at the zoom meeting must register their interest by giving
at least two clear working days’ notice prior to the meeting by 2pm on
Monday 11th October 2021.
PLEASE NOTE THAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEW STANDING ORDERS
AGREED BY BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL, YOU MUST SUBMIT EITHER A
STATEMENT, PETITION OR QUESTION TO ACCOMPANY YOUR REGISTER TO
SPEAK.
In accordance with previous practice adopted for people wishing to speak at
Development Control Committees, please note that you may only be allowed
1 minute subject to the number of requests received for the meeting.

8.

Planning and Development

To consider the following applications for Development Control Committee B -

9.

(Page 27)

a)

Planning Application Number 20/00542/P - Land At Home
Gardens

(Pages 28 - 99)

b)

Planning Application Number 21/00816/F - Land At Broad
Plain House Lads Club, Broadbury Road

(Pages 100 - 163)

c)

Planning Application Number 21/03337/F - 46 Ridingleaze

(Pages 164 - 181)

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting is scheduled to be held at 2pm on Wednesday 24th November
2021.

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
Changes to how we hold public meetings
Following changes to government rules, public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory
meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall.
COVID-19 Precautions at City Hall (from July 2021)
When attending a meeting at City Hall, COVID-19 precautions will be taken, and where possible we
will:
 Have clear signage inviting you to check in to the venue using the NHS COVID-19 app or record
your contact details for track and trace purposes.
 Provide public access that enables social distancing of one metre to be maintained
 Promote and encourage wearing of face coverings when walking to and from the meeting
 Promote good hand hygiene: washing and disinfecting hands frequently
 Maintain an enhanced cleaning regime and continue with good ventilation
COVID-19 Safety Measures for Attendance at Council Meetings (from July 2021)
To manage the risk of catching or passing on COVID-19, it is strongly recommended that any person
age 16 or over attending a council meeting should follow the above guidance but also include the
following:





Show certification of a negative NHS COVID-19 lateral flow (rapid) test result: taken in the 48
hours prior to attending. This can be demonstrated via a text message or email from NHS Test
and Trace.
An NHS COVID-19 Pass which confirms double COVID-19 vaccination received at least 2 weeks
prior to attending the event via the NHS App. A vaccination card is not sufficient.
Proof of COVID-19 status through demonstrating natural immunity (a positive NHS PCR test in
the last 180 days) via their NHS COVID-19 pass on the NHS App.
Visitors from outside the UK will need to provide proof of a negative lateral flow (rapid) test
taken 48 hours prior to attendance, demonstrated via a text message or email.

Reception staff may ask to see this on the day of the meeting.
No one should attend a Bristol City Council event or venue if they:
 are required to self-isolate from another country
 are suffering from symptoms of COVID-19
 have tested positive for COVID-19 and are requested to self–isolate

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

Members of the press and public who wish to attend City Hall are advised that you may be asked to
watch the meeting on a screen in another room due to the maximum occupancy of the venue.
Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published
on the Council’s website before the meeting. Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.
The following requirements apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, it may be that only the first sheet will be copied and made available
at the meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine
articles that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee and published within
the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public via publication on
the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of Information Act
requests in the future.
We will try to remove personal and identifiable information. However, because of time constraints we
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Other committee papers may be placed on the
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.

Page 5

www.bristol.gov.uk

During the meeting:









Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.
Under our security arrangements, please note that members of the public (and bags) may be
searched. This may apply in the interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all
attending.
As part of the drive to reduce single-use plastics in council-owned buildings, please bring your own
water bottle in order to fill up from the water dispenser.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items). If you ask a question or make a representation, then
you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to
be filmed you need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take
photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting (Oral commentary is
not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore
be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control.
The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-ourwebsite/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Page 6

Development Control Committee Debate and Decision Process
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Stage 1:
Public Forum
Statements

OFFICER PRESENTATION

MEMBER QUESTIONS AND DEBATE
Stage 3:
Member Questions and
Clarifications of the
Proposal.
Officer Responses

Stage 2:
Officer Report &
Recommendation

Stage 4:
Member Debate

MAKING THE DECISION

Page 7

Stage 5:
CHAIR will either move a MOTION in accordance with the
Recommendation (to test if this is what Committee want to
do) or seek another Member of the Committee to do this.
If SECONDED1 go to stages 6 to 8.

Stage 6:
Any
AMENDMENT
Moved &
Seconded2

Stage 7:
VOTE on
successful
AMENDMENT
(if required)

Stage 8:
VOTE on
MOTION
(either original
Motion or as
amended)

IF CARRIED = DECISION
IF LOST = NO DECISION &
go back to Stage 5

If MOTION to APPROVE is not seconded or carried the CHAIR
will move a MOTION to DEFER a decision (allowing more time
for Members to propose grounds for refusal if needed) and
request that Officers bring back a report to the next meeting
of the Committee with detailed advice on these grounds,
supporting Members to make a final decision.
If the Chair’s MOTION is not seconded or not carried
the Chair will seek an alternative MOTION
from the Committee

1

A Motion must be Seconded in order to be formally
accepted. If a Motion is not Seconded, the debate
continues

2

An Amendment can occur on any formally approved Motion (ie. one that has been Seconded)
prior to Voting. An Amendment must itself be Seconded to be valid and cannot have the effect
of negating the original Motion. If Vote carried at Stage7, then this becomes the Motion which
is voted on at Stage 8

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 4

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Development Control B Committee
1 September 2021 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:Councillors: Ani Stafford-Townsend (Chair), Lesley Alexander, Fabian Breckels, Andrew Brown,
Amirah Cole, Tony Dyer and Katja Hornchen (substitute for Zoe Goodman)
Officers in Attendance:Gary Collins, Jeremy Livitt, and Patrick Goodey
1 Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all parties to the meeting and explained the arrangements in the event of an
emergency evacuation of the Council Chamber.
2 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Chris Windows, Guy Poultney and Zoe Goodman (Katja
Hornchen substituting).
3 Declarations of Interest
Councillor Andrew Brown indicated that he had received representations concerning the application
relating to Romney House (Planning Application Number 20/05744/M).
4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on Wednesday 21st July 2021
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 21st July 2021 be approved as a correct record and
signed by the Chair subject to confirmation that Councillor Katja Hornchen was the substitute for Don
Alexander not Zoe Goodman.

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

5 Appeals
Item 13 – 1 Milsom Street. It was noted that the date of this appeal hearing was still awaited from the
Planning Inspectorate
6 Enforcement
The Committee noted this report.
7 Public Forum
Members of the Committee received Public Forum Statements in advance of the meeting. The statements
were heard before the application they related to and were taken fully into consideration by the
Committee prior to reaching a decision.
The Chair allowed one verbal statement from a speaker in relation to Planning Application Number
20/00542/P – Land At Home Gardens.
8 Planning and Development
The Committee considered the following Planning Applications.
8a Planning Application Number 20/05477/M- Romney House
Officers introduced this report and made the following comments:







As indicated in the Amendment Sheet, South Gloucestershire Council had raised no objection to
this application
It was acknowledged that there would be an impact on neighbouring properties. Redrow Homes
had initiated a discussion to screen the development from Stoke Park. Slides would be used
throughout the site and would be governed by a condition. Officers were confident that a
confident level of screening could be provided for the new housing
The appendix by the case officer had assessed the impact on the amenity of neighbouring
properties
An aerial photo was shown indicating the site. It was noted that a bus route
would go to the new housing
Officers believed that the principle to move forward to residential development on the site had
been established and that the development was on balance acceptable overall

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

In response to members’ questions, officers made the following comments:











The evolution of the design of the scheme had resulted in the proposed housing being taller than
expected. Officers’ view was that lowering the heights would not have an impact on amenity and
would not significantly affect overshadowing, as indicated in the report. The supplementary
planning documents had not affected officer’s view on this
Some of the mound left following the development would be redistributed. Once construction
started on site, the level will be significantly different
Some of the old red brick properties would be an estimated 18.7 metres at the shortest distances.
However, this was considered acceptable in the wider urban context and maximising the use of
scarce urban land
Whilst the Committee could not redesign the scheme, they could require confirmation of the
finished floor levels of the dwellings built compared to the existing ground levels
The City Design Team had assessed that the quality of urban design was suitable and therefore
complied with Policy BCS21
There would be a complimentary planting scheme of an additional 97 trees on site. The trees lost
were shown in red hatching. Some of these would be lost due to drainage issues
It would not be reasonable to include a condition which set a specific amount of material that
would need to be removed from the site
The way that properties were assigned was outside the planning regime but officers understood
that developers would be discussing this with the Housing Association
30% of affordable housing was controlled by the Local Planning Authority. The remaining
proposed 25% affordable housing was subject to discussions between Vistry and Gordon Homes
which was the Council’s own housing body

Councillors made the following comments:





There were concerns from residents about these proposals. If they were approved, mitigation
would need to be considered
The development was for housing under reserved matters, included exit and entry points, was
in an urban setting and was a brownfield site. The proposal for 55% affordable housing was
very good. Therefore, this application should be supported.
Whilst the concerns about the 2-storey height of the proposed housing were noted, this
development should be supported
The commitment for affordable housing was good. Consideration should be given to including
a condition to require or a commitment to require lower buildings where possible

It was moved by Councillor Fabian Breckels, seconded by Ani Stafford-Townsend and upon being
put to the vote, it was
RESOLVED (7 for, 0 against, 0 abstentions):

Page 10

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

that the reserved matters application be approved
that the outstanding Section 106 agreement is amended to be attached to the outline
planning permission 18/00703/P to include provision of £150,000 towards relevant
transport mitigation measures
that delegated authority be given to officers to finalise the planning conditions to be
attached to the decision notice
that a planning condition is included requiring confirmation of the finished floor
levels of the dwellings built compared to the existing ground levels particularly where
the groundlevels at the site appear to have been raised above their previous level.
Details pursuant to the discharge of the planning condition shall be reported back to
members before the condition is discharged

8b Planning Application Number 21/02372/H - 1 Milsom Street
It was noted that Councillor Katja Hornchen had not been in attendance for the formal Site Visit for this
item and therefore would not be able to participate in the debate or vote on this issue.
Officers introduced this report and made the following points:













The Committee had visited the site today and had looked at the properties at Numbers 1 and 2
Milsom Street
Officers had extensively engaged with the applicant both before and after the application to see
what development could be possible
Application 21/02373/H had been withdrawn on Thursday 26th August 2021
The proposal for Application 21/02372/H would result in an increase in the height of the fire
escape and relied on the proposal for a 2-storey projection that the applicant considered did
not require planning permission
The previous prior approval did not permit an extension to the existing dwelling and was not
completed as required by the end of May 2019. Therefore, there was no extant planning
permission on the site and officers believed that prior approval no longer exists. As a result, full
Planning Permission was required
There was an outstanding appeal against an enforcement notice on the property when the
Inspector would consider the lawfulness of the extension
A previous application had been refused on appeal on three grounds: the extension,
unsatisfactory living conditions that would result and the effect of the extension in terms of the
privacy of the neighbours
Details of the application and the site were shown
Details of the extensive site history of the application, as also provided at the previous Committee
meeting, were outlined
The Committee was shown details of the works which had been withdrawn (shown red) and those
which had lapsed and required prior approval (green)

Page 11

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk







An 8.6 metre extension was required with a fire escape which would be between 2.5 and 2.9
metres above ground level
It was noted that objections had been received from 2 and 13 Milsom Street, with 2 Councillor
comments (1 neutral, 1 supporting)
It was considered that the works would be unacceptable in terms of scale and massing and that
there would be a loss of amenity and the development would be overbearing
Officers believed that the proposal was contrary to Policies BCS21, DM26, DM27 and DM30 and
sowere recommending refusal
The proposed development would be within 10 meters of Stapleton Road which should ideally be
21 within an urban area
In response to members’ questions, officers made the following points:





Since the last meeting, the case officer had contacted the applicant by e-mail and the Service
Manager, Development Management, had a 30 minute conversation with him. In addition, there
had been a zoom meeting with the applicant before the last meeting. The e-mail had set out
exactly what would and would not be permissible for any application
Whilst there was no evidence to confirm whether or not the applicant’s claim that the previous
approval was for a 2-metre development, this was outside the scope of this application.

Councillors made the following comments:










It was clear from the site visit that the applicant cared greatly about his mother and her health
and wanted to do everything to help her. However, it was also clear that the proposal would
have a negative impact on 2 Milsom Street and that it was reasonable for anyone living atthat
property to object to it. It was unfortunate that there had been a breakdown of trust between
the parties. External mediation might help with this situation
The applicants representative was urged to get planning agents involved to advise on how a
development couldbe put forward which was likely to get approval and which would meet the
needs of the grandmother. If the proposal was just for the ground floor, it was much more likely
to be acceptable particularly since the current resident is wheelchair bound. The proposal could
not be supported in its current form
This proposal would not work. Professional advice was required to quickly resolve the situation
It was disappointing that it had not been possible to obtain an agreement on this
The situation had taken a step backwards since the last Committee meeting. The proposal for one
Planning Application did not make sense. An alternative solution was required which would be
acceptable
There was a strong indication from the meeting that a different proposal for a 1 storey
development might be acceptable to the Committee

The Committee agreed that, following the decision, they would meet with the applicant to discuss
what future arrangements they might wish to pursue.

Page 12

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

It was moved by Councillor Ani Stafford-Townsend, seconded by Councillor Tony Dyer and upon being
put to the vote, it was
RESOLVED (5 for, 0 against, 1 abstention) – that application number 21/02372/H is refused on the
basis of an unacceptable and unsympathetic design and on the basis of unacceptable residential
amenity impacts.
8c Planning Application Number 20/00542/P- Land At Home Gardens
Officers introduced this report and made the following points as part of their presentation:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•

•

•
•

•

Details of the site were provided. It was noted that it was accessed via Redland Hill and was located
within the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area
The proposed development would include 60 dwellings including 12 affordable dwellings arranged
over 2 blocks which were both 5 storeys in height at their tallest point
Vehicular access would continue to be via Redland Hill with pedestrian access also from there and
steps off Westbury Road
Following three rounds of consultation, the scale and massing of the blocks had been reduced
The majority of responses so far received were objecting to the proposal
The original referral by Councillor Carla Denyer had been withdrawn subject to the applicant
agreeing to the provision of the pedestrian path amongst other matters
The development was considered acceptable and was a brownfield site
City Design welcomed the revised plans and the harm to the conservation area is considered to be
less than substantial harm
A number of concerns had been raised by St Vincent residents concerning light, noise and transport.
However, the impact was considered acceptable. Conditions would be provided concerning the Asda
Petrol Filling Station
Officers were recommending approval subject to a Section 106 agreement In response to members’
questions, officers made the following comments:
The majority of the site was owned by the applicant. Whilst there remained an issue concerning
access, this was a land ownership issue which would need to be resolved between two private
landowners but this was not a Planning matter.
Officers could confirm that the applicant had served notice on Pegasus Life and another party and
that therefore the application was valid. Whilst it was clear that access to the site by the developer
would require access to the land, this was not a material consideration for this application
Private property rights run alongside the application as long as the notice is served. Full legal control
over the land would be required to pursue the development through property law and to enable the
development to be built
Access to the site was confirmed as being from Redland Hill and pedestrian access was by steps from
Westbury Hill
The three rounds of consultation had been in February 2020, December 2020 and May 2021. A site
notice had also been erected and adverts in a newspaper as part of the consultation. Statutory
notices had been issued to individual residents
The concerns about construction management were acknowledged by officers. However, it was
difficult to attach a condition relating to this to any approval of the development. Members’

Page 13

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

attention was drawn to Condition Number 7 which would exercise as much control as possible
across the site during the development
Councillors made the following comments:
•

If this application was approved, it could cause significant friction between the parties concerned.
The developer needed to consider access through the adopted road
The developer needed to work with existing residents on this issue

•

It was moved by Councillor Ani Stafford-Townsend that the application be approved in accordance with the
officer recommendations. This was not seconded.
Councillor Fabian Breckels moved, seconded by Councillor Amirah Cole and upon being put to the vote, it
was
RESOLVED – (6 for, 0 against, 0 abstentions) that the application is deferred and that the Committee is
minded to refuse this application on the grounds of the unsuitable proposed vehicular access through an
existing car park. There was a need for appropriate consultation, access for other parties and the need
for the applicant to provide their own vehicular access to the site.
8d Planning Application Number 20/02903/P- Land At Access 18, Avonmouth
Officers introduced this report and made the following points during their presentation:





The largest site on the register was 8 hectares
There were a number of transport mitigation measures in place for this scheme
Three ecological areas had been applied for and the applicants would be setting aide nature
habitats
The key issues included the significant contributions which would form part of the scheme, 126
trees being planted and public amenity

Page 14

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk









The key elements of the scheme were the two wetland areas and the flood defences for them.
These would ensure that there was no outflanking of flood defences to protect existing properties
The site had been identified by the Enterprise Area including two thirds provided by WECA
The Environment Agency, Civil Protection Unit and Internal Drainage Board were statutory
consultees and had assessed the scheme as suitable.
The development had a 60 year lifetime until 2081. Assessments had shown that a more severe
flooding scenario than currently envisaged would be needed up until 2098 which was very unlikely
given the number of flood gates. If this did occur, it was estimated that there would be some very
shallow flooding over some parts of the site
An Evacuation Plan was in place and would be easy to implement with the flood defences in place
Cabinet approval had been given to proceed with the scheme and a full Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment had been made
In response to members’ questions, officers made the following points:









Flood defences were scheduled to be built by 2025
Reserved matters approval which would set out the detail of each plot of the development would
be obtained over time
The extent of the transport package needed to be agreed at this stage although the reserved
matters application might include detailed travel plans for each plot
The site had been given a change of designation through the Local Plan for industrial uses
The green areas outlined showed the Avonmouth and Kings Weston levels. The key policy in
respect of this was the biodiversity offsetting. Officers believed that this scheme complied with
this
It would not be reasonable to condition the remainder of the site concerning the progress of flood
defences since these areas were outside the applicant’s control. Whilst there was nothing
currently in place, there was a clear commitment to deliver flood defences by 2025
There had been some initial confusion as to how to treat the scheme in planning terms since the
Strategic Flood risk Assessment had originally assumed that defences were not in place. It was also
noted that an easy evacuation strategy was in place
Some Councillors still expressed concern about building on a floodplain as part of a climate
emergency and should be opposed.
Councillor Andrew Brown moved, seconded by Councillor Fabian Breckels and upon being put to
the vote, it was
RESOLVED – (4 for, 2 against, 0 abstention) that the application is approved subject to a
Planning Agreement and subject to delegated authority to agree wording of conditions.

Page 15

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

9 Date of Next Meeting
It was noted that the next meeting was scheduled to be held at 6pm on Wednesday 13th October 2021.

The meeting ended at 5.20 pm
CHAIR

Page 16

Agenda Item 5

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
13th October 2021
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS
Householder appeal
Item

Ward

Address, description and appeal type

Text0:
1
St George
Troopers Hill

42 Nicholas Lane Bristol BS5 8TL
A single storey extension is proposed to the rear of the
property with a roof terrace accessed from the rear bedroom.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
2
Hillfields

95 Gorse Hill Bristol BS16 4PL
Replacement of an existing garage with annexe for ancillary
accommodation.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
3
Stoke Bishop

Text0:
4
Brislington West

Text0:
5
Windmill Hill

Text0:
6
St George
Troopers Hill

04 October 2021

22 Old Sneed Avenue Bristol BS9 1SE
Alterations and extensions to the property on the north (rear),
west and south (road) elevations to provide additional
residential accommodation.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
40 Runswick Road Bristol BS4 3HY
Single storey rear extension and loft conversion.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
10 New Walls Bristol BS4 3TA
Erect a porch to the front elevation.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
77 Dundridge Lane Bristol BS5 8SN
Erection of garden fence over one metre in height, adjoining
a highway.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 17

Date lodged

12/10/2020

10/05/2021

18/05/2021

14/06/2021

03/08/2021

03/08/2021

Page 1 of 9

Text0:
7
Bedminster

Text0:
8
Horfield

5 Prospect Terrace Bristol BS3 3BQ
Replacement of existing roof with a mansard style roof, to
provide a new bedroom and bathroom at second floor.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
1 Court Close Bristol BS7 0XH
Erection of 2m tall solid panel timber fence and gate along a
portion of property boundary.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

11/08/2021

21/09/2021

Informal hearing
Item

Ward

Text0:
9
Lawrence Hill

Address, description and appeal type
1 Milsom Street Bristol BS5 0SS
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of rear extension
without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Date of hearing

18/01/2022

Public inquiry
Item

Ward

Text0:
10
Lawrence Hill

Address, description and appeal type
Land And Buildings On The South Side Of Silverthorne Lane
Bristol BS2 0QD
Phased development of the following: site wide remediation,
including demolition; (Plot 1) outline planning permission with
all matters reserved aside from access for up to 23,543m2
GIA of floor space to include offices (B1a), research and
development (B1b), non-residential institution (D1) and up to
350m2 GIA floor space for cafe (A3); (Plots 2 and 3) erection
of buildings (full details) to provide 371 dwelling houses (C3),
offices (B1a), restaurants and cafes (A3); (Plot 4),
redevelopment of 'Erecting Sheds 1A and 1B' (full details) to
provide offices (B1a); (Plot 5) erection of buildings and
redevelopment of 'The Boiler Shop' (full details) to provide a
1,600 pupil secondary school (D1); (Plot 6) erection of
buildings (full details) to provide 693 student bed spaces (Sui
generis); infrastructure, including a new canal side walkway
and associated works.

Date of inquiry

11/05/2021

Committee

04 October 2021

Page 18

Page 2 of 9

Text0:
11
Lawrence Hill

Land And Buildings On The South Side Of Silverthorne Lane
Bristol BS2 0QD
Redevelopment of the site for: (Plot 1) Removal of the Shed
4 western gable wall; (Plot 2) Removal of Shed 4 (excluding
wall to canal), insertion of opening into boundary wall and
lowering/removal of material; (Plot 3) Removal of Shed 3,
removal of Sheds 2a-c; (Plot 4) Insertion of pedestrian
access opening into the northern boundary wall of shed 1b,
alterations to the South wall of Shed 1b/north wall of Shed 2b,
Restoration/rebuild of Shed 1a; (Plot 5) Reduction in height of
the walls attached to the North Gateway, removal of western
Hammer Forge Wall, reduction of Northern Hammer Forge
Wall, demolition and rebuild of Eastern Hammer Forge wall.
Works to the Boiler Shop, including new openings in the
Western gable end, replacement of asbestos cement roof,
removal of post-war cladding and glazing between piers,
internal works including new floor level; (Plots 2-5) Potential
stabilisation to the early 19th century Feeder Canal rubble
stone wall.

11/05/2021

Committee
Text0:
12
Bedminster

Police Dog & Horse Training Centre Clanage Road Bristol
BS3 2JY
Proposed change of use from training centre (Use Class D1)
to touring caravan site (Use Class D2), consisting of 62
pitches and associated buildings and works.

20/07/2021

Committee
Text0:
13
Lawrence Hill

10 Feeder Road Bristol BS2 0SB
Demolition of existing buildings and development of 4
buildings - a 5 storey building comprising flexible commercial
floorspace (Use B1 and B8) and a part 7, part 8 and part 14
storey building interlinked to provide a communal area at
ground floor level and student bedspaces (sui generis) at the
upper levels, incubator space (B1 use class) at ground floor
level, shared social and study spaces, roof terrace and
associated car parking (for the commercial use), cycle
parking.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

11/01/2022

Written representation
Item

Ward

Text0:
14
Henbury & Brentry

04 October 2021

Address, description and appeal type
The Lodge Carriage Drive Bristol BS10 6TE
Sycamore Tree T3 - Crown reduce canopy by a maximum of
30%. TPO 1148
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 19

Date lodged

07/09/2020

Page 3 of 9

Text0:
15
Clifton

Text0:
16
Eastville

Text0:
17
Lockleaze

Text0:
18
Filwood

31 West Mall Bristol BS8 4BG
Application for a Certificate of Existing Use/Development use of upper floors as self contained maisonette.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
15 Bridge Street Eastville Bristol BS5 6LN
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of a two storey
rear extension with door access onto the roof from first floor
level to rear without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

39 Stothard Road Bristol BS7 9XL
x2 two storey 2 bedroom, 3 person semi-detached dwellings
to front of site and x2 single storey 2 bedroom, 3 person
dwellings to rear of site as well as access and x6 car parking
spaces, bin and cycle storage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
10 Melvin Square Bristol BS4 1LZ
Part demolition of existing building and erection of 6no.
apartments (use class C3) with secure cycle parking and
refuse/recycling store.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
19
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

Beaumont Court Avonmouth Road Bristol BS11 9FL
Creation of additional apartments at third-floor.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
20
Clifton Down

Garden Flat 15 Aberdeen Road Bristol BS6 6HT
Proposed single storey rear extension and garden
landscaping.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
21
Clifton Down

Text0:
22
Knowle

04 October 2021

Garden Flat 15 Aberdeen Road Bristol BS6 6HT
Proposed single storey rear extension, garden landscaping
and minor structural works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
48 Tavistock Road Bristol BS4 1DN
Proposed two bedroom dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 20

02/11/2020

01/12/2020

10/05/2021

21/05/2021

26/05/2021

08/06/2021

08/06/2021

14/06/2021

Page 4 of 9

Text0:
23
Hotwells &
Harbourside

63 Park Street City Centre Bristol BS1 5NU
Retention of storage container, at the rear of the building.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
24
Hotwells &
Harbourside

63 Park Street City Centre Bristol BS1 5NU
Enforcement notice appeal for the installation of shipping
container.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
25
Ashley

58 Banner Road Bristol BS6 5LZ
Enforcement notice for the use of basement (formation) of
separate flat without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
26
Lockleaze

Telecommunication Mast Opposite 60 Lockleaze Road
Bristol BS7 9RU
Proposed telecommunications installation: Proposed 15m
Phase 8 Monopole C/W wraparound Cabinet at base and
associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
27
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

21 New Fosseway Road Bristol BS14 9LW
Two storey side and single storey rear extension.
Appeal against non-determination
Delegated decision

Text0:
28
Southville

Telecomunications Mast Corner Of Victoria Grove And
Princess Street Bedminster Bristol BS3 4AG
Proposed 15m Phase 8 Monopole C/W, wrapround Cabinet
at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
29
Lockleaze

04 October 2021

195 Wordsworth Road Bristol BS7 0EF
Change of use from dwelling house (C3a) to a small house in
multiple occupation (C4).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 21

15/06/2021

15/06/2021

23/06/2021

22/07/2021

22/07/2021

22/07/2021

22/07/2021

Page 5 of 9

Text0:
30
Lawrence Hill

Telecoms Equipment Easton Way At Junction With Stapleton
Road Easton Bristol BS5 0QA
Application to determine if prior approval is required for a
proposed: Development by or on behalf of an electronic
communications code operator -Proposed 15m Phase 8
Monopole C/W wraparound Cabinet at base and associated
ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
31
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

Grange Court Grange Court Road Bristol BS9 4DW
Application to determine if prior approval is required for
proposed two storey upward extension to comprise 14 new
dwellings on detached block of flats.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Text0:
32
Ashley

123 Chesterfield Road Bristol BS6 5DU
Construction of a detached single storey 1 bedroom dwelling
within site curtilage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
33
Hartcliffe &
Withywood

26 Murford Avenue Bristol BS13 9JY
2 no. 2-bedroom dwellings.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
34
Bedminster

Land Adjacent To 52 Brighton Crescent Bristol BS3 3PR
Erection of a detached single dwelling and associated works
(Re-submission of application 20/00855/F).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
35
Lockleaze

Text0:
36
Hillfields

04 October 2021

Ikea Ltd Eastgate Road Bristol BS5 6XX
New and replacement elevational signage, including new
internally illuminated IKEA wordmark NE elevation,
replacement externally illuminated IKEA wordmark signs,
unlit block advertisement banner and car park/pedestrian
entrance signage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
269 Lodge Causeway Bristol BS16 3RA
Prior notification for conversion of rear part of retail (Use
Class A1) to 1no. one bed dwelling (Use Class C3) under
Schedule 2, Part 3, Class M of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development)(England) Order
2015 (as amended).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 22

22/07/2021

22/07/2021

13/08/2021

13/08/2021

17/08/2021

23/08/2021

26/08/2021

Page 6 of 9

Text0:
37
Stoke Bishop

Text0:
38
Frome Vale

Text0:
39
St George Central

Text0:
40
Southmead

Text0:
41
Lawrence Hill

17 Haytor Park Bristol BS9 2LR
Demolition of existing dwelling and replacement with one and
half storey, 4 bedroom dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
234 Frenchay Park Road Bristol BS16 1LD
Attached side extension to form a 2-bedroom, self-contained
house with associated access and parking.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
161 Whiteway Road Bristol BS5 7RR
Proposed two storey side extension to create new dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
235 Ullswater Road Bristol BS10 6EF
Construction of a detached dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land To The Rear Of 232-234 Stapleton Road Easton
Bristol BS5 0NT
Demolition of single storey Victorian store building to the rear
and replacement with 2 storey block of flats containing 3 no.
flats, shop storage and including refuse, recycling and cycle
storage for both shops and flats.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
42
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

29 Westover Road Bristol BS9 3LY
Erection of a two storey, 2no. bedroom semi-detached single
dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
43
Central

Tower House Fairfax Street Bristol BS1 3BN
High level signage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
44
Clifton

04 October 2021

1 The Mall Bristol BS8 4DP
Convert the existing mono-pitched roof to a flat roof terrace
providing outdoor amenity space and replacement of glazing
windows and shopfront with double glazed timber units.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 23

26/08/2021

27/08/2021

14/09/2021

14/09/2021

14/09/2021

14/09/2021

28/09/2021

29/09/2021

Page 7 of 9

List of appeal decisions
Item

Ward

Address, description and appeal type

Decision and
date decided

Text0:
45
Bishopston &
Ashley Down

7 Selborne Road Bristol BS7 9PH
Enforcement notice appeal for development not in
accordance with the plans approved as part of planning
permission 19/00729/H.
Appeal against an enforcement notice
Delegated decision

Appeal withdrawn
02/09/2021

Text0:
46
Brislington West

57 West Town Lane Brislington Bristol BS4 5DD
New single storey dwelling. (Self Build).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
13/09/2021

Text0:
47
Clifton Down

41 Alma Vale Road Clifton Bristol BS8 2HL
Change of use from D1 (pre-school care) to C3 flat. (Ground
floor and part basement).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
06/09/2021

Text0:
48
Clifton

Goldney Lodge Worlds End Lane Bristol BS8 4TQ
Demolition of outhouses and construction of a two storey side
extension. Construction of garden studio.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
07/09/2021

Text0:
49
Stoke Bishop

96 Sylvan Way Bristol BS9 2LZ
Proposed two storey extension
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
26/08/2021

Text0:
50
Stoke Bishop

41 Stoke Hill Bristol BS9 1LQ
Ash - Fell. TPO 438.
Appeal against non-determination
Delegated decision

Text0:
51
St George
Troopers Hill

Trooper Court 303 Crews Hole Road Bristol BS5 8BQ
Enforcement Notice Appeal for installation of timber
enclosure without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

04 October 2021

Page 24

Appeal allowed
15/09/2021

Appeal dismissed
20/09/2021

Page 8 of 9

Text0:
52
Hillfields

113 Thicket Avenue Bristol BS16 4EQ
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of two canopy
structures to the front of the property.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
53
Ashley

1 Treefield Place Bristol BS2 9UU
Demolition of existing garage. Erection of a new artist studio
to front elevation.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal allowed
25/08/2021

Text0:
54
Henbury & Brentry

Henbury Lodge Station Road Henbury Bristol BS10 7QQ
Proposed replacement of existing sheds, with an outbuilding
to accommodate garden room and disable WC.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
22/09/2021

Text0:
55
Henbury & Brentry

Henbury Lodge Station Road Henbury Bristol BS10 7QQ
Proposed replacement of the existing sheds with an
outbuilding to accommodate garden room and disable WC.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
22/09/2021

Text0:
56
Frome Vale

128 Downend Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 5BG
Application for prior approval of a proposed new
dwellinghouse on terraced buildings in commercial or mixed
use.
Appeal against non-determination
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
21/09/2021

Text0:
57
Horfield

Land To Rear Of 382 - 386 Southmead Road Bristol BS10
5LP
Retrospective change of use of land at the rear of houses
382, 384 and 386 Southmead Road to provide parking
spaces for 7no. cars.
Appeal against non-determination
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed

Text0:
58
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

1 Maidenhead Road Bristol BS13 0PS
Proposed two storey side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
27/08/2021

Text0:
59
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

7 Fairford Road Bristol BS11 9QZ
Single storey rear extension and two-storey side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
04/10/2021

04 October 2021

Page 25

Appeal dismissed
22/09/2021

30/09/2021

Page 9 of 9

Agenda Item 6

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
13th October 2021
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE

LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED
No Enforcement Notices to report

04 October 2021

Page 26

Agenda Item 8
Development Control Committee B
13 October 2021
Report of the Director: Development of Place
Index
Planning Applications
Item

Ward

Officer
Recommendation

Application No/Address/Description

1

Clifton Down

Grant subject to
Legal Agreement

20/00542/P - Land At Home Gardens Redland
Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Outline planning application for the
redevelopment of the site comprising demolition
of existing buildings (1-4 Home Gardens, 1-2
The Bungalows and associated garages and
outbuildings) and the erection of two new
buildings to provide up to 60 residential units
(Class C3) (including 20% affordable housing)
and up to 262sqm of flexible office space (Class
E) to Whiteladies Road frontage and associated
works. Permission sought for Access, Scale and
Layout).

2

Filwood

Grant subject to
Legal Agreement

21/00816/F - Land At Broad Plain House Lads
Club Broadbury Road Bristol BS4 1JT
Partial demolition of existing building (Broad
Plain House) and erection of 47 affordable
homes (22 flats and 25 houses) including
associated public open space, parking,
infrastructure and access onto Broadbury Road.

3

Avonmouth &
Lawrence
Weston

Grant

21/03337/F - 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
Change of use from currently vacant former
bookmakers (Sui Generis) to a Hot Food
Takeaway (Sui Generis) together with new
shopfront and roller shutters to the front
elevation and wall mounted extract and boiler
flues, fresh air intake grill and condenser to the
rear elevation.

index
v5.0514

Page 27
E:\Bristol\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00025488\$ds1h3l0e.docx

04/10/2021 15:26

Agenda Item 8a
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021

ITEM NO. 1

WARD:

Clifton Down

SITE ADDRESS:

Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR

APPLICATION NO:

20/00542/P

Outline Planning

DETERMINATION
15 October 2021
DEADLINE:
Outline planning application for the redevelopment of the site comprising demolition of existing
buildings (1-4 Home Gardens, 1-2 The Bungalows and associated garages and outbuildings) and
the erection of two new buildings to provide up to 60 residential units (Class C3) (including 20%
affordable housing) and up to 262sqm of flexible office space (Class E) to Whiteladies Road
frontage and associated works. Permission sought for Access, Scale and Layout).

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

Alder King Planning Consultants
Pembroke House
15 Pembroke Road
Clifton
Bristol BS8 3BA

APPLICANT:

Elizabeth Blackwell Properties Ltd
C/O Agent

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

04/10/21 10:53

Page 28

Committee report

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR

INTRODUCTION
This is an update to the Committee Report presented to Development Control (DC) Committee B on 1
September 2021. At the meeting of DC Committee B on 1 September 2021, the motion passed was:
“Resolved – that the application is deferred and that the Committee is minded to refuse this
application on the grounds of the unsuitable proposed vehicular access through an existing car park.
There was a need for appropriate consultation, access for other parties and the need for the
applicant to provide their own vehicular access to the site.
Since the Committee meeting, the Applicant has submitted an Access Statement in support of the
application. The Access Statement and enclosed Title Boundary and Land Transfer Plan identifies the
land where Pegasuslife Development Limited has granted rights of access to the Applicant, namely
the land through The Vincent car park. The Statement confirms that the Applicant benefits from a right
of access “along the Accessway on foot and (in relation to that part of the Accessway which is laid out
for vehicular use) with vehicles together with a right to manoeuvre and turn vehicles (over that part of
the Accessway which is laid out for vehicular use”. A Supplemental Agreement dated 6 August 2019
was also signed between the Applicant and Pegasuslife Development Limited, amongst others,
further confirming the right of way for both pedestrians and vehicles from Redland Hill to the
application site.
The Applicant is currently using this right of access, to access the site and a 30no. space car park and
as part of the application proposes to continue to use it to access the site and the proposed 34no.
space car park. TDM has further confirmed that there are no concerns from a highway safety
perspective related to the access road.
A further 14 day round of public consultation on the application and the Access Statement has taken
place since the last Committee meeting.
The Committee Report for the meeting on 1 September 2021 has been updated to reflect the above;
and the Access Statement provided by the Applicant is attached as a supporting document.
SUMMARY
The application site relates to an area of approximately 0.3ha of land located on the eastern side of
Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road in the Clifton area of Bristol. The site is currently occupied by a
small office building, the Home Gardens terrace of four residential properties, 1-2 The Bungalow and
associated outbuildings/garages and 30no. car parking spaces let out on a commercial basis to local
businesses.
The site is not allocated within the Local Plan for any particular land use. It is located within the
Whiteladies Road Conservation Area and there are a number of listed buildings in proximity to the
site. The existing commercial unit is also within the defined town centre boundary of Whiteladies
Road.
The application seeks outline planning permission for the redevelopment of the site comprising the
demolition of the existing buildings and the erection of two new buildings to provide up to 60no.
residential units (Use Class C3) and up to 215sqm of flexible office floorspace (Use Class E).
Permission is sought for Access, Scale and Layout with Appearance and Landscaping reserved for
future consideration.

Page 29

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
The development proposes a mix of 60no. one and two bed flats including12no. affordable dwellings,
arranged over two building blocks, Block A and Block B. Both blocks would be five storeys in height at
their tallest point.
Vehicular access to the site would continue to be provided via the existing right of access on an
unadopted road through The Vincent car park, off Redland Hill and would provide access to 34no. car
parking spaces. Pedestrian and cycle access would also be provided from Redland Hill and
secondary pedestrian access would be provided via upgraded steps off Westbury Road. The proposal
also includes 32no. secure and covered bike stands for residents and employees, plus an additional
15no. stands for visitors.
The application has undergone four rounds of public consultation and Officers are satisfied that the
Applicant served the correct Certificate B notice on Pegasuslife Development Limited who own the
access road to the site.
Key issues in the report concern the principle of development, affordable housing provision, design
and impact on the Conservation Area, impact on residential amenity, transport and movement, impact
on trees and sustainable design and construction.
The application site is previously developed land in a sustainable location and therefore a large
residential development of this kind is considered to be acceptable in principle. The proposals would
also increase the provision of flexible office space at the site and contribute to Bristol’s five year
housing land supply including the provision of 12no. affordable dwellings.
During the determination of the application a number of design iterations have been made to respond
to comments raised by the City Design Group. Most notably the scale and massing of the proposed
blocks has been reduced with Block B reducing from seven and five storeys to five and four storeys in
height. The stone wall at the front of the development, fronting onto Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road
would also be retained where possible or replicated, as a key feature of the development. It is
therefore considered that the design of the proposed development is acceptable and the revisions
made during the determination of the application have reduced the impact on residential amenity.
Furthermore, the less than substantial harm identified for the Conservation Area would be outweighed
by the public benefits of the proposed development.
Transport Development Management has raised no objection to the proposed development, including
the Senior Road Safety Engineer who has confirmed that in their view the proposed access
arrangement is safe. The Applicant is also willing to accept an obligation to upgrade the steps and
footpath from Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road into the site. The impact on trees would also be
mitigated through a tree replacement obligation in the S106 and the site would achieve a 20.81%
carbon dioxide saving, it is also future proofed to connect to the Heat Network.
Having carefully considered the technical information submitted in support of the application and the
policy context, it is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development
Plan and the NPPF, when read as a whole. The starting point is therefore that permission should be
granted in accordance with the statutory presumption in favour of the Development Plan. In the
assessment of this application, balancing the benefits and disbenefits detailed in this report, Officers
consider that the impacts of granting planning permission would not significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits. This means that the application would constitute sustainable development, and
this is a material consideration in favour of the proposed development.

Page 30

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
The Access Statement submitted in support of the application since the previous Committee meeting,
also confirms that the Applicant has a right of access over land belonging to Pegasuslife Development
Limited and that a Supplemental Agreement dated 6 August 2019 was signed between the Applicant
and Pegasuslife Development Limited, amongst others, confirming the right of way for both
pedestrians and vehicles from Redland Hill to the application site. Officers consider that the continued
use of this access for the proposed development would be acceptable from an amenity perspective
both during construction and operation. TDM has also raised no objection to the access from a
highway safety perspective.
With these points in mind, it is the Officer Recommendation that planning permission should be
granted, subject to the obligations and conditions detailed in this report. However, following the
deferral from the previous Committee meeting a reason for refusal has been drafted at the end of this
Report should the Committee members still be minded to refuse the planning application.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The application site relates to an area of approximately 0.3ha of land located on the eastern side of
Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road in the Clifton area of Bristol, approximately 2km to the north of
Bristol city centre. The site is currently occupied by a small office building (215 Whiteladies Road), the
Home Gardens terrace of four residential properties, 1-2 The Bungalow and associated
outbuildings/garages and 30no. car parking spaces let out on a commercial basis to local businesses.
Vehicular access to the site is gained via a legal vehicular and pedestrian right of access on an
unadopted road off Redland Hill to the north of the site passing through the car park of The Vincent or
via St Vincent’s Hill. The vehicular access route from Redland Hill also serves The Vincent and its car
park and the adjacent Harper House. Pedestrian access is also available via two legal pedestrian
rights of access from Redland Hill and Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road via steps leading through to
St Vincent’s Hill.
The area surrounding the site is mixed in character and land use, given its proximity to The Downs
and to Whiteladies Road, it comprises a mix of residential, retail, office and healthcare. The site is
bound to the north by the modern seven storey former Simply Health building and the five storey
Harper House, to the east by The Vincent a 65-apartment extra care scheme, to the south by an Asda
petrol filling station accessed from Whiteladies Road and residential development on St Vincent’s Hill
and Carlton House, and to the west by Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road and the Cabstand including
the former St John’s Parochial School (now in residential use).
The site is not allocated within the Local Plan for any particular land use. It is located within the
Whiteladies Road Conservation Area and there are a number of listed buildings in proximity to the
site. The existing commercial unit is also within the defined town centre boundary of Whiteladies
Road.
RELEVANT HISTORY
The site has no relevant planning history, however a pre-application enquiry was submitted to the
Council in March 2018 for the proposed mixed use redevelopment of the site.
APPLICATION
The application seeks outline planning permission for the redevelopment of the site comprising the
demolition of the existing buildings and the erection of two new buildings to provide up to 60no.

Page 31

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
residential units (Use Class C3) and up to 215sqm of flexible office floorspace (Use Class E).
Permission is sought for Access, Scale and Layout with Appearance and Landscaping reserved for
future consideration.
The development proposes a mix of 60no. one and two bed flats including12no. affordable dwellings,
arranged over two building blocks, Block A fronting Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road and Block B set
within the site parallel to Harper House.
The accommodation mix would be as follows:
Building

Height

Accommodation Schedule

1. Block A

5 storeys

Total 16no. flats:

2. Block B

4-5 storeys



12no. 1 bed flats



4no. 2 bed flats



215sqm flexible office accommodation

Total 44no. flats:


24no. 1 bed flats



20no. 2 bed flats

Both blocks would be five storeys in height at their tallest point, although part of Block B nearest to the
St Vincent’s Hill cottages would be stepped down to four storeys in height.
Amenity space would be provided through a combination of communal amenity spaces in the centre
of the development and adjacent to the access to St Vincent’s Hill and 26no. private balconies and
7no. small private gardens for flats at ground floor level in Block B.
Vehicular access to the site would continue to be provided via the existing right of access on an
unadopted road off Redland Hill through The Vincent car park and would provide access to 34no. car
parking spaces split between surface level car parking and underground car parking under Block B
accessed via a car lift.
Pedestrian and cycle access to the residential elements would also be provided from the existing
rights of access off Redland Hill and a secondary pedestrian access would be provided via upgraded
steps off Westbury Road. The proposal also includes 32no. secure and covered bike stands for
residents and employees, plus an additional 15no. stands for visitors.
A Section 106 Agreement for the site would include obligations relating to:
i)

12no. affordable dwellings including 9no. one bed social rent flats and 3no. two bed shared
ownership flats;
ii) £6,000 – contribution to upgrade the public footpath and set of steps onto Westbury
Road/Whiteladies Road;
iii) £25,000 – contribution to upgrade Black Boy Hill bus stops C and D;

Page 32

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
iv) £3,735 – contribution for Travel Plan Management and Audit Fee or Travel Plan
Implementation Fee;
v) £9,947.73 – contribution for 13no. trees in accordance with the Tree Replacement Standard.

PRE-APPLICATION COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The Applicant has carried out pre-application community consultation as detailed in the Statement of
Community Involvement submitted with the planning application.
The consultation programme for the proposed development has been conducted in the following
phases:







Initial site visit and workshop for key stakeholders on 29 November 2017.
First round of public consultation around options with a key stakeholder workshop and an
informal drop-in style exhibition for near neighbours and wider community on 22 February
2018.
Second round of public consultation around preferred option with a key stakeholder workshop
and an informal drop-in style exhibition for near neighbours and wider community on 17
October 2019.
Police crime prevention design officer meeting with AWW Architects on 23 October 2019.

The issues raised and outcomes provided are detailed in the Statement of Community Involvement
submitted in support of the application.
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION
Site notices were erected, a newspaper notice published, and letters sent to neighbouring properties.
GENERAL RESPONSES FROM PUBLIC
During the first round of consultation, which closed in March 2020, 24no. comments were received
from members of the public.
9no. comments were made in support of the application for the following reasons:








Support for the redevelopment of the site.
Support for the proposed architectural design.
The proposed housing will attract professionals who would utilise the local facilities and
support local businesses.
Improvement to the façade on Whiteladies Road.
Support for delivery of needed housing.
It comprises a sustainable development accessible by public transport and with energy
efficiency measures proposed.
Support for the inclusion of high cycling provision to reduce the number of cars associated with
the proposed development.


15no. comments were made in objection on the following grounds:



The scale and height of the buildings is out of keeping with local development.
Overshadowing and overlooking issues for neighbouring residential dwellings.

Page 33

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR

















The proposed development would result in increased traffic, which could be dangerous for
elderly local residents in the area.
Concerns about limited, narrow and unsafe access by road to the proposed development,
including for construction and delivery vehicles.
Concerns about impact on local residents’ access to property on St Vincents Hill.
Inadequate car parking provision for the proposed development.
Concerns about local car parking issues and potential impact on disabled parking provision.
Concerns about potential noise pollution.
Lack of local infrastructure and insufficient local services for the current local population more
generally.
Concerns that the proposed development is incongruous with the local landscape character.
Concern that there had been insufficient local consultation with residents about the proposals.
Lack of affordable housing proposed.
Impact of the height of the proposed building on the part Listed Queen Victoria house and the
Conservation Area.
Impact of construction for local residents, including noise and dust pollution.
Overdevelopment of the site, with the proposal being located on a small site.
Concerns that the proposal would be built up to the boundary with no provision for screening.
Concerns about local waste collection for the proposed development.
Concerns about the loss of trees at the site.

One response neither in objection nor support included the following issue:


Concern that the Noise Impact Assessment does not specifically address the potential for
noise disturbance at night from the petrol station.

A neutral response was received from the Conservation Advisory Panel on 15 April 2020 who made
the following comments:







The Panel agrees the principle of re-development of this site and accepts the loss of the
existing buildings after recording.
Concern that the density of 192dph is greater that the 120dph set out in the Urban Living SPD.
It is essential that the character of St Vincent's Hill and the rubble stone walls is not harmed.
The scale and massing with pitched roofs is successful but the majority of the flats are single
aspect, some north facing, which is not in accordance with the Urban Living SPD.
The submitted landscape proposals are very sketchy for a development of this size and
sensitive location.
Comments in relation to the Arboricultural Statement, where there is some confusion in the
over the referencing of T06 and T07, and group T08 does not seem to be shown on the plan.
The executive summary mentions 4 trees to be removed, but the body of the text states 5. It is
not clear if the 13 replacement trees proposed could be accommodated within the scheme.

A neutral response was received from RCAS Planning Group on 28 April 2020, who made the
following comments:


Support for redevelopment of this low-density site but the Society has concerns about the
consequences of the density of redevelopment upon the amenities that this site would offer to
its future residents.

Page 34

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR











The Society noted conversations with planning officers about overlooking neighbouring
properties. The response was written on the basis that this proposal overcomes the
overlooking the problem.
The existing buildings have a pleasant inter-war design suitable for their context. However, the
Society accepts that the increased density of the site would outweigh the retention of the
current buildings.
The only change of use would be the introduction of a modest office development, which the
Society supports.
The Society supports the Council policy to increase land use density in the centre of the city,
however, commented that the proposed density of 192pdh is too high for this location and not
in alignment with the Urban Living SPD.
The floor plans show single aspect flats that lack cross ventilation.
The Society welcomes the design proposals. The broken outline of the roofs makes a welcome
change from the flat roofs offered in many flat developments.
Support was stated for the opportunity to enhance the permeability of the site with more public
and private open space. Subject to sample, the Society supports the use of the proposed
construction materials.

During the second round of consultation, which closed in December 2020, 15no. comments were
received from members of the public. 13no. comments were made in objection and 2no. comments
were received neither in objection nor support. All comments received raised the same concerns as
previously.
During the third round of consultation, which closed in May 2021, 21no. comments were received from
members of the public, all comments were in objection raising the same concerns as the previous
round of consultation.
The Conservation Advisory Panel provided neutral comments on the 3 May 2021, as follows:





The Panel remain concerned about the impact of the access routes to this development on the
neighbouring heritage assets.
The Panel welcomes the fact that Block A now addresses Blackboy Hill and Block B has been
reduced in height and extent, but further clarification is required on the impact on the trees. It
is considered the proposal should respond better with the requirement of the Urban Living
SPD as many flats would be single aspect.
Comment that there is an opportunity to revisit the value of these smaller scale semi industrial
buildings and coach houses in the street scene. These provide breathing space within streets
and their loss will have an adverse impact on the character of the conservation area.

A number of objections were also raised from members of the public prior to the last Committee
meeting in relation to the proposed access arrangements for the site. An objection from Lifestory
Group was also received raising concern that they had not been notified of the application.
Following receipt of the objection from Lifestory Group, Officers reviewed the Planning Application
Form and are satisfied that the required Certificate B notification was served on Pegasuslife
Development Limited who own the access and are a brand of Lifestory Group located and at the
same address as Lifestory Group.

Page 35

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Following the previous Committee meeting and the submission of the supplementary Access
Statement a fourth round of consultation was launched which closed on the 1 October 2021, 3no.
comments were received in objection and raising the same concerns as the previous rounds of
consultation.
COMMENTS FROM COUNCILLORS
Councillor Carla Denyer
Councillor Denyer issued a Member Referral Form on the 7 April 2020, requesting that the application
be considered by a Development Control Committee if recommended for approval. Councillor Denyer
formally withdrew this call-in on the 22 April 2021 following a number of confirmed changes / S106
contributions particularly with reference to the upgraded steps and footpath off Westbury
Road/Whiteladies Road. However, since the previous Committee Councillor Denyer has again
confirmed her view that the decision should be made at Committee.
COMMENTS FROM INTERNAL CONTRIBUTORS
City Design Group – No objection
A number of meetings have been held with the City Design Group during the determination of the
planning application and following these amended plans have been submitted. The City Design
Group’s final view on the application is presented below:
I have reviewed the updated drawings. This shows the balconies nearest the St Vincent Cottages and
the balcony nearest Carlton House removed. This ensures any further development of Carlton House
will not be prejudice and reduces the overlooking to St Vincent’s Cottages.
The proximity of No 9 Vincent’s Cottage to the nearest element of the proposed development is below
the nationally accepted 21m separation distance from window to window. This four-storey element is
topographically higher than this cottage and would appear overbearing and would still create some
overlooking of the private garden. However, this property will meet the Average Daylight Factor
(ADF) set out in the BRE guidelines for daylight/sunlight.
It is also noted that the daylight/sunlight for the proposed development broadly meets the BRE
guidelines.
In summary, the removal of the balconies is an improvement, however, it does not remove the impact
of overbearing and overlooking of No. 9 St Vincent’s Cottages.
Transport Development Management – No objection
TDM made the following comments in relation to the proposed scheme:
Principle
The application proposes to demolish the existing buildings and in their place construct two new
buildings that will comprise 40 x one, 20 x two bed flats, 265m² of A2/B1, car/cycle parking and waste
storage. Subject to addressing the condition of the footpath that runs from St Vincents Hill to
Westbury Road, which constitutes a highway safety hazard, Transport Development Management
(TDM) considers the proposals to be acceptable.

Page 36

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Highway Network
The site is principally accessed via an unadopted road off Redland Hill (B4468) which has a keep
clear box at the junction and double yellow lines on both sides of the carriageway. It is also a bus
route. The site can also be accessed by pedestrians and cyclists from Westbury Road (A4018) via a
set of steps and an unadopted footpath that connects to the access road and St Vincents Hill. St
Vincents Hill is extremely narrow and only wide enough for one way traffic up to the junction with
Grove Road, at which there are double yellow lines on both sides of the carriageway. The entire area
sits within the Cotham North Residents Parking Scheme and is subject to a 20mph speed limit.
Adjacent to the set of steps on Westbury Hill are two bus stops, which are served by 5 bus routes, the
most frequent being the No’s 1 and 2 which are every seven to 12 minutes during the day, Monday to
Friday. There have been 21 recorded accidents within the vicinity of the site. Please see the section
below for more information.
Transport Statement
In support of the application a Transport Statement has been submitted. This is split into several
sections which describe key policies the application should be judged against, the surrounding
highway network, proposed development, multi-modal trip generation and the impact of the
development on the highway network. As set out above the site is principally accessed via an
unadopted road off of Redland Hill (B4468). To ascertain traffic flows and speeds of vehicles utilising
this route, as well as turning into and out of the site, an Automatic Traffic Count was undertaken from
Thursday the 14th of March 2019 to Wednesday the 20th of March 2019. This found that Monday to
Friday the average five day flow was 631 vehicles during the AM peak and 768 vehicles during the
PM peak. Speeds were found to be within the speed limit. An analysis of recorded accidents for a five
year period between the 1st of January 2013 and 30th of November 2018 within the vicinity of the site
found that there had been 21 recorded accidents, 17 of which were slight and only four serious with
no fatalities.
All of the accidents were determined to be due to human error and not as a result of any design error
with the layout of the surrounding highway network. To determine the likely number of two-way trips
the site would generate a multi-modal trip generation was run utilising data derived from TRICS.
(TRICS is an industry standard database of trip rates used to quantify the numbers of trips associated
with new developments). This found that the residential element would create 38 two-way trips during
the AM peak (8am to 9am) and 43 two-way trips during the PM peak (5pm to 6pm). In turn the
commercial element would generate a further 16 two-way trips during the AM peak and 6 trips during
the PM peak. In total the site would generate 53 two way trips during the AM peak and 49 during the
PM peak. To ascertain the likely mode of travel the Method of Travel to Work data set for the 2011
census for the Bristol 022 area was applied for the LOSA (Lower Layer Super Output Area) for the
residential and the MSOA (Middle Layer Super Output Area) for the commercial elements.
This found that of the total number of two-way trips 25 would be as a car driver/passenger, 16 on foot,
six by cycle and four by bus during the AM peak and 22 as a car driver/passenger, 15 on foot, five by
cycle and three by bus during the PM peak. The key impact the site would have would be on how the
junction between the unadopted road and Redland Hill would operate in the future should permission
be granted. To determine the likely distribution of the additional two-way car trips that would be
generated these trips were assigned to the network based on the source of the trips recorded by the
Automatic Traffic Count that was undertaken. This data along with the geometric characteristics for
the major and minor arms of the junction were then fed into TRL Junctions9 PICARDY (Priority

Page 37

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Intersection Capacity and Delay). This software enables junctions to be modelled to determine what
effect any additional trips will have on the way they operate.
Three scenarios were run. These were 2019 (baseline), 2024 (forecast) and 2024 (forecast with
development i.e. when it is scheduled to be completed by). To take into account future growth (i.e.
population, employment, housing, car ownership and trip rates), TEMPro (Trip End Model
Presentation Program) was applied. Overall this indicates that the junction would continue to operate
safely and well within its design capacity with low queues and delays on all three arms. It would have
a maximum RFC (Ratio of Flow to Capacity) of 0.12, operating with 88% spare capacity. In conclusion
the statement sets out that the applicant considers the proposed development would not significantly
impact the surrounding highway network and therefore there are no transport or highway reasons why
permission should not be granted. TDM concur with this assessment.
Travel Plan
Due to the scale of the development a full Travel Plan must be prepared and submitted using the
Travel Plan Guide for New Developments and the associated Travel Plan Template available at
www.bristol.gov.uk/travelplans This can be secured by condition. A Travel Plan Management and
Audit Fee of £3,735 will be required. This would need to be secured through a Section 106 Agreement
or a Unilateral Undertaking payable on the commencement of the development. The Travel Plan must
be proactively managed and supervised by a nominated Travel Plan Coordinator throughout the life of
the development and for the agreed monitoring period. Contact details must be supplied to
travelplans@bristol.gov.uk
Travel patterns will need to be monitored through regular travel surveys and reported to the council,
with targets and measures amended, based upon actual travel behaviour, as the development
progresses. A Travel Information Pack must be prepared and submitted prior to occupation along with
a series of sustainable travel measures including the provision of a weeks’ worth of bus tickets/cycle
vouchers. Alternatively, the council will undertake the implementation of the Travel Plan on the
applicant’s behalf for an Implementation Fee of £8,640 (£144 per dwelling). By paying the Travel Plan
Implementation Fee the applicant will be released from travel planning obligations over a five year
period.
Public Transport
As set out within the Transport Statement future residents will be able to utilise the two bus stops
(Black Boy Hill C & D) which are served by the 1, 2, 3, 4 and 505 services. It is unclear if the bus
stops will need to be removed in order to construct Block A. If so the stops will need to be replaced
once construction has been completed, the cost of which will need to met by the applicant. If not, as it
can be expected that demand will increase and to further encourage a modal shift by providing
improved public transport facilities a Section 106 contribution of £25,000 is sought to upgrade these
stops. This would be used to remove the existing stops, replace them with a single shelter along with
undertaking all the necessary civil engineering works.
Retaining/Oversailing Structures
In order to construct Block A the applicant proposes to remove part of the existing retaining wall
adjacent to the bus stops on Westbury Road (A4018). As the foundations of the building will be
directly supporting the footway, the applicant will be required to submit an Approval In Principle
Structural Report, although this can be secured by condition. This will be subject to a separate fee,
the level of which will be dependent on the category of structure required. To break up the façade, it is

Page 38

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
proposed that several sections of the building will oversail the footway. As long as they are a minimum
of 2.4m above the footway this is acceptable. However, the applicant will be required to obtain an
Oversailing Licence available at www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences
Access
Vehicular access to the site is by means of a unadopted road off of Redland Hill which curves around
Queen Victoria House to a series of car parks. Pedestrian access will be via two footpaths. The first
from Redland Hill runs into the site as far as the car park adjacent to Harper House. Unfortunately due
to the configuration of the car park it is not possible to extend this all the way to Block A or B.
However, a delineated route will be provided which will then link to a ramp that in turn will connect to a
landscaped area to the rear of Block A. This must conform to Building Regulations with a gradient of
between 1:12 and 1:15 and feature a non-slip surface. Access will also be possible from a footpath
that runs between Westbury Road via a set of steps as far as St Vincents Hill. Access to this will be
restricted to residents and visitors only via electronically controlled gates, which should be constructed
to Secured By Design standards.
This is disappointing as a permissive route is sought. All footpaths within the site will be at least 2m
wide and suitably illuminated which is acceptable. As shown by the photographs below the footpath
from Westbury Road to St Vincents Hill is in an extremely poor state of repair. Given that it will form a
key route for residents from the site it must be upgraded as in its current state it constitutes a clear
danger to pedestrians. A search of the Land Registry revealed that it is not owned by either the
applicant or the Council. The Council can exercise its powers under Section 228 of the Highways Act
1980 and, as Street Works Authority, carry out the upgrade as ‘street works’ and then give notice that
it will adopt (allowing 1 month for the owner(s) to object). In order to pay for the works a Section 106
Contribution of £6,000 is sought from the applicant to renew the treads and risers on the steps and
resurface the footpath with tarmac (approximately 35m long x 2m wide).
Site Layout
The area in front of Block B would continue to form part of the car park with seven parking spaces
although it is not clear what if any measures would be taken to prevent vehicles from parking in this
area. Double yellow lines are recommended although these would need to be privately enforced. It is
assumed that the spaces will be allocated. A Car Park Management Plan is required, although this
can be secured by condition. Within this and the lower ground floor car park all of the spaces are at
least 2.4m wide x 4.8m long with suitable buffers. The blue badge spaces have a side (driver’s side)
and rear hatched area 1.2m wide and will be signed and marked accordingly. Swept path analysis has
been provided for a 5.079m large saloon car to demonstrate that it will be able to safely access and
manoeuvre from spaces 10, 19, 22 and 30. A delineated route should be provided within both car
parks to the main entrance to Block B and the lift/stair core. This could consist of a simple white line
with a pedestrian symbol. All leading edges of the buildings and any areas to be kept clear of vehicles
should also be suitably protected.
Car Parking / Cycle Parking
The applicant proposes to provide 35 parking spaces, of which two would be for blue badge holders.
Seven spaces are at ground level with the rest on the lower ground floor of Block B, which would be
accessed via a car lift. It is unclear how this would operate. To ensure the safety of
residents/visitors/staff, particularly young children, a Car Lift Management Plan is required, although
this can be secured by condition. At least six Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP’s), will be

Page 39

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
provided along with suitable ducting, cabling and earthing (infrastructure) to enable additional points
to be installed in the future. As the site is within the Cotham North Residents Parking Scheme, where
on-street parking is limited, if permission were to be granted the site must be deemed low car and
Advice I044A Restriction of parking permits – existing controlled parking zone/residents parking
scheme must be applied.
In respect of cycle storage the applicant proposes to provide three internal stores. Two would be at
ground level within both Blocks A and B and the other would be on the lower ground floor of Block B.
The two ground floor stores would each have six Sheffield Stands able to accommodate 12 cycles,
equating to 24 in total. The store on the lower ground floor of Block B would have 20 Sheffield Stands
able to accommodate a further 40 cycles. In total these stores would be able to hold 64 cycles which
is acceptable. For the use of visitors a further 15 Sheffield Stands are proposed able to accommodate
a total of 30 cycles. Nine stands will be located at the rear entrance of Block A and six at the eastern
entrance of Block B. This is acceptable and is to be welcomed. Shower and changing facilities should
be provided for the commercial unit.
Waste
The applicant proposes to provide each Block with its own internal waste store. These must be
suitably ventilated and will have doors at least 1.5m wide. Both have sufficient capacity for the
following number of bins required by Bristol Waste.
As the store for Block B will be on the lower ground floor the bins will need to be manoeuvred up to
ground level using the proposed car lift. Bristol Waste vehicles currently access the wider site in order
to collect waste from the neighbouring buildings. Swept path analysis has been provided for an 11.4m
vehicle to demonstrate that this manoeuvre can be undertaken safely. A collection point consisting of
a hardstanding will be provided at the end of Harper House. The sites management company will be
responsible for placing the bins there on the agreed collection day and returning them to the waste
stores once they have been emptied. A Waste Management Plan setting out how waste will be stored,
managed and collected is required, although this can be secured by condition. The bins for the
commercial unit will need to be collected by a commercial contractor and stored within their own
dedicated store.
Construction Management
Due to the impact the application would have on the highway network during the construction period,
particularly Westbury Road (A4018) due to the need to temporarily close the footway and possibly at
least one lane of the carriageway, a Construction Management Plan will be required, along with a
Highway Condition Survey. Both documents can be secured by condition.
A follow up email from TDM dated 8 April 2021 stated that with regards to S106 contributions, the
following contributions would be acceptable:
Description
Upgrade public footpath and set of steps onto Westbury Road
Upgrade Black Boy Hill bus stops C and D
Travel Plan Management and Audit Fee or Travel Plan Implementation
Fee

Contribution
£6,000
£25,000
£3,735

Total

£34,735

Page 40

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
TDM has further confirmed that the Senior Road Safety Engineer has no concerns from a highway
safety perspective about the access road through The Vincent car park.
Conservation and Archaeology – No objection
The scale of the buildings to the rear of the site is not in keeping with the mews typology of St
Vincent's Hill in terms of scale, layout and grain and would be contrary to Policy DM26.
Consequently, there will be less than substantial harm caused to the conservation area and clear and
convincing justification for this harm is required. This justification should include a clear narrative
explaining how the harm has been kept to a minimum and how this harm can be outweighed by the
public benefits of the scheme.
The submitted heritage statement concludes that there is no harm, and we would dispute this based
on the impact to the significance of the conservation area in terms of its character and appearance as
referenced above.
In terms of archaeology there will be minimal impact here, although we had previously requested a
desk-based assessment that has never been undertaken and there is no mention of archaeology in
their heritage statement. Consequently, there may be a requirement for an archaeological watching
brief condition.
Housing Delivery – No objection
The Enabling Manager provided a consultation response with respect to the affordable housing
provision in January 2021.The Housing Delivery Team confirmed that since then, plans have been
updated to include assurances around:





Number of units (20%, so 12 units, as per the threshold approach outlined in the AHPN)
Size of the units, including 9 one beds and 3 two beds, which is welcomed
The minimum gross internal floor space of each affordable unit is in line with NDSS
Placement of the units has been confirmed – all in block A – preferable for management
purposes

However, concern was expressed that the applicant has not addressed the tenure split of the
affordable units, something which needs to be completed as part of outline consent. To reiterate, the
Local Plan and AHPN specifies that citywide tenure requirements for Bristol are 77% Social Rented
affordable housing and 23% Intermediate affordable housing therefore the requirement for this
scheme is 9 units social rent and 3 units shared ownership.
A future Reserved Matters Application will only cover Landscaping and Appearance. Until this has
been agreed, the Housing Delivery Team cannot issue approval from an Affordable Housing
perspective.
Flood Risk Manager – No objection
The Flood Risk Manager stated that the drainage proposals are acceptable in principle. The following
condition would help gain the detailed requirements:
B35A Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)

Page 41

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
No development shall take place until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy and associated detailed
design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using SuDS
methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable
Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of
surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the principles of
sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the lifetime of the
proposal.
Sustainable Cities – No objection
I can confirm that the information received addresses the overheating questions. And the EV charging
points (6no) are now identified on the site plan. The plant room layout provided to the energy service
to demonstrate that the development is future-proofed for connection to the DH network is also
acceptable.
I recommend the following conditions are applied:
Energy and Sustainability in accordance with statement
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures, renewable
energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into the design and
construction of the development in full accordance with the approved plans, energy and sustainability
strategy (Method Consulting, Dec 2019) thermal comfort analysis (Method consulting, Sept 2020),
and technical note (Method Consulting, 15th June) prior to occupation. A total 26% reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions beyond Part L 2013 Building Regulations in line with the energy hierarchy
shall be achieved, and a 20% reduction reduction in carbon dioxide emissions below residual
emissions through renewable technologies shall be achieved
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and can adapt
to a changing climate in accordance with policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BC14 (sustainable
energy), BCS15 (Sustainable design and construction), DM29 (Design of new buildings)
Air permeability
Evidence should be provided to show that the air permeability rate of 3m3/m2.hr @50 Pa has been
achieved, including the provision of copies of the air testing certificates to be submitted and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: The air permeability will contribute to the overall efficiency, energy demand and emissions of
greenhouse gases of the scheme. To ensure that the development achieves the level of energy
efficiency specified in the Energy Statement with reference to policies BCS13 and BCS14.
PV
Prior to implementation, details of the proposed PV system including location, dimensions, design/
technical specification together with calculation of annual energy generation (kWh/annum) and
associated reduction in residual CO2 emissions shall be provided within the Energy Statement.

Page 42

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Prior to occupation the following information shall be provided:
Evidence of the PV system as installed including exact location, technical specification and projected
annual energy yield (kWh/year) e.g. a copy of the MCS installer’s certificate.
A calculation showing that the projected annual yield of the installed system is sufficient to reduce
residual CO2 emissions by 20% as shown in the approved Energy Statement (Method Consulting,
Dec 2019).
Reason To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate change and
to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions
Advisory note
The projected annual yield and technical details of the installed system will be provided by the Microgeneration Certification Scheme (MCS) approved installer.
The impact of shading on the annual yield of the installed PV system (the Shading Factor) should be
calculated by an MCS approved installer using the Standard Estimation Method presented in the MCS
guidance.
Broadband
Prior to commencement, evidence that the development will provided with ‘next generation
broadband’ shall be presented to the Local Planning Authority through provision of an installation
order placed with BT, Virgin Media, or an alternative provider. Registration should show the speed
rating/specification of the connection.
Prior to occupation, the development shall be connected to the broadband infrastructure to achieve
the speeds stated.
Reason: To show that residents and businesses will have access to ultrafast broadband from
occupation.
Pollution Control – No objection
The Pollution Control specialist stated no objection to this application however asks for the following
conditions should the application be approved:
1. Construction Management Plan condition
No development shall take place until a site-specific Construction Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The plan must demonstrate the adoption and use
of the best practicable means to reduce the effects of noise, vibration, dust and site lighting.
Advice
The Construction Environmental Management Plan should also include but is not limited to reference
to the following:
- All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such other place as
may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out only between the following

Page 43

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
hours: 08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays and 08 00 and 13 00 Hours on
Saturdays and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
- Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2 : 2009 Noise and Vibration Control on
Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbance from construction works.
- Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.
- Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants. This must also take into account the need
to protect any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility to air-borne pollutants.
- Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for security
purposes.
2. Noise insulation
No commencement of use shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme of noise insulation measures for all residential
accommodation from external noise sources, this scheme shall also include details of ventilation.
The scheme of noise insulation measures shall take into account the recommendations detailed in the
Noise Assessment submitted with the application.
The approved details shall be implemented in full prior to the commencement of the use permitted
and be permanently maintained.
3. Artificial Lighting (external)
No development shall take place until a report detailing the lighting scheme and predicted light levels
at neighbouring residential properties has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.
Artificial lighting to the development must meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting
Installations in table 2 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Lighting, GN01:2011.
4. Artificial Lighting (external)
Any light created by reason of the development shall meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior
Lighting Installations in table 2 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Lighting, GN01:2011
5. Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall be at
least 5 dB below the background level as determined by BS4142: 2014 Methods for rating and
assessing industrial and commercial sound.
6. Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities (ground floor commercial uses only)
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables shall only take place between 08.00 and
20.00 Monday to Saturday.

Page 44

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
7. Deliveries (ground floor commercial uses only)
Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00.
Tree Officer – No objection
5 Individual trees & 1 group have been surveyed; 5 trees have been proposed for removal. 13
replacement trees are required to mitigate the loss or a financial contribution of 13 x £765.21 =
£9,947.73.
The proposed Site Plan AWW-A-DWG-BLA 0102 Rev K identifies 6 indicative new trees which is
considered insufficient considering the size of the development. Although the applicant can agree a
unilateral undertaking for £9,947.73 this does not fulfil the requirements within BCS9, DM15 & DM17.
Trees are a material consideration to any planning application. At this stage T01 is the only on-site
tree that will be retained, one tree as a green infrastructure asset on a development of this size is poor
and the lack of green infrastructure within the proposed scheme is concerning. If the applicant agrees
to plant the 13 replacement trees that accord with the Planning obligation mitigation figures I would be
happy for a detailed landscape condition to be added as a reserve matters condition. I would like to
see a complete landscape plan not just 13 trees squeezed in.
If the applicant agrees to the 13-replacement tree can the below landscape condition be added as a
reserved matters condition please.
Landscape (Soft and Hard)
As part of the landscaping reserved matters application details of treatment of all parts on the site not
covered by buildings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The site shall be landscaped strictly in accordance with the approved details in the first planting
season after completion or first occupation of the development, whichever is the sooner. Details shall
include:
1. a scaled plan showing all existing vegetation and landscape features to be retained and trees and
plants to be planted;
2. location, type and materials to be used for hard landscaping including specifications for:
a. permeable paving/ hard surfacing
b. Stockholm tree planting pits within areas of hard landscaping (Structural stone and
Biochar).
c. Soil aeration vents
d. Structural soil type, organic matter (Biochar) and clay composition
e. Sustainable urban drainage integration through root zone
3. A table illustrating the following details:
a. The soil volume available for each tree.
b. The soil volume required for each tree, when fully grown / mature.
3. Tree planting pit design in accordance with the Stockholm tree planting system.

Page 45

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
4. Rain water and drainage routes incorporated into SUDs layout to supply water to the tree
planting pits.
5. a schedule detailing sizes and numbers/densities of all proposed trees/plants;
6. specifications for operations associated with plant establishment and maintenance that are
compliant with best practise; and
There shall be no excavation or raising or lowering of levels within the prescribed root protection area
of retained trees unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Unless required by a
separate landscape management condition, all soft landscaping shall have a written five-year
maintenance programme following planting. Any tree(s) that die(s), are/is removed or become(s)
severely damaged or diseased shall be replaced and any new planting (other than trees) which dies,
is removed, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years shall be replaced. Unless
further specific permission has been given by the Local Planning Authority, replacement planting shall
be in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: Required to safeguard and enhance the character and amenity of the area, to provide
ecological, environmental and bio-diversity benefits and to maximise the quality and usability of open
spaces within the development, and to enhance its setting within the immediate locality in accordance
with DM15 and DM17.
Further to the landscape condition can the following conditions be added to the decision notice.
Pre-commencement condition
Protection of Retained Trees during the Construction Period
No work of any kind shall take place on the site until the protective fences have been erected around
the retained trees in the position and to the specification shown on the Assured Trees, tree Protection
Plan (Dwg 200908-HG-TPP-NB&AM) Once installed photos should be electronically sent to the Local
Authority Case Officer, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA in order that the
council may verify that the approved tree protection measures are in place when the work may
commence. The approved fence(s) shall be in place before any equipment, machinery or materials
are brought on to the site for the purposes of the development and shall be maintained until all
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Within the fenced
area(s) there shall be no scaffolding, no stockpiling of any materials or soil, no machinery or other
equipment parked or operated, no traffic over the root system, no changes to the soil level, no
excavation of trenches, no site huts, no fires lit, no dumping of toxic chemicals and no retained trees
shall be used for winching purposes. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies,
another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species, and
shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the council.
Under no circumstances should the tree protection be moved during the period of the development
and until all works are completed and all materials and machinery are removed. Landscaping works
within protected areas is to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority and carried out when all other
construction and landscaping works are complete.
Reason: To protect the retained trees from damage during construction, including all ground works
and works that may be required by other conditions, and in recognition of the contribution which the
retained tree(s) give(s) and will continue to give to the amenity of the area in line with Policy DM17.

Page 46

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Arboricultural Supervision
Prior to the commencement of development, a pre-commencement site meeting shall be held and
attended by the developer's arboricultural consultant and the designated site foreman to discuss
details of the working procedures. A schedule of visits shall be drawn up to ensure the Project
arboriculturist is present during key stages of the development which include, but not limited to:
Ground protection and level changes within the Root protection area of T01.
Site visits must be carried out during the key stages identified above. Copies of written site notes
and/or reports detailing the results of site supervision and any necessary remedial works undertaken
or required shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to
occupancy. Any approved remedial works shall subsequently be carried out under strict supervision
by the arboricultural consultant immediately following that approval.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be retained onsite will not be damaged during the construction works and to ensure that as far as possible the work
is carried out in accordance with current best practice.
Arboricultural method statement – During construction
The applicant/developer shall ensure that all works within the root protection area of retained trees,
must follow the detailed methodology with the Assured Trees arboricultural method statement. In the
instance that major roots are found then further consultation with an arboriculturist will be required,
any changes to the specified methodology must be agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To protect the retained tree from damage during construction and in recognition of the
contribution which the retained tree gives and will continue to give to the amenity of the area.”
Public Art Officer – No objection
The Public Art Officer made the following comments:
Impact and scale of scheme on historic context / farm homestead adjacent to site triggers need for a
public art contribution of suitable scale to mitigate the impact on people and place in such a sensitive
setting. Fascinating area, difficult to see a clear way through in terms of public art approach at this
stage, but would advise that a public art consultant is appointed to explore opportunities, which may
include a creative response to 




Clifton down as a gateway of green to the city, boundaries, entrance points, vistas;
Historic context (listed public toilets, fountains etc) of the area;
Need for joyful green spaces and green infrastructure
Community life of the farm stead houses

As it's a very large scheme we would expect a commitment to a cultural programme from the
developer, and I'd be very grateful if you could have in mind to place a Public Art condition on the
scheme.
Nature Conservation – No objection
The Council’s Nature Conservation specialist provided the following comments:
“The following planning condition is recommended:

Page 47

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Condition: Nesting Birds
No clearance of vegetation or structures suitable for nesting birds, shall take place between 1st March
and 30th September inclusive in any year without the prior written approval of the local planning
authority. The authority will require evidence provided by a suitably qualified ecological consultant
that no breeding birds would be adversely affected before giving any approval under this condition.
Where checks for nesting birds are required they shall be undertaken by a qualified ecological
consultant no more than 48 hours prior to the removal of vegetation or the demolition of, or works to
buildings.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected. All species of wild birds,
their eggs, nests and chicks are legally protected until the young have fledged.
Ecological mitigation is required to meet the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF). The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) states in paragraph 170(d) on page 49 that
planning decisions should minimise impacts on and provide net gains for biodiversity.
Accordingly, the following planning condition is recommended.
Condition: Bird and Bat Boxes
Prior to occupation of the development details provided by a qualified ecological consultant shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority providing the specification,
orientation, height and location for bird nesting and bat roosting opportunities shown on a site plan
with compass directions marked on it. This shall follow the recommendations set out in Clarkson and
Woods, Ecological Survey Report, Land at Home Gardens dated December 2019. Bird boxes shall be
installed to face between north and east to avoid direct sunlight and heavy rain. Bird boxes shall be
erected out of the reach of predators and at least 3.5 metres high on publicly accessible sites. For
small hole-nesting species bird boxes shall be erected between two and four metres high. Bat boxes
shall face south, between south-east and south-west. Bat boxes shall be erected at a height of at
least four metres on appropriate trees, close to hedges, shrubs or tree-lines and avoid well-lit
locations. Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.
Please note the following recommendation.
In accordance with Policy DM29 in the Local Plan, the provision of living (green/brown) roofs which do
not include Sedum is recommended to provide habitat for wildlife. Policy DM29 states that 'proposals
for new buildings will be expected to incorporate opportunities for green infrastructure such as green
roofs, green walls and green decks.'
Living roofs can be integrated with photovoltaic panels and also contribute towards Sustainable Urban
Drainage Systems (SuDS), air pollution mitigation and reducing the urban heat island effect. Living
roofs can be provided on buildings, as well as on bin stores and cycle shelters. The following
guidance applies. The roofs should be covered with local low-nutrient status aggregates (not topsoil)
and no nutrients added. Ideally aggregates should be dominated by gravels with 10 - 20% of sands.
On top of this there should be varying depths of sterilised sandy loam between 0 - 3 cm deep. An
overall substrate depth of at least 10 cm of crushed demolition aggregate or pure crushed brick is
desirable. The roofs should include areas of bare ground and not be entirely seeded (to allow wild
plants to colonise) and not employ Sedum (stonecrop) because this has limited benefits for wildlife. To

Page 48

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
benefit certain invertebrates the roofs should include local substrates, stones, shingle and gravel with
troughs and mounds, piles of pure sand 20 - 30 cm deep for solitary bees and wasps to nest in, small
logs, coils of rope and log piles of dry dead wood to provide invertebrate niches (the use of egg-sized
pebbles should be avoided because gulls and crows may pick the pebbles up and drop them).
Deeper areas of substrate which are at least 20 cm deep are valuable to provide refuges for animals
during dry spells. An area of wildflower meadow can also be seeded on the roof for pollinating
insects. Please see www.thegreenroofcentre.co.uk and http://livingroofs.org/ for further information
and the following reference: English Nature (2006). Living roofs. ISBN 1 85716 934.4
Small scale living roofs
Please see the following web site:
http://greenroofshelters.co.uk/make-provide/
This has examples of ready-made solutions for living roofs on cycle shelters and bin stores as well as
on shipping containers including those for on-site storage.
These provide a ready-made solution to the provision of living roofs on site.
The following advisory note is recommended as a precautionary measure.
All species of bats and their roosts are legally protected. If bats are encountered all demolition work
should cease and an ecological consultant or the Bat Conservation Trust (Tel 0845 1300 228) should
be consulted for advice. The toolbox talk and other bat protection measures as outlined in Clarkson
and Woods, Ecological Survey Report, Land at Home Gardens dated December 2019 should be
adhered too.
Contaminated Land – No objection
The desk study has been considered by The Public Protection Team and is generally acceptable.
Further intrusive site investigation is recommended and alongside this it is recommended the
applicants consider the information available for the adjacent sites.
The following conditions are recommended to be applied to any future planning consent:
1. Further Site Assessment
A site-specific risk assessment and intrusive investigation shall be carried out to assess the nature
and extent of any site contamination and whether or not it originates from the site. The investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings
must be produced. The results of this investigation shall be considered along with the reports
submitted with the original application. The written report of the findings shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works (except demolition) in
connection with the development, hereby approved, commencing on site. This must be conducted in
accordance with the Environment Agency’s Land Contamination: risk management and BS
10175:2011 + A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice.
2. Submission of Remediation Scheme
No development shall take place (except demolition) until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the
site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health,
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment has been prepared, submitted

Page 49

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.
3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no occupation of the development shall take place until the
approved remediation scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local Planning
Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme
works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (otherwise known as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of the
remediation carried out must be produced and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time that had not previously been identified when
carrying out the approved development, it must be reported immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
Environment Agency’s Land Contamination: risk management guidance and BS 10175:2011 +
A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice. Where remediation is
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which ensures the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended
use of the land after remediation.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report
must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The
Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the
remediation scheme works.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other off-site receptors.
Air Quality – No objection
The Air Quality Officer provided the following comments:
The air quality assessment shows a negligible impact from the development on air quality. I therefore
have no objections to the development on air quality grounds. The construction mitigation plan should
be conditioned appropriately.
COMMENTS FROM EXTERNAL CONTRIBUTORS
Crime Reduction Unit – No objection
A Crime Prevention Design Advisor with a responsibility for Crime Prevention Through Environmental
Design (CPTED) projects within the Bristol area provided the following comments in relation the
original application March 2020 and are stated to remain relevant:

Page 50

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR











Although the area in which this proposed development is located does not currently suffer with
high rates of crime, the layout is permeable with pedestrian routes through the residential
areas. The DAS makes no mention of how crime and disorder will be addressed.
Electronic access control (vehicular and pedestrian access) to the underground car park, bin
and cycles stores should be in place.
Audio visual intercom with auto release from residential apartments should be linked with the
above with automatic release of communal doors in an emergency.
Doors and windows must be PAS24 2016 with any door allowing access from the underground
car park treated as an external door.
Surveillance cameras would be advisable in the underground car park and communal areas.
The cycle store would also benefit from these measures and provide reassurance to those
using them, therefore increasing the footfall in this area.
It was acknowledged during the pre-app consultations that the footpath/steps to/from the
proposed development at Blackboy Hill were a security concern, although it is understood that
these steps are not within this development area, they will be a key route for residents and so
should, in my view, be considered at this stage.
The need for adequate lighting levels was discussed at the pre-app stage, I can’t see that this
has been addressed within the DAS?

Following the design changes as listed in the DAS Addendum they also held the following
observations:
The semi-private amenity space is intended for the use of residents with the proposed development
described as private with no public thoroughfare. I note that there are gated railings at the boundary
with Blackboy Hill/Whiteladies Road through the existing boundary wall. Are the gates for demarcation
only or is electronic access control intended? If the gates are not locked how do the management
company/developer propose to enforce this? We have recently been asked for assistance with a
private development with a ‘residents only’ area, which is not secured in any way, being subjected to
repeated incidents of anti-social behaviour and theft of cycles from an underground car park, this has
resulted in the management company seeking to retrospectively fit security gating.
Bristol Waste Company – No objection
Following the third round of consultation, the Bristol Waste Company provided comments as follows:



The numbers of containers suggested would be broadly similar as there is only one additional
residential unit on this application.
Bristol Waste would welcome dialogue the developer regarding access and servicing
requirements for refuse and recycling.

Bristol Civic Society – No objection
A neutral response was submitted from Bristol Civic Society on 22 December 2020, who made the
following comments:




The Society welcomes the changes to the orientation of the residential blocks and consider
that the design has been significantly improved.
Concerns regarding density within the proposed development remain.
The revised floor plans still show a number of single aspect flats that lack cross ventilation.

Page 51

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Historic England – No objection
Comments received from Historic England in relation to the proposed development were as follows:
“The application site is within the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area, with the site area being over
1,000m2. The proposals also have the potential to impact on the setting of the Clifton & Hotwells
Conservation Area, as well as on the settings of a number of Grade II listed assets and other
undesignated heritage assets. While we have a statutory remit to provide advice on the impact upon
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, we would task your Conservation Officer in
providing a view on the setting of Grade II listed buildings.
The proposals are for a mixed-use development over two blocks; the westerly block (Block A) fronting
Whiteladies Road would be four stories and the larger, more easterly block (Block B) would be a
maximum of seven stories. The site is situated just below the top of the long approach into Bristol
from Durdham Downs and is characterised by a predominant scale of relatively modest domestic
form; 2-3 and occasionally 4 storeys in height. The Simply Health building, immediate to the north of
the site at 6-7 storeys, is significantly out of scale with its neighbours and demonstrates the
detrimental impact such development can have on the Conservation Area. Grove Road and Saint
Vincent’s Hill, to the south of the application site, are more intimate in urban scale terms and more
domestic in their architecture. The impact upon views from these areas should be properly assessed,
particularly as the potential impact of Block B upon the groups of heritage assets in these areas could
be particularly dominant.
We do not object to the principle of Block A, subject to greater clarity over design and detailing. The
elevations do not yet appear contextual and the precedents cited in the Design and Access Statement
(including Wapping Warf) are not all representative of the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area. Block B is likely to have a greater impact and seven stories within this context
would be at odds with the ambient building height of the area and the domestic scale and rhythm of
predominantly midlate 19th century architecture.
We believe that the site can accommodate a lower quantum of development of a scale that responds
more positively to its historic context. Any proposals should demonstrate that the significance of the
Conservation Area is enhanced or better revealed (NPPF, Para 200). The proposals, as they stand,
do not persuade us that this would be the case. A more thorough assessment of impact upon the
Conservation Area is also required.
Central to our consultation advice is the requirement of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in Section 66(1) for the local authority to “have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of architectural or historic interest
which it possesses”. Section 72 of the act refers to the council’s need to pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area in the
exercise of their duties. When considering the current proposals, in line with Para 189 of the NPPF,
the significance of the asset’s setting requires consideration. Para 193 states that in considering the
impact of proposed development on significance great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation and that the more important the asset the greater the weight should be. Para 194 goes
on to say that clear and convincing justification is needed if there is loss or harm.
Recommendation
Historic England has concerns regarding the application on heritage grounds. We consider that the
issues and safeguards outlined in our advice need to be addressed in order for the application to meet

Page 52

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
the requirements of paragraph 200 of the NPPF. In determining this application you should bear in
mind the statutory duty of section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 to have special regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess, section 72(1) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas and section 38(6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to determine planning applications in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Wales and West Utilities – No objection
Wales and West Utilities made the following comments during consultation:
We enclose an extract from our mains records of the area covered by your proposals together with a
comprehensive list of General Conditions for your guidance. This plan shows only those pipes owned
by Wales & West Utilities in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT). Gas pipes owned by other
GT's and also privately owned pipes may be present in this area. Information with regard to such
pipes should be obtained from the owners. The information shown on this plan is given without
obligation, or warranty and the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves,
syphons, stub connections, etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of
any kind whatsoever is accepted by Wales & West Utilities, its agents or servants for any error or
omission.
Wales & West Utilities has pipes in the area. Our apparatus may be affected and at-risk during
construction works. Should the planning application be approved then we require the promoter of
these works to contact us directly to discuss our requirements in detail before any works commence
on site Should diversion works be required these will be fully chargeable. You must not build over any
of our plant or enclose our apparatus.
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – 2021
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011) and Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014).
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. Overall, it is considered
that the approval of this application would not have any significant adverse impact upon different
groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010. In this case the design and access to the
development have been assessed with particular regard to disability and age. Access and movement
through and across the site have been considered in detail to help facilitate new connections from
Redland Hill and Westbury Road. Dedicated footpaths are proposed alongside access improvements
to the steps off Westbury Road. There is vehicular access provided for two disabled parking spaces

Page 53

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
which is in accordance with Policy DM27 and Appendix 2 of the Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (SADMP).
KEY ISSUES
(A) IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN PRINCIPLE?
Employment Use
The application site currently comprises a mix of uses including employment, residential and garages
and in accordance with Policy BCS8 of the Core Strategy any loss of employment uses at the site is a
key consideration in determining the principle of development. Policy BCS8 states that employment
land outside of the Principle Industrial and Warehousing Areas should be retained where it makes a
valuable contribution to the economy and employment opportunities.
215 Whiteladies Road is also located within the Whiteladies Road Town Centre and in accordance
with Policy BCS7 Retail development, offices, leisure and entertainment uses, arts, culture and
tourism uses will be primarily located within or, where appropriate, adjoining the centres in the
identified network and hierarchy serving Bristol.
This is further supported by Policy DM7 of the SADMP which states Retail and other main town centre
uses should be located within the centres identified on the Policies Map.
The application site currently comprises 47sqm of office floorspace at 215 Whiteladies Road. As part
of the proposed development the application proposes to retain this floor space and increase it to
215sqm of Use Class E flexible office space. The retention of office floorspace at the site and the
increase in area is considered to be acceptable in accordance with Policy BCS8. 215 Whiteladies
Road is also located within the Whiteladies Road Town Centre and therefore the retention of flexible
office floorspace would respond positively to Policy BCS7 and Policy DM7.
Residential Use
In considering the principle of development and redevelopment of the site, it is also important to
consider whether the site would be appropriate for residential development.
Section 5 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the approach to 'Delivering a
sufficient supply of homes'. It supports the Government’s objective of significantly boosting the supply
of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of land can come forward where it is
needed, that the needs of groups with specific housing requirements.
Policy BCS5 sets out that the Core Strategy aims to deliver new homes within Bristol's existing built
up areas and between 2006 and 2026, 30,600 new homes will be provided in Bristol. The policy
further states that the development of new homes will primarily be on previously developed sites
across the city.
Alongside Policy BSC5, Policy BCS20 requires that new development is primarily focused on
previously developed land.
The Urban Living SPD states that development proposals should make the most efficient use of land
by delivering an optimum density for its site and location.

Page 54

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
By proposing a large residential development, in a sustainable location on a previously developed
site, it is considered that the proposed development would accord with Policy BCS5 and BCS20 of the
Core Strategy.
The proposed development would deliver 60no. residential dwellings within the established area of
Clifton. The site is considered to be highly sustainable with access to a variety of public transport
including bus routes on Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road and would be in walking distance of Clifton
Down Station and central Bristol.
Furthermore, the site would be located within an existing mixed residential and commercial area,
where a mix of uses within close proximity to each other is already established. The delivery of the
site would also help the Council to meet its target for new homes including affordable housing.
Summary:
It is therefore considered that the principle of development at the site is acceptable in accordance with
Policies BCS5, BCS7, BCS8 and BCS20 of the Core Strategy and Policy DM7 of the SADMP.
(B) DOES THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PROVIDE AN APPROPRIATE LEVEL AND MIX OF
AFFORDABLE HOUSING?
The proposed development falls within Use Class C3 of the Use Class Order, meaning that it is
required to address the Council’s Affordable Housing Policies.
Policy BCS17 requires all residential developments of 15 dwellings or more to deliver 40% affordable
housing and to provide a mix of affordable housing units and contribute to the creation of mixed,
balanced and inclusive communities.
Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should support development
that makes efficient use of land, taking into account the identified need for different types of housing
and other forms of development, and the availability of land suitable for accommodating it.
However, the Affordable Housing Practice Note published in 2018 made key changes to the
affordable housing thresholds set out in Policy BCS17. Utilising Route 2 of the 3-Route ‘Threshold’
approach, the proposed development is now required to provide 20% affordable housing.
The proposed development includes 12no. affordable housing units as per the threshold approach
outlined in the Affordable Housing Practice Note, including 9no. one bed social rent units and 3no. two
bed shared ownership units. The affordable housing provision has been reviewed and supported by
the Housing Delivery Team and the tenure split would be secured via the S106.
The application is therefore in full accordance with Policy BCS17 of the Core Strategy by delivering a
policy compliant 12no. affordable homes (20%) through the S106.
(C) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BE OF A SUFFICIENTLY HIGH-QUALITY DESIGN
AND WOULD IT BE APPROPRIATE WITHIN THE CONSERVATION AREA?
Policy BCS21 advocates that new development should deliver high quality urban design that
contributes positively to an area's character and identity, whilst safeguarding the amenity of existing
development.

Page 55

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Policies DM26-29 (inclusive) of the SADMP require development to contribute to the character of an
area through its layout, form, public realm and building design. Policy BCS20 sets out that an
appropriate density should be informed by the characteristics of the site and the local context.
The Urban Living SPD is clear that an optimal density in new development is considered to be one
that balances the efficient and effective use of land, with aspirations for a positive response to context,
successful placemaking and liveability.
The NPPF, in Paragraph 124, states that planning policies and decisions should support development
that makes efficient use of land, taking into account the importance of securing well-designed,
attractive and healthy places. The Urban Living SPD advocates a design-led approach to optimising
density based on an evaluation of the site’s attributes, its surrounding context, capacity for growth and
the most appropriate development form, as supported by Paragraph 126 of the NPPF.
The application is submitted in outline with some matters reserved, as such only details of scale,
layout and access are for consideration at this stage with details of appearance and landscaping
reserved for future stages.
During the determination of the application a number of design iterations have been made to respond
to comments raised by the City Design Group (CDG). Most notably the scale and massing of the
proposed blocks has been reduced with Block B reducing from seven and five storeys to five and four
storeys in height. Block B has also been moved further away from the cottages on St. Vincent’s Hill
and the building form has been straightened and rationalised to reduce impact.
Block A has increased in height but the building has been realigned and reconfigured to better front
onto Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road and the upper floors are set back behind a stone wall to
enhance the street frontage.
The CDG has welcomed the revised plans confirming that “the design team has engaged positively
with this process and the revised heights in terms of townscape are accepted. The simplified form,
particularly Block B1, rotated mass and increase separation distances with the cottages is supported.”
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policy BSC21 of the
Core Strategy and Policies DM26-DM29 of the SADMP.
Conservation Area
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires local planning
authorities to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the conservation area. The case of R (Forge Field Society) v Sevenoaks DC [2014]
EWHC 1895 (Admin) ("Forge Field") has made it clear where there is harm to a listed building or a
conservation area the decision maker ''must give that harm considerable importance and weight."
[48].
Section 16 of the NPPF states that in determining planning applications, local planning authorities
should take account of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing heritage assets, and the
desirability of new development to make a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.
It also states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation, with any harm or
loss requiring clear and convincing justification.

Page 56

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Policy BCS22 states that development proposals will safeguard or enhance heritage assets and their
character and setting. This includes conservation areas and historic buildings, including those locally
listed.
Policy DM31 sets out that where a proposed development would impact the significance of a heritage
asset the Applicant will be required to justify the extent of proposed works and demonstrate how the
features of the heritage asset and the local character of the area will be retained.
The application site is located within the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area and within proximity to
the Clifton & Hotwells Conservation Area and a number of Listed Buildings. Historic England has
raised no formal objection to the proposed development, however, has raised concerns on heritage
grounds in relation to the scale of Block B.
The Council’s Conservation Team has also raised concerns that the scale of the buildings to the rear
of the site is not in keeping with the mews typology of St Vincent's Hill in terms of scale, layout and
grain and considers that a less than substantial harm would be caused to the Conservation Area.
As outlined above, the CDG has worked with the Applicant to improve the proposals throughout the
determination of the application, this has included reducing the scale of Block B, setting it further back
from the cottages at St Vincent’s Hill and rationalising the massing. Consultation with the Council’s
Conservation Officer has also led to an agreement that the stone wall at the front of the development,
fronting onto Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road would be retained where possible or replicated, as a
key feature of the development. Appearance is currently a reserved matter and not available for
consideration but should planning permission be granted the CDG and Conservation Team would be
further consulted at the reserved matters stage to ensure the appearance and materials for the
proposed development are appropriate and in keeping within the Conservation Area.
In relation to the NPPF, it is considered by Officers that there would be some harm as a result of the
proposed development but this harm would be less than substantial harm to the significance of the
Conservation Area.
Considerable weight is attached to such harm. In accordance with NPPF Paragraph 201, any such
harm needs to be weighed against the public benefits of the proposed development. There would be
notable public benefits arising from the proposed development, including the provision of housing
contributing to Bristol’s five year housing land supply and 12 no. affordable housing dwellings,
provision of increased flexible office floorspace in the Whiteladies Road Town Centre, local transport
and access improvements and the proposals would result in the efficient redevelopment of a
previously developed and underutilised site within a highly sustainable location. It is therefore
considered that the benefits of the scheme would be sufficient to outweigh the heritage harm identified
and the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy BCS22 of the Core Strategy,
Policy DM31 of the SADMP and the NPPF.
(D) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HAVE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE AMENITY
OF RESIDENTS SURROUNDING THE SITE?
Policy BCS21 states that high quality design should consider the amenity of both existing and future
residents.
Policy DM29 sets out that new buildings will be designed to ensure that the existing and proposed
development achieves appropriate levels of privacy, outlook, and daylight.

Page 57

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Appendix B to the Urban Living SPD provides specific guidance for assessing daylight and sunlight,
stating that achieving adequate levels of daylight and sunlight into the buildings and external spaces
where we spend most of our time contributes to our health and wellbeing. It confirms that the most
commonly used guidance on such matters is that published by the Building Research Establishment
(BRE), which contains nationally applicable best practice guidelines on the levels of daylight and
sunlight that existing and new development should follow.
A number of comments have been made by members of the public relating to the impact of the
proposed development on their amenity, particularly in terms of overlooking, overbearing,
overshadowing and impacts associated with the access.
Overlooking
In terms of overlooking, the nearest residential properties to the proposed development are the
cottages at St Vincent’s Hill, with 6 St Vincent’s Hill located approximately 20m from Block B’s nearest
point. Whilst this separation distance is below the optimal 21m separation distance, this shortfall is
only marginal and the proposed and existing buildings would not directly front onto each other but
would be on a slight angle further reducing impact. During the determination of the application,
proposed balconies on the eastern elevation of Block B, nearest to number 6 and 7 St Vincent’s Hill
have also been removed to further reduce any potential overlooking onto these properties and into
their gardens.
Overbearing
In terms of overbearing, concerns have also been raised about the heights of the proposed
development. To reduce the impacts of overbearing revised plans have been submitted which reduce
the overall height of Block B from seven and five storeys to five and four storeys, with the 4 storey
element located closest to the cottages at St Vincent’s Hill. This stepping down in scale across the
site is considered to be acceptable in terms of overbearing and the townscape reflects the existing
stepping down on Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road from the seven storey former Simply Health
building at the top of Blackboy Hill to the St Vincent’s Hill cottages to the south of the site.
Overshadowing
An updated Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has been submitted in support of the planning
application which assesses the impact of the proposed development upon the daylight and sunlight
currently enjoyed by the habitable rooms within ten neighbouring properties against the guidance set
out by the BRE.
A total of 142no. windows have been included within the analysis and the assessment shows that all
but 13no. windows meet the recommended guideline level. All these windows (except two at 8-9 St
Vincent’s Hill) serve rooms within Harper House.
Vertical Sky Component (VSC) is a measure of the amount of diffuse daylight reaching a window. In
respect of VSC, the BRE guide explains that diffuse daylight may be adversely affected if, after a
development, the VSC is both less than 27% and less than 0.8 times its former value.
The assessment shows that all except two of the 11no. windows serving habitable rooms in the St
Vincent Hill’s cottages would meet the BRE guidance. These windows (W2 and W5 at ground floor
level) would continue to enjoy a VSC of 18.31% (a ratio reduction of 0.79x its former value) and

Page 58

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
24.80% (a ratio reduction of 0.78x) respectively - marginally below the 0.8x guideline set out by the
BRE. Furthermore, the room is also served by three other windows that would still meet the BRE
guidance. To help understand these results better, the Study also undertakes an assessment of the
daylight distribution/Average Daylight Factor (ADF).
The results show that the room would continue to enjoy an ADF level of 3.26% (at a ratio reduction of
0.92), comfortably in excess of the 2.0% target for living/kitchen/dining rooms of this type.
For Harper House the assessment shows that of the 57no. windows assessed, 46no. would meet the
target values set out by the BRE (81%) and of the windows that fall below the target values, 2no.
would experience minor adverse losses (20%-29.99%) and 9no. would experience moderate adverse
losses (30%-39.99%).
Of the 11no. windows that fall below the BRE guidance, all except one would continue to enjoy actual
VSC levels of greater than 20% with the development in place, which, according to the BRE, should
continue to provide the potential for adequate daylight levels within the rooms.
The BRE guide explains that the daylight distribution, assessed by plotting the position of the existing
and proposed ‘No Sky Line’ (the point within the affected room where the sky can no longer be
viewed) of a neighbouring property may be adversely affected if, after the development, the area of
the working plane which receives direct skylight is reduced to less than 0.8 times its former value.
The Daylight Distribution assessment shows that of the 36no. rooms assessed, 27no. would meet the
BRE guidance (75%). Of the rooms that fall below the BRE target, 3no. would experience minor
adverse losses (20%-29.99%), 2no. would experience moderate adverse loss (30%-29.99%) and 4no.
will experience adverse losses (of greater than 40%).
In respect of sunlight, an assessment should take account of the Annual Probable Sunlight Hours
(APSH). APSH is amount of sunlight the affected window can receive with and without the new
development. The BRE guide explains that sunlight availability may be adversely affected if the centre
of the window: receives less than 0.8 times its former sunlight hours during either period (summer or
winter).
100% of the windows assessed would meet the target for APSH.
Whilst the proposed development would result in some overshadowing to habitable rooms in Harper
House it is considered that on balance this impact is acceptable. Out of the 142no. windows assessed
only 13no. do not meet the recommended guideline level for VSC. Almost all of these windows enjoy
high existing VSC levels as a result of looking out over a largely vacant site. This makes it difficult for
a development such as this, which is in keeping with the surrounding bulk and massing, to meet the
target values. Furthermore, Harper House is student accommodation and therefore the transient
nature of student accommodation has been taken into consideration in the overall assessment
alongside the site constraints and benefits of the development which significantly weigh in its favour.
Access
Concerns have been raised by a number of residents within The Vincent about the impact of the
access on their amenity both during construction and operation. Condition 7 requires the submission
and approval by the Local Planning Authority of a Construction Management Plan prior to the
commencement of development at the site, should planning permission be granted. As part of this
Plan, the Applicant will be required to set out how they will manage construction impacts in the
interests of amenity of surrounding occupiers. During operation it is also considered that the impact of
the access would be acceptable given there is already an existing right of access through The Vincent
car park which provides vehicular access to 30no. car parking spaces, meaning there would be a
minimal increase in activity and parking spaces at the site.

Page 59

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR

Therefore it is considered that the proposed development is designed and sited in a way to avoid
adverse impacts on the amenity of residents and adjacent land uses in accordance with Policy BCS21
of the Core Strategy and Policy DM29 of the SADMP.
(E) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HAVE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE AMENITY
OF FUTURE OCCUPIERS?
Policy BCS21 states that high quality design should consider the amenity of both existing and future
residents.
Policy BCS23 states that in locating and designing development, account should be taken of the
impact of existing sources of noise or other pollutions on the new development and the impact of the
new development on the viability of the existing uses by reason of its sensitivity to noise or other
pollution.
Policy DM35 states that noise-sensitive development in locations likely to be affected by existing
sources of noise such as busy roads, railway lines, aerodromes, industrial/commercial developments,
waste, recycling and energy plant and sporting, recreation and leisure facilities, will be expected to
provide an appropriate scheme of mitigation to ensure adequate levels of amenity for future occupiers
of the proposed development.
Daylight/sunlight
A Daylight and Sunlight Internal Study was provided for the proposed development and submitted
with the amended plans. The assessment concludes that 100% of rooms within Block A would meet
the BRE guideline and 98% of rooms within Block B would meet the guidelines. The two rooms that
fail in Block B are studio flats in the same location on the first and second floors. By their nature,
studio apartments have large floor areas for individual rooms and as such can be difficult to achieve
compliance. Nonetheless, these rooms would enjoy ADF values of 1.31% and 1.32% respectively,
against a target of 1.5% which on balance is considered to be acceptable.
Amenity space
The proposed development includes a good level of private and communal amenity space for future
occupiers. Two main areas of communal gardens are proposed in the centre of the development and
adjacent to the access to St Vincent’s Hill and 26no. private balconies and 7no. small private gardens
for flats are proposed for Block B, which is considered to be acceptable.
Noise pollution
The proposed development has also been considered in relation to its location adjacent to the Asda
petrol filling station. During the determination of the application the Environmental Health Officer
(EHO) was consulted and the EHO has proposed a pre-commencement condition for a detailed
scheme of noise insulation measures for all residential accommodation from external noise sources to
ensure the development and petrol station can co-exist.
It is therefore considered that the amenity for future occupiers would be acceptable and with the
proposed measures of control governed by the condition, the adjacent petrol station would not
adversely impact on the amenity of future occupiers in accordance with Policy BCS21 and Policy
BCS23 of the Core Strategy and Policy DM35 of the SADMP.

Page 60

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR

(F) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS TRANSPORT AND
MOVEMENT ISSUES?
Policy BCS10 and Policy DM23 require that development does not give rise to unacceptable traffic
conditions. These policies support the delivery of improvements to transport infrastructure to provide
an integrated transport system, which improves accessibility within Bristol and supports the proposed
levels of development. With regards to parking and servicing, it requires that development proposals
provide an appropriate level of safe, secure, accessible and usable provision having regard to the
Council’s adopted parking standards.
Policies DM27, DM28 and DM32 in tern deal with layout and form, public realm and recycling and
refuse provision in new developments.
Transport Impacts
The Applicant submitted a Transport Statement with the planning application which modelled trips to
the site and overall indicates that the junction between the unadopted road through The Vincent car
park and Redland Hill would operate safely and well within its design capacity with low queues and
delays on all three arms even with the development in place.
The Statement concludes that the Applicant considers the proposed development would not
significantly impact the surrounding highway network and therefore there are no transport or highway
reasons why permission should not be granted. TDM concur with this assessment and have
requested that a full Travel Plan is secured via condition alongside a Travel Plan Management and
Audit Fee via the S106.
Bus Stops
As set out within the Transport Statement future residents would be able to utilise the two bus stops
(Black Boy Hill C & D) which are served by the 1, 2, 3, 4 and 505 services and because of this it is
expected that demand would increase. In order to encourage a modal split at the site a further S106
contribution is therefore required to upgrade these stops. This would be used to remove the existing
stops, replace them with a single shelter along with undertaking all the necessary civil engineering
works.
Vehicular/Pedestrian Access
Vehicular access to the site would be achieved of the unadopted road from Redland Hill and provide
access to 27no. car parking spaces including 6no. Electric Vehicle Charging Points. The car park
would be split between a surface level car park and underground car park accessed via a car lift.
Pedestrian access would be gained via two footpaths, one from Redland Hill and one from a set of
steps and footpath from Westbury Road/Whiteladies Road. These steps and footpath are currently in
a very poor condition and as such would need to be upgraded as a result of the development. A S106
contribution is therefore required to renew the treads and risers on the steps and resurface the
footpath with tarmac. Land Registry searches have revealed that the existing steps and footpath are
neither owned by the Applicant nor the Council and therefore the upgrades would be undertaken
under the Council’s powers under Section 228 of the Highways Act 1980 and as the Street Works
Authority.

Page 61

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
The Access Statement and enclosed Title Boundary and Land Transfer Plan also identifies the land
where Pegasuslife Development Limited has granted rights of access to the Applicant or transferred
ownership to the Applicant. This confirms that the Applicant benefits from a right of access “along the
Accessway on foot and (in relation to that part of the Accessway which is laid out for vehicular use)
with vehicles together with a right to manoeuvre and turn vehicles (over that part of the Accessway
which is laid out for vehicular use”. The Applicant is currently using this right of access, to access the
site and a 30no. space car park and as part of the application proposes to continue to use it to access
the site and the proposed 34no. space car park. TDM has further confirmed that there are no
concerns from a highway safety perspective related to the access road.
Cycle Parking/Waste
In respect of cycle storage the applicant proposes to provide three internal stores containing 32no.
Sheffield Stands for occupiers plus a further 15no. Sheffield Stands for visitors which is considered
acceptable by TDM. The Applicant also proposes to provide each Block with its own internal waste
store.
Construction Management
As outlined above, during consultation some concerns were raised about construction management,
as such a Construction Management Plan condition will be required should planning permission be
granted, which will cover both traffic and environmental management during demolition and
construction.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is acceptable in highways and transport
terms and accords with Policy BCS10 of the Core Strategy and Policy DM23 of the SADMP.
(G) IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF IMPACT ON TREES?
Policy BCS9 and Policy DM17 confirm the benefits of trees and landscaping in development
proposals. Specifically, the provision of additional trees will be expected as part of the landscape
treatments of new developments.
The application proposes the removal of 5no. trees (4no. category C and 1no. category U tree) which
would require replacement with 13no. replacement trees or a financial contribution of 13 x £765.21 =
£9,947.73.
Landscaping is a reserved matter for the application however the Applicant has committed to
replacing the trees on site and this would be secured via the S106 and detailed landscape condition to
be added as a condition that any reserved matters application must address. It is therefore considered
that the proposed development is acceptable in terms of trees in accordance with Policy BCS9 of the
Core Strategy and Policy DM17 of the SADMP.
(H) DOES THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ADOPT AN APPROPRIATE APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION?
Policy BCS13 sets out that development should contribute to both mitigating and adapting to climate
change, and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.
Policy BCS14 sets out that development in Bristol should include measures to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions from energy use by minimising energy requirements, incorporating renewable energy

Page 62

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
sources and low-energy carbon sources. Development will be expected to provide sufficient
renewable energy generation to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from residual energy use in the
buildings by at least 20%.
Policy BCS15 sets out that sustainable design and construction should be integral to new
development in Bristol. Consideration of energy efficiency, recycling, flood adaption, material
consumption and biodiversity should be included as part of a sustainability or energy statement.
The Energy and Sustainability Strategy submitted with the application demonstrates that through the
use of PV panels across the development, a carbon dioxide saving of 20.81% can be achieved, which
aligns with the policy requirement. Other sustainable features of the site include the provision of
electric charging points and the plant room layout has been future proofed so it can connect to the
district heat network.
In conclusion the proposed development is considered to be in accordance with Policies BCS13-15 of
the Core Strategy.
CONCLUSION
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that a determination made
under the planning acts must be made in accordance with the Development Plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.
The proposed development would deliver 60no. residential dwellings and 215sqm of flexible office
floorspace on previously developed land, in a highly sustainable location and would make a significant
contribution to Bristol’s housing needs and supply.
The Applicant has also worked proactively with the Council during the determination of the planning
application and since the last Committee meeting to reduce the impact of the proposed scheme which
is considered to be acceptable. The Applicant has also confirmed that they have a right of access to
the site via The Vincent car park and Officers consider that the continued use of this access for the
proposed development would be acceptable from an amenity perspective both during construction
and operation. TDM has also raised no objection to the access from a highway safety perspective.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development Plan
and the NPPF, when read as a whole. The starting point is therefore that permission should be
granted in accordance with the statutory presumption in favour of the Development Plan. The policies
of the Development Plan relevant to decision making in this application are considered to be broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given significant weight.
Applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF Paragraph
11(d)(ii) means that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the
NPPF taken as a whole.
In the assessment of this application, balancing the benefits and disbenefits detailed in this report,
Officers consider that the impacts of granting planning permission would not significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Development Plan and
NPPF.

Page 63

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
This means that the application would constitute sustainable development, and this is a material
consideration in favour of the proposed development. In the assessment above it is considered
sufficient to outweigh the limited conflicts identified with the Development Plan.
With these points in mind it is the Officer Recommendation that planning permission should be
granted, subject to the obligations and conditions as listed below. However, should the Committee
members still be minded to refuse the planning application the following reason for refusal is
suggested:
1. The proposed development would result in unacceptable harm to the residential amenity of
surrounding occupiers by virtue of its proposed access through The Vincent car park contrary to
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Bristol Core Strategy (2011).
CIL
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay?
The CIL liability would be calculated at the reserved matters phase.
RECOMMENDATION

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

(A) That the Applicant be advised that the Local Planning Authority is disposed to grant planning
permission, subject to the completion, within a period of six months from the date of this
committee, or any other time as may be reasonably agreed with the Service Director, of a
planning agreement made under the terms of Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended), entered into by the Applicant, Bristol City Council and any other
interested parties to cover the following matters:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)

12no. affordable dwellings including 9no. one bed social rent flats and 3no. two bed shared
ownership flats;
£6,000 – contribution to upgrade the public footpath and set of steps onto Westbury Road;
£25,000 – contribution to upgrade Black Boy Hill bus stops C and D;
£3,735 – contribution for Travel Plan Management and Audit Fee or Travel Plan
Implementation Fee; and
£9,947.73 – contribution for 13no. trees in accordance with the Tree Replacement Schedule.

(B) That the Head of Legal Services be authorised to conclude the Planning Agreement to cover
matters in recommendation (A).
(C) That on completion of the Section 106 Agreement, planning permission be granted subject to
the following conditions:
CONDITIONS
1. Reserved Matters
Approval of the details of the appearance and landscaping (hereinafter called "the reserved matters")
shall be obtained from the council in writing before any development is commenced.
Reason: This is outline permission only and these matters have been reserved for the subsequent
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Page 64

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
2. Outline Permission
Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the council before the expiration of 3
years from the date of this permission.
The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than the expiration of 2 years from the date of
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.
Reason: As required by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
3. Reserved Matters – Landscape (Soft and Hard)
As part of the landscaping reserved matters application details of treatment of all parts on the site not
covered by buildings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The site shall be landscaped strictly in accordance with the approved details in the first planting
season after completion or first occupation of the development, whichever is the sooner. Details shall
include:



A scaled plan showing all existing vegetation and landscape features to be retained and trees
and plants to be planted;
Location, type and materials to be used for hard landscaping including specifications for:
a. permeable paving/ hard surfacing
b. Stockholm tree planting pits within areas of hard landscaping (Structural stone and
Biochar).
c. Soil aeration vents
d. Structural soil type, organic matter (Biochar) and clay composition
e. Sustainable urban drainage integration through root zone



A table illustrating the following details:
b. The soil volume available for each tree.
c. The soil volume required for each tree, when fully grown / mature.






Tree planting pit design in accordance with the Stockholm tree planting system.
Rain water and drainage routes incorporated into SUDs layout to supply water to the tree
planting pits.
A schedule detailing sizes and numbers/densities of all proposed trees/plants;
Specifications for operations associated with plant establishment and maintenance that are
compliant with best practise; and

There shall be no excavation or raising or lowering of levels within the prescribed root protection area
of retained trees unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Unless required by a
separate landscape management condition, all soft landscaping shall have a written five year
maintenance programme following planting. Any tree(s) that die(s), are/is removed or become(s)
severely damaged or diseased shall be replaced and any new planting (other than trees) which dies,
is removed, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years shall be replaced. Unless

Page 65

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
further specific permission has been given by the Local Planning Authority, replacement planting shall
be in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: Required to safeguard and enhance the character and amenity of the area, to provide
ecological, environmental and bio-diversity benefits and to maximise the quality and usability of open
spaces within the development, and to enhance its setting within the immediate locality in accordance
with DM15 and DM17
Pre-commencement conditions
4. Construction Management Plan – Major Developments
No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction management
plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The plan must demonstrate the adoption and use of the best practicable means to
reduce the effects of noise, vibration, dust and site lighting.
The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction period. The
plan/statement shall provide for:













A construction programme including phasing of works;
24 hour emergency contact number;
Hours of operation;
Expected number and type of vehicles accessing the site:
o Deliveries, waste, cranes, equipment, plant, works, visitors;
o Size of construction vehicles;
o The use of a consolidation operation or scheme for the delivery of materials and goods;
o Phasing of works;
Means by which a reduction in the number of movements and parking on nearby streets can
be achieved (including measures taken to ensure satisfactory access and movement for
existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during construction):
o Programming;
o Waste management;
o Construction methodology;
o Shared deliveries;
o Car sharing;
o Travel planning;
o Local workforce;
o Parking facilities for staff and visitors;
o On-site facilities;
o A scheme to encourage the use of public transport and cycling;
Routes for construction traffic, avoiding weight and size restrictions to reduce unsuitable traffic
on residential roads;
Locations for loading/unloading, waiting/holding areas and means of communication for
delivery vehicles if space is unavailable within or near the site;
Locations for storage of plant/waste/construction materials;
Arrangements for the turning of vehicles, to be within the site unless completely unavoidable;
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;

Page 66

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR













Swept paths showing access for the largest vehicles regularly accessing the site and
measures to ensure adequate space is available;
Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;
Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians);
Arrangements for temporary facilities for any bus stops or routes;
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;
Procedures for maintaining good public relations including complaint management, public
consultation and liaison;
Arrangements for liaison with the Council’s Pollution Control Team;
Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants . This must also take into account the
need to protect any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility to air-borne
pollutants;
Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes;
Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses; and
Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.

All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such other place as
may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out only between the following
hours: 08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays and 08 00 and 13 00 Hours on
Saturdays and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2 : 2009 Noise and Vibration Control on
Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbance from construction works.
Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway and amenity of surrounding
occupiers in the lead into development both during the demolition and construction phase of the
development
5. Highway Condition Survey
No development shall take place (including investigation work, demolition, siting of site
compound/welfare facilities) until a survey of the condition of the adopted highway has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The extent of the area to be
surveyed must be agreed by the Highways Authority prior to the survey being undertaken. The survey
must consist of:



A plan to a scale of 1:1000 showing the location of all defects identified;
A written and photographic record of all defects with corresponding location references
accompanied by a description of the extent of the assessed area and a record of the date,
time and weather conditions at the time of the survey.

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until any damage to the
adopted highway has been made good to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any damage to the adopted highway sustained throughout the development
process can be identified and subsequently remedied at the expense of the developer.

Page 67

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
6. Noise Insulation
No commencement of use shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme of noise insulation measures for all residential
accommodation from external noise sources, this scheme shall also include details of ventilation.
The scheme of noise insulation measures shall take into account the recommendations detailed in the
Noise Assessment submitted with the application.
The approved details shall be implemented in full prior to the commencement of the use permitted
and be permanently maintained.
Reason: To protect residential amenity.
7. Artificial Lighting (external)
No development shall take place until a report detailing the lighting scheme and predicted light levels
at neighbouring residential properties has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.
Artificial lighting to the development must meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting
Installations in table 2 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Lighting, GN01:2011.
Reason: To protect residential amenity.
8. Further Site Assessment
A site-specific risk assessment and intrusive investigation shall be carried out to assess the nature
and extent of any site contamination and whether or not it originates from the site. The investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings
must be produced. The results of this investigation shall be considered along with the reports
submitted with the original application. The written report of the findings shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works (except demolition) in
connection with the development, hereby approved, commencing on site. This must be conducted in
accordance with the Environment Agency’s Land Contamination: risk management and BS
10175:2011 + A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both during
the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together
with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
9. Submission of Remediation Scheme
No development shall take place (except demolition) until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the
site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health,
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment has been prepared, submitted
to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and
site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated

Page 68

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both during
the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together
with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
10. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no occupation of the development shall take place until the
approved remediation scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local Planning
Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme
works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (otherwise known as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of the
remediation carried out must be produced and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination both during the construction phase and to the
future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
11. Protection of Retained Trees During the Construction Period
No work of any kind shall take place on the site until the protective fences have been erected around
the retained trees in the position and to the specification shown on the Assured Trees, tree Protection
Plan (Dwg 200908-HG-TPP-NB&AM) Once installed photos should be electronically sent to the Local
Authority Case Officer, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA in order that the
council may verify that the approved tree protection measures are in place when the work may
commence. The approved fence(s) shall be in place before any equipment, machinery or materials
are brought on to the site for the purposes of the development and shall be maintained until all
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Within the fenced
area(s) there shall be no scaffolding, no stockpiling of any materials or soil, no machinery or other
equipment parked or operated, no traffic over the root system, no changes to the soil level, no
excavation of trenches, no site huts, no fires lit, no dumping of toxic chemicals and no retained trees
shall be used for winching purposes. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies,
another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species, and
shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the council.
Under no circumstances should the tree protection be moved during the period of the development
and until all works are completed and all materials and machinery are removed. Landscaping works
within protected areas is to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority and carried out when all other
construction and landscaping works are complete.
Reason: To protect the retained trees from damage during construction, including all ground works
and works that may be required by other conditions, and in recognition of the contribution which the
retained tree(s) give(s) and will continue to give to the amenity of the area in line with Policy DM17.

Page 69

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
12. Arboricultural Supervision
Prior to the commencement of development, a pre-commencement site meeting shall be held and
attended by the developer's arboricultural consultant and the designated site foreman to discuss
details of the working procedures. A schedule of visits shall be drawn up to ensure the Project
arboriculturist is present during key stages of the development which include, but not limited to:
Ground protection and level changes within the Root protection area of T01.
Site visits must be carried out during the key stages identified above. Copies of written site notes
and/or reports detailing the results of site supervision and any necessary remedial works undertaken
or required shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to
occupancy. Any approved remedial works shall subsequently be carried out under strict supervision
by the arboricultural consultant immediately following that approval.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be retained onsite will not be damaged during the construction works and to ensure that as far as possible the work
is carried out in accordance with current best practice.
13. Arboricultural Method Statement – During construction
The applicant/developer shall ensure that all works within the root protection area of retained trees,
must follow the detailed methodology with the Assured Trees arboricultural method statement. In the
instance that major roots are found then further consultation with an arboriculturist will be required,
any changes to the specified methodology must be agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To protect the retained tree from damage during construction and in recognition of the
contribution which the retained tree gives and will continue to give to the amenity of the area.
14. Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
No development shall take place until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy and associated detailed
design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using SuDS
methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable
Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of
surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the principles of
sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the lifetime of the
proposal.
15. To ensure implementation of a programme of archaeological works
No development shall take place until the applicant/developer has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has
been submitted by the developer and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; and:


The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording

Page 70

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR






The programme for post investigation assessment
Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording
Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the site
investigation
Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site investigation
Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out
within the Written Scheme of Investigation.

Reason: To ensure that archaeological remains and features are recorded prior to their destruction.
16. Structure Adjacent To/Within 6m of the Highway
No development shall take place until an Approval In Principle (AiP) Structural Report setting out how
any structures within 6 metres of the edge of the adopted highway (and outside of this limit where the
failure of any structures would affect the safety of road users) will be assessed, excavated,
constructed, strengthened or demolished has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the works safeguard the structural integrity of the adopted highway during the
demolition and construction phase of the development.
17. Broadband
Prior to commencement, evidence that the development will provided with ‘next generation
broadband’ shall be presented to the Local Planning Authority through provision of an installation
order placed with BT, Virgin Media, or an alternative provider. Registration should show the speed
rating/specification of the connection.
Prior to occupation, the development shall be connected to the broadband infrastructure to achieve
the speeds stated.
Reason:
To show that residents and businesses will have access to ultrafast broadband from occupation.
18. PV
Prior to implementation, details of the proposed PV system including location, dimensions, design/
technical specification together with calculation of annual energy generation (kWh/annum) and
associated reduction in residual CO2 emissions shall be provided within the Energy Statement.
Prior to occupation the following information shall be provided:
Evidence of the PV system as installed including exact location, technical specification and projected
annual energy yield (kWh/year) e.g. a copy of the MCS installer’s certificate.
A calculation showing that the projected annual yield of the installed system is sufficient to reduce
residual CO2 emissions by 20% as shown in the approved Energy Statement (Method Consulting,
Dec 2019).

Page 71

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate change and
to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions
19. Energy and Sustainability in accordance with statement
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures, renewable
energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into the design and
construction of the development in full accordance with the approved plans, energy and sustainability
strategy (Method Consulting, Dec 2019) thermal comfort analysis (Method consulting, Sept 2020),
and technical note (Method Consulting, 15th June) prior to occupation. A total 26% reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions beyond Part L 2013 Building Regulations in line with the energy hierarchy
shall be achieved, and a 20% reduction reduction in carbon dioxide emissions below residual
emissions through renewable technologies shall be achieved
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and can adapt
to a changing climate in accordance with policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BC14 (sustainable
energy), BCS15 (Sustainable design and construction), DM29 (Design of new buildings)
20. Nesting Birds
No clearance of vegetation or structures suitable for nesting birds, shall take place between 1st March
and 30th September inclusive in any year without the prior written approval of the local planning
authority. The authority will require evidence provided by a suitably qualified ecological consultant
that no breeding birds would be adversely affected before giving any approval under this condition.
Where checks for nesting birds are required, they shall be undertaken by a qualified ecological
consultant no more than 48 hours prior to the removal of vegetation or the demolition of or works to
buildings.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected. All species of wild birds,
their eggs, nests and chicks are legally protected until the young have fledged.
Pre-occupation conditions
21. Travel Plan – Not Submitted
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a Travel Plan
comprising immediate, continuing and long-term measures to promote and encourage alternatives to
single-occupancy car use has been prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented, monitored and reviewed in
accordance with the agreed Travel Plan Targets to the satisfaction of the council.
Reason: In order to deliver sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single occupancy
car journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking & cycling.
22. Car Park Management Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a car park
management plan setting out how the car park will be managed has been prepared, submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall thereafter be implemented in
accordance with the approved car park management plan for the lifetime of the development.

Page 72

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Reason: To ensure the safe operation of approved car park(s).
23. Car Lift Management Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a car lift management
plan setting out how the car lift will be used and managed has been prepared, submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall thereafter be implemented in
accordance with the approved car lift management plan for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure the safe operation of approved car park(s) and car park lift.
24. Waste Management Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a waste management
plan setting out how waste will be stored and collected has been prepared, submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall thereafter be implemented in
accordance with the approved waste management plan for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure appropriate waste management facilities are provided to accommodate all waste
generated by the development.
25. Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities – Shown on
approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the refuse store and
area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved plans have been
completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials
associated with the development shall either be stored within this dedicated store/area, as shown on
the approved plans, or internally within the building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse
or recycling material shall be stored or placed for collection on the adopted highway (including the
footway), except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises; protect the general
environment; prevent any obstruction to pedestrian movement and to ensure that there are adequate
facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.
26. Completion of Vehicular Access - Shown on approved plans
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means of vehicular
access has been constructed and completed in accordance with the approved plans and the said
means of vehicular access shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
27. Completion of Pedestrian and Cyclists Access - Shown on approved plans
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means of access for
pedestrians and cyclists have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans and shall
thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Page 73

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
28. Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on approved plans
No building hereby permitted shall be occupier or the use commenced until the car/vehicle parking
area shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, the area shall be kept free of
obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles associated with the development.
Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development.
29. Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision – Shown on approved plans
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle parking
provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept free of
obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.
30. To ensure completion of a programme of archaeological works
No building shall be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation assessment has been
completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved
under condition 14 and the provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and
archive deposition has been secured.
Reason: To ensure that archaeological remains and features are recorded and published prior to their
destruction
31. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time that had not previously been identified when
carrying out the approved development, it must be reported immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
Environment Agency’s Land Contamination: risk management guidance and BS 10175:2011 +
A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice. Where remediation is
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which ensures the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended
use of the land after remediation.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report
must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The
Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the
remediation scheme works.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other off-site receptors.

Page 74

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
32. Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall be at
least 5 dB below the background level as determined by BS4142: 2014 Methods for rating and
assessing industrial and commercial sound.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises.
33. Bird and Bat Boxes
Prior to occupation of the development details provided by a qualified ecological consultant shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority providing the specification,
orientation, height and location for bird nesting and bat roosting opportunities shown on a site plan
with compass directions marked on it. This shall follow the recommendations set out in Clarkson and
Woods, Ecological Survey Report, Land at Home Gardens dated December 2019. Bird boxes shall be
installed to face between north and east to avoid direct sunlight and heavy rain. Bird boxes shall be
erected out of the reach of predators and at least 3.5 metres high on publicly accessible sites. For
small hole-nesting species bird boxes shall be erected between two and four metres high. Bat boxes
shall face south, between south-east and south-west. Bat boxes shall be erected at a height of at
least four metres on appropriate trees, close to hedges, shrubs or tree-lines and avoid well-lit
locations. Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.
34. Artificial Lighting (external)
No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied of use commenced until a report detailing the
lighting scheme and predicted light levels at neighbouring residential properties has been submitted to
and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Artificial lighting to the development must conform to requirements to meet the Obtrusive Light
Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental Zone - E2 contained within Table 1 of
the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Lighting, GN01, dated
2005.
Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining residential occupiers.
35. Public art
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a Public Art Plan shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include information on the
commissioning, integration of public art within the development, timetable for those works and details
of the future maintenance responsibilities and requirements. The delivery of public art shall then be
carried out in full accordance with the agreed Public Art Plan unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: to ensure the provision of public art within the scheme in pursuance of BCC's public art
policy.

Page 75

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Post Occupation
36. Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities (ground floor commercial uses only)
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables shall only take place between 08.00 and
20.00 Monday to Saturday.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises.
37. Deliveries (ground floor commercial uses only)
Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises.
38. Air permeability
Prior to occupation evidence should be provided to show that the air permeability rate of 3m3/m2.hr
@50 Pa has been achieved, including the provision of copies of the air testing certificates to be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: The air permeability will contribute to the overall efficiency, energy demand and emissions of
greenhouse gases of the scheme. To ensure that the development achieves the level of energy
efficiency specified in the Energy Statement with reference to policies BCS13 and BCS14.
39. List of Approved Plans and Drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the application as
listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in order to discharge other
conditions attached to this decision:
0100 D Site Location Plan, received 6 February 2020
0102 R Proposed Site Plan, received 21 June 2021
0110 K Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan – Residential, received 21 June 2021
0111 L Proposed Ground Floor Plan – Office and Residential, received 8 April 2021
0112 L Proposed First Floor Plan – Residential, received 21 June 2021
0113 L Proposed Second Floor Plan – Residential, received 21 June 2021
0114 L Proposed Third Floor Plan – Residential, received 21 June 2021
0115 M Proposed Fourth Floor Plan – Residential, received 18 August 2021
0145 E Proposed Site Sections, received 21 June 2021
0146 Proposed Site Sections Existing Footpath, received 21 June 2021
0110 K Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan – Residential – Plant Room Sketch, received 21 June
2021
Air Quality Assessment, received 6 February 2020
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, received 6 February 2020
Arboricultural Method Statement, received 2 December 2020
Broadband Connectivity Statement, received 6 February 2020
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment, received 8 April 2020
Design and Access Statement – Part 1-3, received 6 February 2020
Design and Access Statement Addendum, received 2 December 2020
Drainage Strategy, received 2 December 2020

Page 76

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
Ecological Survey, received 6 February 2020
Energy and Sustainability Strategy, received 2 December 2020
Geoenvironmental Desktop Study – Parts 1-4, received 2 December 2020
Heritage Statement, received 6 February 2020
Internal Daylight Assessment, received 21 June 2021
Noise Assessment, received 2 December 2020
Planning and Housing Statement, received 6 February 2020
Report of Community Involvement, received 6 February 2020
Revised Room Schedule, received 2 December 2020
SUDS Drainage Approach, received 6 February 2020
Supplementary Statement, received 2 December 2020
Thermal Comfort Analysis, received 2 December 2020
Transport Assessment, received 6 February 2020
Transport Technical Note, received 2 December 2020
Sustainability Comments Response, received 21 June 2021
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

ADVICES
Outline planning permissions
You are advised that this is an outline planning permission only and that the approval of the reserved
matters relating to appearance and landscaping are required to be submitted. You are reminded that
for major development proposals you are required to demonstrate the processes you have carried out
in terms of pre application community involvement and submit a Community Involvement Statement
(CIS) (to be submitted as a separate titled document) as part of a planning application submission.
This should also be carried out on proposals that are of significance locally, regardless of their scale.
A CIS should demonstrate that the views of the local community have been sought and taken into
account in the formulation of your reserved matters proposals. Be advised that there is emphasis on
the early involvement of the community at the “ideas” stage of the plan or the development
preparation process i.e. before proposals are fixed and whilst significant options are still open.
The Bristol Neighbourhood Planning Network (BNPN) can help identify the appropriate community
group(s) to involve and offer further advice on the overall process.
Nesting Birds
Anyone who takes, damages or destroys the nest of any wild bird whilst that nest is in use or being
built is guilty of an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and prior to commencing work
you should ensure that no nesting birds will be affected.
Bats and bat roosts
Anyone who kills, injures or disturbs bats, obstructs access to bat roosts or damages or disturbs bat
roosts, even when unoccupied by bats, is guilty of an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981, the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 and the Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.)
Regulations. Prior to commencing work you should ensure that no bats or bat roosts would be

Page 77

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 20/00542/P : Land At Home Gardens Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6UR
affected. If it is suspected that a bat or bat roost is likely to be affected by the proposed works, you
should consult Natural England (0845 6003078).
Highway Condition Survey
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of a Highway Condition Survey. To agree
the extent of the area to be surveyed contact the Highway Authority’s Transport Development
Management Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk
Sustainable Drainage System (SUDS)
The development hereby approved includes the construction/provision of a sustainable drainage
system. You are advised to contact the Highway Authority’s Flood Risk Management Team at
flood.data@bristol.gov.uk before any works commence.
Structure Adjacent To/Within 6m of the Highway
The development hereby approved includes the construction of structures adjacent to or within six
metres of the adopted highway. You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted
highway you must prepare and submit an AiP Structural Report.
You will be required to pay technical approval fees (as determined by the proposed category of
structure to be assessed) before the report will be considered and approved. Contact the Highway
Authority’s Bridges and Highway Structures Team at bridges.highways@bristol.gov.uk
Travel Plan Statement / Travel Plan – Not Submitted
You are advised that a Travel Plan Statement / Travel Plan is required to be prepared and submitted
using the Travel Plan Guide for New Developments and the associated templates at
www.bristol.gov.uk/travelplans
PV System
The projected annual yield and technical details of the installed system will be provided by the Microgeneration Certification Scheme (MCS) approved installer.
The impact of shading on the annual yield of the installed PV system (the Shading Factor) should be
calculated by an MCS approved installer using the Standard Estimation Method presented in the MCS
guidance.

Page 78

Supporting Documents
1.

Land At Home Gardens

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

0102 R Proposed Site Plan
0111 L Proposed Ground Floor Plan – Office and Residential
0145 E Proposed Site Sections
0146 Proposed Site Sections Existing Footpath
Access Statement

Page 79

Notes

34

33

32

31

22 2 2 2
3 4 5 2
6 27 28 2
9

21

20

30

D
A
O
R
E
V
O
R
G

LP

SN

This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

9

96780

6
5

12

13

14

96810

15

16

17

18

19

8

7

96540

4

97150

97100

3

10

Page 80

11

97180

97070
96683

2

NEW COLLECTION POINT

e
s
4
u
o
1 t ton Ho
l
r
a
C

1

01

02

04
94690

96017

07

Pegasus Life Boundary

AMENITY

08
BALCONY AMENITY

ST

93120

95684

AMENITY

27

AMENITY

Denotes extent of
application area

94600

94140

5
7

Extent of application area

PROPOSED TREE

R
Q
P

28

1 to 14
Harper House

06

L
L
I
H
S
T
N
E
C
N
I
V

9

Sim
ply
Ho health
use

05

27a

03

AMENITY

EV Charging Points

96350

95850

09.06.21
02.06.21
01.06.21

CJ
CJ
CJ

CJ

EV charge points allocated.
Corner balcony omitted
Balcony numbers reduced follwoing
reconsultation comments.
Roof added to Block B
Block A updated to include 1B2P
units.
Scale Bar
Footprint revised to accommodate
parking space 08
Sheet increased. Additional highway
context added. Footpath offset
around new waste collection.
Internal layout and openings
coordinated.
Internal arrangement modelled.
Drainage runs added.
Block A and B layouts reconfigured
Landscape Update
Planning submission
Drawing update to reflect existing
access.
Arboricultural information added.
Plan updated.
Boundary line updated. NE edge.

N 16.02.21
M 11.02.21

CJ
CJ

L
K

22.01.21
30.10.20

CJ
CJ

J

19.10.20

CJ

H

02.09.20

CJ

G

24.08.20

CJ

F
E
D
C

05.08.20
05.05.20
04.02.20
16.12.19

CJ
CJ
CJ
CJ

B

29.11.19

CJ

A

06.11.19

Init

Notes

1
AMENITY

PLANTERS

4

AMENITY

AMENITY
95360
NEW GATED RAILING

Rev Date

5

95210

Fil
lin
g
St
ati
on

PC

Step
s

N

or
th

2

0

DP
DP
DP
IJ
IJ
IJ
IJ
IJ

IJ
IJ
IJ
IJ

Chkd

2

4

6

8

10

SCALE 1:200

m

Client

211

inspired
environments
London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB
RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Fn

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill

D

se
u
o
lH
o
o
h
c
S
The

213

Drawing Title

Proposed Site Plan

7

r
e
t
l
She

Drawing Originator

Scale

Sheet

Drawn

Checked

Date

As indicated

A0

CJ

IJ

10/08/18

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

AWW-A-DWG-BLA

0102

Revision

R

01

Notes
This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

1

95850

02

Amenity

Pegasus Life Boundary

65 m²

Dentotes extent of application area

03

07

2B4P

08

70 m²

04

PROPOSED TREE

Departments

05

1B2P
2B4P

1 to 14
Harper House

Amenity

Car Lift

06

WC / Shower

95684

1B2P
53 m²

Amenity
29 m²

1B2P

Dentotes extent of
application area

54 m²

Cycles
18 m²

UP

Amenity
21 m²

50 m²

Extent of application area

1B2P

360 240 240
140

50 m²

94500

Cycles

2B4P

2B4P

70 m²

70 m²

Amenity
22 m²

1100

16 m²

Amenity

15 m²

13 m²

1100

Refuse

Amenity
2B4P

14 m²

70 m²

L
K

16.02.21
11.02.21

CJ
CJ

J

30.10.20

CJ

H

19.10.20

CJ

G

02.09.20

CJ

F
E
D
C
B

05.08.20
05.05.20
04.02.20
16.12.19
29.11.19

CJ
CJ
CJ
CJ
CJ

A

15.11.19

AO

Plant area and WC added to block A
Block A updated to include 1B2P
units.
Footprint revised to accommodate
parking space 08
GF parking space 08 omitted.
Numbers coordinated.
Internal layout and openings
coordinated.
Block A and B layouts reconfigured
Landscape Update
Planning submission
Plant and core updated.
Arboricultural information added.
Plan updated.
Reconfiguration of single story units
into maisonette flats.

IJ
IJ

Notes

Chkd

Amenity
8 m²

Rev Date

94500

Init

1
or
th

Plant

N

7 m²

0

1

2

3

IJ
IJ
IJ
IJ
IJ

IJ

4

5

SCALE 1:100

m

WC / Shower
11 m²

Client

Drawing Originator

95360

inspired
environments

NEW GATED RAILING

London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB

Office
215 m²

RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill
Drawing Title

Proposed Ground Floor Office & Residential

Fil
lin
g
tat
ion

215

94000

Scale

1 : 100

Step
s

PC

Page 81

1B2P

Sheet

Drawn

Checked

Date

A1

AO

IJ

15/11/19

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

AWW-A-DWG-BLA

0111

Revision

L

Notes
This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

125149
124031

31
32
33
34

20
21

22 2 2 2
3 4 5 2
6 27 28 2
9

30

120208

6

9

5

C

D

2

3

4

11
10

15
14

13
12

18
17
16

19

8

7

116208

Sim

111600

111300

9

112870

1 to 14
Harper House

ply
Hou health
se

1

se
4
1 to ton Hou
Carl

PC

St ep

s

Fill
St ing
atio
n

110010

C

D

choo
he S

l Ho

use

106300

T

Key Plan - Sections
1 : 1500

101300

93350

Page 82

Section AA - Cranked.
1 : 200

125149
124031

120208

117408
116208

Queen Victoria House
The Vincent QVH Roof Extension

The Vincent
North Block

114600
113030
112380

112870

112390
111600

111000

The Vincent South Block

110010

Ridge Line Former St John's Parochial School
106300

109770
4

107890

E

01.06.21

CJ

D
C

16.02.21
11.02.21

CJ
CJ

B
A

05.08.20
29.06.20

Rev Date

DP

CJ
CJ

Balcony numbers reduced follwoing
reconsultation comments.
Trees added
Block A updated to include 1B2P
units.
Block A and B layouts reconfigured
Drawing sheet updated

Init

Notes

Chkd

IJ
IJ
IJ
IJ

107700

106812

2

0

2

4

6

8

10

SCALE 1:200

3

m

104160
Client

2

100740

100100

98600

Carlton House
1

97690

99600

97970
Drawing Originator

96700
94690

95350
93800

94500

inspired
environments

G

No. 6

No. 27-28

London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB

Blue line denotes Westbury Road
B

RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill
Block A - Extent Shown Dashed
Simply Health - Indicative Floor Plates

Section BB - Cranked.
1 : 200

Harper House

Block B incl. Lower GF Parking & GF Extent

St Vincent's Cottages

Drawing Title

Proposed Site Sections - Iteration
3
Scale

Sheet

Drawn

Checked

Date

As indicated

A1

CJ

IJ

22.06.20

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

0145

Revision

E

Notes

31
32
33

6

9

C

D

2

3

4

11
10

5

14
13
12

17
16
15

19
18

8

7

34

20
21

22 2 2 2
3 4 5 2 2 2
6 7 8 2
9

30

This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

9

Sim

1 to 14
Harper House

ply
Hou health
se

1

4
se
1 to ton Hou
Carl

PC

St ep

s

Fill
St ing
atio
n

3
0146
D

Sch
T he

oo l

H ou

se

C

Key Plan - Sections CC & DD
1 : 1500

Soft landscaping and boundary fence outside
of application area retained as existing.
Petrol station and retaining structure outside of
application area retained as existing.

94950
94500
Proposed Landscaping (Illustrative)

Existing Path

New Boundary Treatment - Railing

Page 83

Section CC
1 : 100

Rev Date

Init

Notes

1

0

Chkd

1

2

3

4

SCALE 1:100

5
m

Client

Soft landscaping and boundary fence outside
of application area retained as existing.

Drawing Originator

inspired
environments

Petrol station and retaining structure outside
of application area retained as existing.

New Boundary Treatment - Railing

London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB

94500

RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill

Existing Footpath
Verge Planting

Drawing Title

Proposed Site Sections - Existing
Footpath

Section DD

3 - Section Through Path

1 : 100

1 : 25

Scale

Sheet

Drawn

As indicated

A1

Author Checker

Checked

Date

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

AWW-A-DWG-BLA

0146

Revision

ELIZABETH BLACKWELL PROPERTIES LTD

LAND AT HOME GARDENS, BLACKBOY HILL, BRISTOL

OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
BUILDINGS AND THE ERECTION OF TWO NEW BUILDINGS CONSTITUTING UP
TO 60 RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND FLEXIBLE OFFICE SPACE

LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY REFERENCE: 20/00542/P

SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT ON ACCESS ISSUES

SEPTEMBER 2021

Page 84

1

Introduction

1.1

This supplementary statement has been prepared on behalf of Elizabeth Blackwell
Properties Ltd, the applicant for a planning application (LPA Ref: 20/00542/P) seeking
outline planning permission for the demolition of existing buildings (1-4 Home Gardens, 1-2
The Bungalows and associated garages and outbuildings) and the erection of two new
buildings constituting up to 60 residential units (Class C3) (including 20% affordable housing)
and flexible office space at land at Home Gardens, Blackboy Hill, Bristol. Details of access,
scale and layout are for determination now, with appearance and landscaping reserved for
future consideration.

1.2

The application submission followed extensive pre-application dialogue with the Council, as
well as substantial engagement with local residents and stakeholders, which have both
taken place over a period of a number of years. The submitted proposal was directly
influenced by the various discussions that took place pre-submission.

1.3

The proposal will deliver much needed housing and flexible office space suitable for a small
business in a sustainable location, where people can live and work with good access to high
quality walking and cycling links, public transport and open space. It is sensitively designed
and sited reflecting the planning constraints and opportunities of the site.

1.4

Since submission of the application more than 18 months ago, the applicant has continued
its constructive approach towards bringing forward proposals for the site and has made
various amendments to the proposals as a response to comments from both officers and
consultees.

1.5

This resulted in the application being reported to the Development Control Committee B
meeting on 1 September 2021 with an officer recommendation for approval.
Notwithstanding the comprehensive and robust recommendation for approval, which
followed 18 months of discussion with officers and others, the Committee resolved to defer
a decision on the application in order to give further consideration to access issues.

1.6

The purpose of this supplementary statement is to respond to and clarify some of the issues
that were raised by Members relating to access considerations. These include rights of
access and land ownership, and more detail relating to the existing access arrangements and
what they serve.

2

Access Rights & Land Ownership

2.1

It was confirmed by Council officers during the Committee meeting that whether an
applicant owns all of an application site, and/or has all necessary rights of access, is not a
material consideration in terms of the planning merits of the application. It is a separate
mater to be dealt with outside of the planning process. However, the applicant is more than
happy to clarify the position here.

Page 85

2.2

Appendix A to this statement is a note that has been prepared by Ashford’s Solicitors and
sets out in detail the relevant ownership and rights of access position. It also includes a plan
which is contained within an agreement entered into between, among others, the applicant
and Pegasuslife Development Limited.

2.3

An extract from the plan included at Appendix A is provided below:

Plan 1: Extract from Supplemental Agreement Plan

2.4

The green shading on the plan identifies the land where Pegasuslife Development Limited
has granted rights of access to the applicant. The purple and blue shading identifies land that
Pegasuslife Development Limited has transferred ownership to the applicant. The other land
within the application site was already owned by the applicant.

2.5

It will be clear from the above, and the content of Appendix A, that the applicant has a
combination of land ownership and access rights that, together, provide for all necessary
access to the proposed development.

2.6

It is worth noting that these access rights and land ownerships already exist today and have
for some time. They are not dependent upon the approval of this planning application.

2.7

Finally on this matter, it will be clear from Appendix A that the current position regarding
both land ownership and access rights was agreed with Pegasuslife Development Limited.

Page 86

3

Use of Access

3.1

The starting point here in considering the use of the access is that it is an existing access,
rather than being a new access created to serve the development. As noted above, the
applicant already has an existing right of access, which serves a number of buildings as well
as 30 car parking spaces.

3.2

This is an important baseline for assessing the access impacts of the development – i.e. the
baseline position here is that there are already many vehicles using this access on a daily
basis and the application proposals must be assessed on this basis, rather than on the
assumption that a new access is being proposed generating vehicle trips in a location that
doesn’t currently have any.

3.3

Appendix B includes a plan showing the existing site layout, including the car parking and
buildings that the current access serves (see extract below).

Plan 2: Extract from Existing Site Plan Showing Access Rights

3.4

It will be clear from this plan that the existing access already serves a number of buildings
and associated car parking spaces.

Page 87

3.5

Elements of the land and buildings served by the existing access can also be seen in the
following photographs, which clearly show the existing access and some of the applicant’s
land that it serves.

Photo 1: Access into application site from Queen Victoria House

Photo 2: View of part of car park and The Bungalows

Photo 3: View towards Harper House

3.6

Under the application proposals part of the existing surface level car parking will be removed
as will some existing buildings, all of which are currently served by the existing access

Page 88

3.7

The existing vehicular access will be unchanged as part of the application proposals and will
serve 34 car parking spaces (the majority of which will be located under the main building).

3.8

The proposed layout is shown on the plan at Appendix B and an extract is provided below.

Plan 3: Extract from Proposed Site Plan Showing Access Rights

3.9

Therefore, in practical terms the only change from the existing situation is that the access
would serve 34 parking spaces, instead of the current 30 on the application site.

3.10

The physical configuration of the existing access does not require any alteration to serve the
proposed development. This will be evident from the existing and proposed site plans
included at Appendix B.

3.11

By any reasonable assessment, it can only be concluded that any additional vehicle trips
generated by the net change of just four additional car parking spaces would not be material
and certainly could not lead one to the conclusion that such use would warrant refusal of
planning permission. Such a view is supported by the Council’s Transport Development
Management Team.

Page 89

4

Construction Traffic Impacts

4.1

A few comments were raised at the committee meeting regarding the potential impacts on
local residents through construction of the proposed development.

4.2

Presenting officers confirmed at the meeting that, in assessing any planning application, it is
the planning merits of the proposed development once completed that is relevant rather
than how the development is constructed. Nevertheless, a planning condition requiring
submission of a Construction Management Plan can be reasonable under certain
circumstances and the applicant accepts that would be the case here.

4.3

The applicant can reassure site neighbours that, if planning permission is granted and the
development is progressed, it would take its commitment to being a good neighbour
seriously. It would ensure that the appointed contractor follows established good practices
and it would prepare and submit a Construction Management Plan for Council approval prior
to commencing any work.

4.4

The Construction Management Plan would include, inter alia, hours of construction, timing
of deliveries and how and where materials would be stored.

4.5

Whilst the site has some physical constraints, there have been many developments
successfully brought forward elsewhere in the city where sites have been far more
constrained and neighbours are in closer proximity. It is also noteworthy that land adjoining
the application site (both to the north and east has been the subject of recent significant
development).

5

Summary & Conclusions

5.1

This supplementary statement has been prepared on behalf of Elizabeth Blackwell
Properties Ltd relating to a planning application seeking outline planning permission for the
demolition of existing buildings and the erection of two new buildings constituting up to 60
residential units (Class C3) and flexible office space at land at Home Gardens, Blackboy Hill,
Bristol. It responds to some of the access issues that were raised by members of the
Development Control Committee B when it considered the application on 1 September
2021.

5.2

It will be clear from this statement that the applicant has the land ownership and access
rights that provide for all necessary access to the proposed development and that they exist
today. They are not dependent upon the approval of this planning application.

5.3

The access for the proposed development is an existing access, rather than a new access
created to serve the development. The existing access serves a number of buildings as well
as 30 car parking spaces.

Page 90

5.4

The existing vehicular access will remain unchanged as part of the application proposals and
will serve 34 car parking spaces. Therefore, the only change from the existing situation is
that the access would serve four additional parking spaces. Any additional vehicle trips
generated by these additional car parking spaces would not result in any material impact on
the use of the existing access.

5.5

The application proposals will deliver much needed housing and flexible office space suitable
for a small business on a brownfield site in a highly sustainable location, where people can
live and work with good access to high quality walking and cycling links, public transport and
open space. They will also deliver various financial contributions towards public transport
and pedestrian improvements in the area.

5.6

The proposals have been the subject of extensive consultation and technical assessment and
Council officers have concluded that the application should be approved when assessed
against national and local planning policy provisions.

Page 91

APPENDIX A – ASHFORDS SOLICITORS NOTE ON
ACCESS RIGHTS & OWNERSHIP

Page 92

Land at Home Gardens - Planning Application Ref: 20/00542/P

This note is intended to provide confirmation of the access rights enjoyed on the development site.
Relevant Land Registry Titles
1. BL145257 Registered in the name of Elizabeth Blackwell Properties Limited (10562155)
Property: Harper House, Redland Hill, Redland, Bristol
2. BL153436 Registered in the name of Elizabeth Blackwell Properties Limited (10562155)
Property: Land Lying to the east of 1-4 Home Gardens, Redland Hill, Redland, Bristol
3. BL95250 Registered in the name of Elizabeth Blackwell Properties Limited (10562155)
Property: Land at 1-4 Home Gardens, Redland Hill, Redland, Bristol
4. AV247649 Registered in the name of Pegasuslife Development Limited (09340939)
Property: Queen Victoria House, Redland Hill, Bristol

The land included within the red line of the Site Development Plan falls under the ownership of both
Elizabeth Blackwell Properties Limited (EBPL) and Pegasuslife Development Limited (Pegasus).
The access road that is in question is within the registered title number AV247649 and, broadly (but not
wholly), is the land to the east and north of the property marked Harper House on the Site Location Plan
and also registered title BL145257.
The rights
EBPL have a right of access over land belonging to Pegasus.
Previous rights were contained in a Conveyance of the land dated 19 March 1992 (the “1992
Conveyance”). The relevant rights in the 1992 Conveyance are as follows:
Schedule 2: The Rights Granted “A right of way for the Purchaser and its successors in title to the
Property and those expressly or impliedly authorised by them with or without vehicles at all times and
all purposes connected with the use of the Property over and along the Accessway and Footpaths”.
The relevant document that confirms EBPL’s right of access over the relevant land belonging to Pegasus
is a Supplemental Agreement dated 6 August 2019 made between (1) Elizabeth Blackwell Properties
Limited (2) Mehrdad Toussimanesh (3) Trym Properties (Guernsey) Limited and (4) Pegasuslife
Development Limited (the “Deed of Variation”) which varies the terms of the 1992 Conveyance.
The Deed of Variation (at clause 2.2 and 2.3) released the rights granted by the 1992 Conveyance in
respect of the rights of way and granted the rights as set out at clause 13 in the transfers annexed to
the Deed of Variation.
Clause 13 of the two transfers provide:
13.1 “There are granted for the benefit of the Transferee’s Combined Site a right of way for the
Transferee and its successors in title to the Transferee’s Combined Site and those expressly or impliedly
authorised by them at all times and for all purposes connected with the use of the Transferee’s
Combined Site over and along the Accessway on foot and (in relation to that part of the Accessway
which is laid out for vehicular use) with vehicles together with a right to manoeuvre and turn vehicles
(over that part of the Accessway which is laid out for vehicular use)…….”
Accessway is defined in the Transfers as “that part of the Retained Land as shown shaded green on the
Plan”.

Page 93

The Plan is the one annexed to the Transfer and seen in the Supplemental Agreement as the Revised
Layout Plan which is attached for reference. Referring to that plan, the part shaded green is on land
belonging to Pegasus and is the land that the access rights have been granted over. This gives both
pedestrian and vehicular access from Redland Hill Road to the development site.
Considering the Revised Layout Plan alongside the Site Location Plan you can see that the shaded
green area covers the access way to the north and east of Harper House.
Essentially it is the same right of access as that contained in the 1992 Conveyance but varied to allow
for the transfer of land that occurred subject to the 2019 transfers noted above.
Registration of Rights
These rights have been registered against all of the relevant registered titles named above.
Summary
It is clear that the development site benefits from rights of access which are set out clearly in the 2019
transfers and which are registered against all of the relevant titles.

Page 94

Page 95

APPENDIX B – AWW Drawings

Page 96

Notes

LP

SN

This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

Rights of Way Granted to Elizabeth
Blackwell Properties Ltd

Land Transferred to Elizabeth
Blackwell Properties Ltd

31
32

D
A
O
R
E
V
O
R
G

6

9

4
3

10

Page 97

11

5

12

13

14

15

16

19

8

7

34

21
17

33

20
18

22 2 2 2
3 4 5 2
6 27 28 2
9

30

D
A
O
R
E
V
O
R
G

Ownership Boundary

2

97.05

se
4
u
o
o
t
1 ton H
l
r
a
C

1

1
2
3
4

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

5

10

11

13

14

ST

27

0
.4 /
0/
12
0
0
.4 /
0/

0
.2 /
0/
1
0/ 2
.2
0/
0

7

1

Rev Date

CJ

Home Gardens parking layout shown CJ
to reflect current arrangement.

Init

Notes

or
th
N

0

Chkd

2

4

6

8

10

SCALE 1:200

m

Client

Fil
lin
g
St
ati
on

Step
s

She
lter

Drawing Originator

213

inspired
environments

211

London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB
RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Fn

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill

D

D
A
O
R
D
N
A
T
S
CAB

e
s
u
o
H
l
oo
h
c
S
e
h
T

23.09.21

2

PC

5

A

4

215

Sh
elte
r

7

r
e
t
l
e
h
S

28

9

12

15

27a

8

2
1 2
2
20
9
1
18
7
1
16

ILL
H
S
T
N
E
C
VIN

5

1 to 14
Harper House

7

23

9

Sim
ply
h
Ho ealth
use

6

Drawing Title

Existing Site Plan with Rights of
Access
Scale

Sheet

Drawn

Checked

Date

As indicated

A0

CJ

-

16.09.21

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

0105

Revision

A

Notes

LP

SN

This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

Rights of Way Granted to Elizabeth
Blackwell Properties Ltd

Land Transferred to Elizabeth
Blackwell Properties Ltd

34

33

32

31

22 2 2 2
3 4 5 2
6 27 28 2
9

21

20

30

D
A
O
R
E
V
O
R
G

Ownership Boundary

9

96780

6
5

12

13

14

96810

15

16

17

18

19

8

7

96540

97100

3

10

11

Page 98

97150

4

97180

97070
96683

2

NEW COLLECTION POINT

se
4
u
o
o
t
1 ton H
l
r
a
C

1

01

02

04
94690

96017

07

Pegasus Life Boundary

AMENITY

08
BALCONY AMENITY

ST

93120

95684

AMENITY

Denotes extent of
application area

27

AMENITY

94600

94140

5
7

Extent of application area

28

1 to 14
Harper House

06

ILL
H
S
T
N
E
C
VIN

9

Sim
ply
h
Ho ealth
use

05

27a

03

AMENITY

EV Charging Points

96350

95850

1
AMENITY

25

PLANTERS

4

AMENITY

AMENITY
95360

A

23.09.21

Rev Date

CJ

Legend updated

CJ

Init

Notes

Chkd

NEW GATED RAILING
95210

0

2

4

6

8

10

SCALE 1:200

m

Fil
lin
g
St
ati
on

Client

Drawing Originator

213

inspired
environments

211

London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB
RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Fn

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill

D

e
s
u
o
H
l
oo
h
c
S
e
h
T

7

r
e
t
l
e
h
S

PC

Step
s

N

or
th

5

2

Drawing Title

Proposed Site Plan with Rights of
Access
Scale

Sheet

Drawn

Checked

Date

As indicated

A0

CJ

-

16.09.21

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

0106

Revision

A

Notes

6
4

10

1

3

11

5

12

13

14

15

16

9

8

7

This drawing may be scaled for the purposes of Planning Applications, Land
Registry and for Legal plans where the scale bar is used, and where it verifies that
the drawing is an original or an accurate copy. It may not be scaled for
construction purposes.
Always refer to figured dimensions. All dimensions are to be checked on site.
Discrepancies and/or ambiguities between this drawing and information given
elsewhere must be reported immediately to this office for clarification before
proceeding. All drawings are to be read in conjunction with the specification and
all works to be carried out in accordance with latest British Standards / Codes of
Practice.

Rights of Way Granted to Elizabeth
Blackwell Properties Ltd

2

2

97.05

4

se
4
u
o
o
t
1 ton H
l
Car

1

1
2
3
4

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

Land Transferred to Elizabeth
Blackwell Properties Ltd

Ownership Boundary

Photograph Location / Direction

5

3

11

14

0
.4 /
0/
12

0
.2 /
0/
1
0/ 2
.2
0/
0

10

13

ST

0

9

12

15

0
.4 /
0/

8

2
1 2
2
0
9 2
1
8
7 1
1
16

L
L
I
H
S
T
N
E
C
N
I
V

5

1 to 14
Harper House

7

23

9

Sim
ply
h
Ho ealth
use

6

7

Existing Site Plan Parking Provision
1 : 200

Page 99
A

24.09.21

Rev Date

View 02: Towards Carlton House and Existing Buildings

Photographs repositioned

CJ

Notes

Chkd

2
N

or
th

View 01: Towards Home Gardens and Including Harper House

CJ
Init

0

2

4

6

8

10

SCALE 1:200

m

Client

Drawing Originator

inspired
environments
London - 106 Weston Street, SE1 3QB
Plymouth - East Quay House, PL4 0HX
Bristol - pivot + mark, 48 – 52 Baldwin Street, BS1 1QB
RIBA Chartered Practice

020 7160 6000
01752 261 282
0117 923 2535

www.aww-uk.com

Project Title

Land at Home Gardens, Redland
Hill
Drawing Title

Home Gardens Parking Provision
as Existing

View 03: Towards Carlton House

View 04: Aerial View from Harper House

Scale

Sheet

Drawn

As indicated

A1

CJ

Checked

Date

23.09.21

Status

Project No.

PLANNING

3823

Drawing Reference

Drawing No.

0104

Revision

A

Agenda Item 8b
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021

ITEM NO. 2

WARD:

Filwood

SITE ADDRESS:

Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol BS4 1JT

APPLICATION NO:

21/00816/F

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
6 July 2021
DEADLINE:
Partial demolition of existing building (Broad Plain House) and erection of 47 affordable homes (22
flats and 25 houses) including associated public open space, parking, infrastructure and access
onto Broadbury Road.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

Rapleys LLP - Bristol
21 Prince Street
Bristol
BS1 4PH

APPLICANT:

Curo Places Ltd
The Maltings
River Place
Lower Bristol Road
Bath
BA2 1EP

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

04/10/21 12:20

Page 100

Committee report

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
The application has been deferred to the Planning Committee due to the number of
objectionsreceived. 96 Letters of objection have been received.
BACKGROUND
The Site extends to 0.9ha and comprises buildings associated with Broad Plain House
(former community building), an associated multi-use games area (MUGA), and an area
of disused green space. With the exception of the far south western corner of the site
(owned by Bristol City Council) the use of the site has historically been associated with a
charity (Highbury Mission) providing youth facilities. This use ceased approximately eight
years agoand the site has been vacant in the intervening period.
The south western corner of the site, which is identified by Bristol City Council as
semi natural green space, has become overgrown with dense vegetation, nettles
andbrambles.
The eastern boundary of the site fronts Broadbury Road while the southern and northern
boundaries of the site are formed by neighbouring residential properties. To the south
east of the site fronting Broadbury Road is an L shaped building which is used as a
Social Club (Broad Plain Social Club). The Social Club does not fall within the site
boundary and will beretained in its current use.
The Site lies within the Filwood Ward, to the south of Bristol within the Knowle,
Filwoodand Windmill Hill Neighbourhood Partnership Area.
HISTORY
19/00002/PREAPP Proposed partial demolition of existing Broadplain House, retaining the
socialclub. 100% Affordable scheme of 47 new build residential dwellings with associated
parking, infrastructure and landscaping. A mix of houses and flats, 70% as shared ownership
(major)
PROPOSAL
Partial demolition of existing building (Broad Plain House) and erection of 47 affordable homes (22
flats and 25 houses) including associated public open space, parking, infrastructure and access
ontoBroadbury Road.
STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The NPPF highlights the benefits of good engagement during the preapplication process in
paragraph39:
"Early engagement has significant potential to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of the planning application system for
all parties. Good quality pre-application discussion enables better
coordination between public and private resources and improved
outcomes for thecommunity."
The NPPF also states that local planning authorities have a key role to play in encouraging
otherparties to utilise to the maximum the preapplication services they offer and, where not
already required to do so by law, should encourage applicants to engage with the local
community before submitting a planning application (Paragraph 40).

Page 101

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
The Bristol City Council's Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) approved in November
2015outlines the ways in which local communities and stakeholders should be involved in the
consideration of planning applications inBristol; it also outlines how the SCI should summarise
the outcomes of the consultation process.
The SCI gives guidance on appropriate methods of engagement and the level of
communityinvolvement encouraged by BCC for major planning applications.
Concerns have been raised regarding the Statement of Community involvement and that
communityengagement was unsatisfactory. It appears that community pre-application community
involvement may have been improved however not unacceptable.
The level and methods of pre-application community engagement have been sufficient in enabling
local residents and stakeholders to inform the design stage and provide feedback on the
subsequentproposals; and was carried out in accordance with the policy guidance set out in the
NPPF and localguidance within the BCC.
SCI.
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION
Neighbouring properties have been consulted and no letters of support have been received and
96letters of objections have been raised with the following planning concerns:
Design:
Existing elevations are the proposed
elevations.
Amenity:
Lack of Sections submitted as site could be raised 1 metre resulting in overlooking issues
toneighbouring sites.
Concerns of overshadowing and overbearing impact to neighbouring properties.
The apartments are 3 storeys high. There are no drawings to show the impact on the social
clubwhich is single storey.
Highway:
Congestion issue around Broadbury / Leinster junction
Parking already a problem. Proposal is double yellow lines along Broadbury Rd
Transport information is insufficient and for the wrong site (reference appendix
E)Concerns regarding waiting restrictions on adjacent roads
Concerns have been raised regarding the loss of
Greenspace.Loss of playing field and play equipment.
Ecology:
Concerns of impact on wildlife.
Concerns that a statement has not been raised.

Page 102

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
Knotweed is on the site. The strategy is to use herbicides which could harm the animals on site
Other:
Lack of facilities in the area such as Greengrocers and Cash Points
Lack of infrastructure regarding school facilities and doctors surgeries in the area.
New drains will go to the existing pipework. Concerns regarding historical issues of over spilling.
Concerns of lack of consultation to local residents. (Planning officer comment: the initial 21 day
neighbour consultation was sent out later than anticipated however all statutory neighbour
consulteeswere consulted).
WARD MEMBER
No response from the Ward Member consultation period expired.
KNOWLE WEST FUTURES

Objection
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Concerns with the Planning Application final layout
Concerns of no alternative provision for the MUGA or Sports Field. Concerns about Wildlife,
Ground Investigations and Unexploded Ordinance and the Topigraphical Survey in
particularthat these documents have not been placed on the Planning Portal.
Concerns about effects on Local Residents.
Japanese knotweed remediation
Transport related issues
Statement of Community Involvement

HIGHWAYS
TDM have no objection to the proposals subject to conditions.
CITY DESIGN GROUP
No objections in principle however suggestions raised to improve the revised plans.
SPORT ENGLAND
Objection
POLLUTION CONTROL
No objections subject to conditions
CONTAMINATED LAND
No objection subject to conditions.
FLOODRISK MANAGER
No objection.
NATURE CONSERVATION
Requested a Biodiversity Net Gain Study and further studies however no further comments
providedregarding the additional submitted information.
ARBORICULTURAL CONSULTANT
No objections.

Page 103

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
SUSTAINABLE CITIES
No objection subject to conditions
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and
DevelopmentManagement Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central
Area Plan (Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood
Development Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the
Hengrove and Whitchurch Park Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019.
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
KEY ISSUES
A)

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

Section 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) outlines that housing applications
shouldbe considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. With
focus on asocial objective to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a
sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and future
generations; and by fostering a well -designed and safe built environment, with accessible services
and open spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities' health, social and
cultural well being.
Policy BCS5 (Housing Provision) of the Core Strategy outlines that delivery of housing to meet the
Council's housing targets will primarily be focused on previously developed sites however some
open space will be utilised for housing development. The strategy by which the Council will allow
development of open space is set out within the Site Allocations & Development Management
Policies(SADMP) Local Plan.
Policy DM1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) of the SADMP outlines that the
city's approach to development proposals will generally be positive and reflective of the
presumptionin favour of sustainable development as referenced throughout the NPPF.
The site falls within the Filwood, Knowle and Windmill Hill Neighbourhood Partnership Area and is
allocated for residential development under site ref. BSA118 (Broad Plain House and associated
land,Broadbury Road) with an estimated capacity of 50 dwellings. The Annexe states that
development on the site should:
o Be informed by an ecological survey of the site and, where appropriate, make
provision formitigation measures;
o Be designed to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residential properties;
o Explore opportunities for allotments / food growing;
o Be informed by a site-specific flood risk assessment as the area of the site is greater than 1
hectare.This is a requirement of the Government's National Planning Policy Framework.
The site allocation includes the land occupied by the existing social club. This part of the
allocationdoes not form part of the application and will be retained in its existing use.
The Knowle West Regeneration Framework (KWRF) was published in October 2012 and
sets out theobjectives and investment principles to improve the regeneration area. This is a
material consideration. The site is outlined on the Regeneration Framework Plan as an area
for new development (new homes and green areas). Area wide proposals include:
o Community involvement;

Page 104

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
o Housing retrofit: including investment in the existing housing stock (private & social)
o to address space standards, thermal comfort, running costs, and energy security;
o Street Improvements
o Parks and Trees: Transforming the public and private open spaces of
Knowle West,includes local food production, street trees and community
orchards;
o School extensions and public art; and
o Social regeneration
The site forms a component of delivery strategy for South Bristol (Core Strategy Policy BCS1),
whichis a priority focus for development and comprehensive regeneration, particularly focused on
the areaat Knowle West and Hengrove Park. Development in this area will require redevelopment
of poor quality urban form in some locations to support the creation of higher quality environments.
Policy BCS5 sets a housing target of 8,000 new homes in South Bristol in the plan period to 2026.
The site is identified for housing within the Knowle West Regeneration Framework (KWRF), which
hasbeen prepared to support the overarching objective to significantly improve and revitalise the
area with new development, boosting the local economy. The principle of redeveloping the site is
fully supported via its allocation in the adopted SADMP (Site Allocation BSA1118). Full weight is
afforded to the allocation of the site to deliver housing and to meet wider regeneration targets.
The Core Strategy (BCS1) recognises that development in South Bristol will primarily occur on
previously developed land. However, the delivery of new homes and regeneration will require
theplanned release of some open space sites which do not need to be retained as part of the
area'sgreen infrastructure provision. The majority of the site is previously developed. The area
of open space in the southwestern corner of the site is poorly maintained and makes a very
limited contribution towards the City's Green Infrastructure network.
The site is located within an area of existing residential development. The site has good access to
the local road and public transport network. The nearest bus stop is located less than 50 meters to
the north of the site and runs along Leinster Avenue and Creswick Road (approximately 400 meters
to thesouth east) providing a service to Hengrove, Brislington, Bristol City Centre, the University of
the Westof England, Patchway, Cribbs Causeway, Bradley Stoke and Aztec West.
Concerns have been raised regarding lack of facilities in the area such a healthcare and
educationalhowever the proposal is not considered large enough to warrant further evaluation of
provision of facilities. A Health Impact Assessment is only required on sites over 100 units.
It is in a sustainable location where national and local plan policies encourage the more efficient
useof land, subsequently the redevelopment of the site for residential use is acceptable in
principle.
i)

Protection of Community Facilities

The proposed development includes the demolition of existing buildings (Broad Plain House) and
theredevelopment of the associated green space and MUGA, which is described within The
existing Social Club to the southeast of the site would be retained in its current use.
Policy BCS12 of the Core Strategy states that community facilities should be retained in such
use unless it can be demonstrated that there is no longer a need to retain the use. Policy DM5
of the SADMP (Protection of Community Facilities) seeks to protect community facilities except
in limitedcircumstances.
The allocation in the Local Plan is for housing with no provision in the allocation for any retention
or re-provision of a community facility (Site Allocation Information Annex Ref BSA1118 page

Page 105

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
138). Theprinciple of housing development and the loss of any community facility is established
by the allocation; so DM5 is not applicable and would not have weight in this case.
The site is included in the Knowle West Regeneration Framework Plan which indicates new homes
and green areas. Allocations in the Knowle West area arose from the regeneration framework
process which ran alongside local plan preparation and was agreed by the council in 2012.
ii)

Protection of Playing Field

The pre-application feedback identifies the historic use of the green space as playing pitches as
illustrated on Google Earth images dated 2007 and 2014. The MUGA on the site is also identified.
During the pre-app Sport England commented "The site lends itself to being a 7v7 pitch aimed at
minisoccer u9/u10 with a pitch 55m x 37m (or 61m x 43m with 3m safety margins). We
acknowledge that the site is not the right size for a 9v9 youth pitch for u11/u12 73m x 46m (79m x
52m with 3m safety margins). Or larger 11v11 football pitch".
Sport England considers proposals affecting playing fields in light of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) (in particular Para. 97) and against its own playing fields policy, which states:
'Sport England will oppose the granting of planning permission for any development which would
leadto the loss of, or would prejudice the use of:
o all or any part of a playing field, or
o land which has been used as a playing field and remains undeveloped, or
o land allocated for use as a playing field
unless, in the judgement of Sport England, the development as a whole meets with one or more
offive specific exceptions:
Sport England Policy Exceptions
E1
A robust and up to date assessment has demonstrated, to the satisfaction of Sport England, that
thereis an excess of playing field provision in the catchment, which will remain the case should the
development be permitted, and the site has no special significance to the interests of sport.
E2
The proposed development is for ancillary facilities supporting the principal use of the site as a
playingfield, and does not affect the quantity or quality of playing pitches or otherwise adversely
affect their use.
E3
The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing pitch and does
not:
o
o
o
o
o

reduce the size of any playing pitch;
result in the inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of
adequatesafety margins and run-off areas);
reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to accommodate playing pitches or
thecapability to rotate or reposition playing pitches to maintain their quality;
result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities on the site; or
prejudice the use of any remaining areas of playing field on the site.

E4
The area of playing field to be lost as a result of the proposed development will be replaced, prior
tothe commencement of development, by a new area of playing field:

Page 106

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT

o
o
o
o

of equivalent or better quality, and
of equivalent or greater quantity, and
in a suitable location, and
subject to equivalent or better accessibility and management arrangements.

E5
The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor facility for sport, the provision of which would
be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport as to outweigh the detriment caused by the loss,
orprejudice to the use, of the area of playing field.
The Council's Play Pitch Strategy 2017-2022 (PPS) confirms that the overall quantity of pitches (i.e.
playing field space) in the city is adequate to meet current and future demand, albeit there is an
undersupply of 'good quality' pitches. The PPS confirms that there is sufficient playing field land in
thecity but the challenge is to find sustainable cricket pitch solutions.
While the PPS identifies a need for more marked junior and mini football pitches (as most play on
adult pitches), the size and shape of the green space to the rear of Broad Plain Hose is substandard.In accordance with guidelines set out by Sport England and the FA, the green space
could barely accommodate a single 7-aside mini-pitch with very limited space beyond the minimum
size requirement.
It appears that the loss of the former playing field generally complies with Exception E1 as set out
bySport England. The Playing Pitch Strategy has not identified a shortfall of marked pitches in the
City.The site's potential use for marked junior or mini pitches would be very limited and it can be
considered the site has no special significance to the interests of sport.
On that basis it would be unreasonable to request the retention of the playing field and MUGA
orrequest alternative provision.
However Sport England objects to the application because it is not considered to accord with any
ofthe exceptions to Sport England's Playing Fields Policy or with Paragraph 97 of the NPPF.
Sport England has commented that they have no plans to call the application in to the Secretary of
State if it is recommended for approval. Despite the objection raised it appears that in this case
SportEngland may not be a statutory consultee. Sport England's status as a statutory consultee
emanatesfrom provisions within the TCP General Development Management Procedure Order
2015 (GDMPO)(Schedule 4 Paragraph Z):
Sport England is to be consulted before the grant of planning permission in respect of proposals that:
1. Prejudice or cause the loss of land being used as a playing field (at the time of the application); or
2. Prejudice or cause the loss of land which has been used as a playing field five years before
theapplication was made.
A 'playing field' is defined by the GDMPO as "a whole site which includes at least one playing
pitch" with a playing pitch being a delineated area (marked out) as a pitch of at least 0.2ha area this caninclude land used as a football pitch or for other formal sports purposes.
The site appears to have ceased to be used as a community facility between 2011 and 2013 in
itsentirety.
o Sport England provided photographic evidence showing a marked-out pitch on the site in
2014, butno evidence of such in February 2016.
o There appears no evidence that a pitch existed on the site in February 2016, at which point

Page 107

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
the landhad not been in use as a community facility for three years; any such formal
demarcation of a pitch did not subsist at the qualifying date and therefore SE appear to have
no status as a statutory consultee on the application under the terms of the GDMPO (which
is the relevant consideration).
B)

IS THE MIX OF HOUSING, ITS TENURE AND DENSITY ACCEPTABLE?

Policy BCS18 (Housing Type) of the Core Strategy states that all new residential development
shouldmaintain, provide or contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help support
the creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities.
The application proposes a mix of 1 and 2-bedroom flats, and 2 and 3-bedroom houses.
The application seeks permission for 47 homes on 0.9 hectares at a density of 50dph which
isconsidered acceptable.
The proposed dwellings would therefore represent an appropriate mix and would therefore
bewelcomed in this location.
C)

AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Policy BCS17 of the Core Strategy sets out that for residential developments of 15 dwellings or
more,the Council will seek 30% of the dwellings to comprise affordable units. Where the scheme
viability will be affected, a reduced provision will be accepted when demonstrated by a full
development appraisal.
This application seeks permission for 47 homes all of which will be affordable as defined by Annexe
2of the NPPF. The proposed tenure split across the site is: 66% shared ownership (31 units), 23 %
social rented (11 units) and 11% affordable rent (5 units). Further details are contained within the
Affordable Housing Statement supporting the application.
Overall, the proposed development would deliver an extra affordable units beyond the
policyrequirement.
D)

KEY ISSUES

i)

ECOLOGY

Policy DM19 is relevant which requires any loss of nature conservation value to be either mitigated
onsite or off site.
The Biodiversity Assessment concludes there is an overall Biodiversity net loss for the site.
Howevera Biodiversity Net Gain Strategy has not yet been adopted by BCC and cannot be applied
until 2023.The BNG calculator does not yet have force in policy terms nationally or locally and
therefore shouldnot be determinative. In contrast, the scheme is fully in accordance with relevant
local and national policy at the time this application will be determined.
However in order to support ecology onsite the following mitigation measures have been
proposed;
o

o

The scheme will incorporate a number of positive ecological features that are not
considered as part of the calculation (e.g. bird nest boxes, hedgehog shelter,
reptile hibernaculum etc).
The scheme will result in the removal of several stands of the non-native invasive
species Japanese knotweed. Any use of herbicides should be undertaken in a way to
not harm on siteecology. However it would be unreasonable for knotweed to be
removed outside of the site boundaries.

Page 108

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
o

o

The scheme would have achieved a net gain if it had included scrub planting instead
of the proposed hedgerows. However, in the context of residential development in
an urbanised landscape in which the site is located, hedgerow planting was
considered to be more in keeping withthe expectations of residents and therefore
more likely to be secured in the long-term. It will also fulfilmany of the same
ecological niches and benefits to wildlife provided by scrub.
A Greenwall is proposed and has been conditioned on the corner of units 1-3 on
thecorner of the proposed site frontage.

It is considered that the proposal is considered acceptable and would not result in a loss of
natureconservation and complies with Policy DM19.
ii)

CONTAMINATION

Policy DM34 in the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (2014) states that
newdevelopment should demonstrate that:
i.Any existing contamination of the land will be addressed by appropriate mitigation measures to
ensure that the site is suitable for the proposed use and that there is no unacceptable risk of
pollutionwithin the site or in the surrounding area; and
ii. The proposed development will not cause the land to become contaminated, to the detriment
offuture use
Based on the assessment carried out to date, it is clear that suitable site remediation works can be
undertaken to ensure that the contamination, and subsequently the risk to human health, is
eliminated from the site in line with policy DM34.
Concerns have been raised that Ground Investigations and Unexploded Ordinance and the
Topographical Surveys have not been uploaded, these documents have now been
uploaded.Following consultation, the Council's Contaminated Land team confirmed that the
proposed development is acceptable following conditions.
iii)

IS THE IMPACT ON TREES ACCEPTABLE?

Policy DM17 of the Development Management Policies refers to the integration of existing trees
into development. It states that where tree loss is accepted, replacement provision in line with the
BristolTree Replacement Standard (BTRS) should be provided.
An arboricultural survey has been submitted to inform consideration of the application.
Two grade C trees and two grade C hedges will be removed in order to construct the proposed
development and one hedge will require partial removal. In this instance the applicant proposes
toplant 28 new trees and numerous hedgerows in suitable locations around the site and so
there will be no need for any financial compensation for the loss oftrees. The proposed
locations for these trees are shown on the Landscape Proposals plan and hasbeen conditioned.
E)

IS THE DESIGN OF THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE?

Section 12 of the NPPF outlines the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental
to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities. Being clear about design expectations, and how these
willbe tested is essential for achieving this. So too is effective engagement between applicants,
communities, local planning authorities and other interests throughout the process.

Page 109

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT

Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Core Strategy advocates that new development
should deliver high quality urban design that contributes positively to an area's character and
identity, whilstsafeguarding the amenity of existing development.
Policy DM26 (Local Character & Distinctiveness) of the SADMP expands upon Core Strategy
Policy BCS21 by outlining the criteria against which a development's response to local character
and distinctiveness will be assessed. Development will not be permitted where it would be harmful
to localcharacter and distinctiveness or where it would fail to take the opportunities available to
improve the character and quality of the area and the way it functions.
Policy DM27 (Layout and Form) of the SADMP outlines that the layout, form, pattern and
arrangementof streets, open spaces, development blocks, buildings and landscapes should
contribute to the creation of quality urban design and healthy, safe and sustainable places. It should
make efficient useof land, provide inclusive access and take account of local climatic conditions.
Policy DM29 (Design of New Buildings) of the SADMP states the design of new buildings should be
ofhigh quality. Buildings should reflect their function and role appropriately within the public realm
and be capable of adaptation to accommodate alternate uses and future needs. New buildings
should incorporate active frontages, have clearly defined main entrances fronting the public realm,
incorporate exteriors and elevations which provide visual interest from a range of viewing distances,
be visually well organised and well proportioned.
Proposed public open space provides a focal point within the centre of the site, delivering a
verdantcharacter that will significantly enhance the quality of the development.
All houses and maisonettes will be two storeys, with gateway apartments being three storeys. These
will include a range of bedroom sizes from one-two bed flats and maisonettes; and two-three bed
terrace and semi-detached houses.
A simple palette of materials will be utilised, reflecting the existing dwellings, whilst taking an
influencefrom the more contemporary style of certain nearby buildings, such as Carpenters Place in
Melvin Square. Subtle variety will be incorporated through changes in both building and landscape
elements to break up the generally continuous frontage. The proposed buildings are well-articulated
within the elevation due to a suitable use of scale and design for the proposed number of
inhabitants; with entrances taken directly from the public realm. Given the levels of the site and the
width of the road and separation distances from adjacent developments the proposed height of the
proposed development is considered acceptable.
However car-dominance is still a serious concern and the amount of hard standing proposed. A
stretch of more than 160m-length shared surface and more than 2,000m2 of hard surface is
proposed. A suggestion was made to mitigate this issue; the central communal green space could
be extended this can be done by omitting the adjacent turning bay and moving spaces 18 and 17
forwardand flipping the disabled bay around 180 degrees. The visitor bay can be omitted and then
the green space can be extended behind. However the applicant has not decided to take this
suggested amendment on-board or provided sufficient justification not to provide it. This is not ideal
but not considered a significant enough issue to refuse the application on design grounds.
Some issues that have been picked up with the proposed boundary treatment; such as issues with
proposed levels and the design of the proposed fences however this can be addressed by condition.
The proposed scale mass and design is considered in keeping with the character and appearance
ofthe wider area. The proposal is considered an improvement over the previous buildings and will
provide a positive contribution to the streetscene. The proposed design is considered acceptable.

Page 110

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT

F)

WILL THE DEVELOPMENT PROVIDE SATISFACTORY ACCOMMODATION?

The application proposes the creation of 22 flats and 25 houses. All dwellings comply with the
Nationally Described Space Standards and are mainly dual aspect and considered adaptable. The
houses all have access to private amenity space and all units will have access to the communal
areasof open space.
G)

WILL THE PROPOSAL HAVE AN ADVERSE IMPACT ON NEIGHBOUR AMENITY?

Section 8 of the NPPF outlines decisions should ensure that developments create places that
aresafe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well -being, with a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear
of crime, do notundermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
IMPACT ON PRIVACY
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Bristol Core Strategy advocates that new
developmentshould give consideration to matters of neighbouring privacy, outlook and natural
lighting.
Policy DM29 (Design of New Buildings) of the SADMP states the design of new buildings should be
ofhigh quality. To achieve this, new buildings are expected to ensure that existing and proposed
development achieves appropriate levels of privacy, outlook and daylight.
It is considered that the submitted plans show sufficient detail in order to gauge any potential
impacton neighbour amenity; it is considered that there are adequate separation distances
between neighbouring properties within the development given the measures outlined above.
There are no concerns regarding the proposed 3 storey units on the social club as it is not a
residentialproperty.
Proposed units 23-25 rear elevations are around 8.6 metres to the boundary of the rear gardens
of 32, 30 and 28 of St.Whytes Road this is relatively close however given the depth of existing
gardensare around 19.5 metres deep only limited views may be gained of the far end of the long
gardens which is not considered to be detrimental to neighbour amenity.
The other proposed units facing St.Whytes Road are around 10 metres away from the
boundarywhich is considered acceptable.
Proposed units 20-21 have no side windows.
The proposal is not considered to result in overlooking to neighbour amenity to a level that would
bedetrimental to living conditions.
Given the layout of the plot of land and surrounding townscape, and the subsequent design,
massing and form of the proposed dwellings and flats, it is considered that no unacceptable
amenity issues willarise.
Proposed units 20-21 are around 18 metres away from the rear of the nearest dwellings on
LeinsterAvenue.
All proposed units are considered to be a sufficient distance from neighbouring residential
properties that they would not result in a loss of light or an overbearing impact that would be

Page 111

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
detrimental to livingconditions.
It is not considered that the proposal would not result in an overbearing impact or loss of light
thatwould be detrimental to neighbour amenity.
NOISE IMPACT
Noise impacts associated with construction can be controlled through a Construction
ManagementPlan. Sound insulation of residential properties from noise has been conditioned.
Environmental Protection have suggested a Broad Plain Social Club Premises Management
Plan, the premises isoutside of the site boundaries.
Environmental protection has raised no concerns subject to conditions.
H)

IS THE DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE ON HIGHWAY GROUNDS?

Section 4 of the NPPF outlines that transport policies have an important role to play in facilitating
sustainable development but also in contributing to wider sustainability and health objectives.
Smarteruse of technologies can reduce the need to travel. The transport system needs to be
balanced in favour of sustainable transport modes, giving people a real choice about how they
travel. However, the Government recognises that different policies and measures will be required in
different communities and opportunities to maximise sustainable transport solutions will vary from
urban to rural areas.
Policy DM23 (Transport Development Management) of the SADMP outlines that new
development should not give rise to unacceptable traffic conditions and will be expected to
provide safe access tothe highway network. The policy also outlines that new development should
be accessible by sustainable transport methods such as walking, cycling and public transport.
Furthermore, the policysets standards for parking provision.
The site is accessed from Broadbury Road which is an unclassified road with a 20mph speed limit.
It has reasonably wide footways and carriageways and is of concrete construction. Parking outside
the site is generally unrestricted although there are double yellow lines to protect an informal
crossing justnorth of the site as well as 1 hour limited waiting parking adjacent to Leinster Avenue.
The TS sets out that the following facilities are available near the site:
Primary School 400m
Secondary School
500mConvenience
store 100mBus Stops
150m
Health Centre 500m
It is considered this to be a fairly good level of accessibility and as such the location is considered
inprinciple to be suitable for a medium density housing development of this type. TDM deems this
acceptable due to the sustainable location for residential development. This is based upon the
location within an established residential area and within walking distance of bus routes, shops
and facilities.
PARKING
The Bristol Local Plan: Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (adopted
July2014)(SA&DMP) details the following parking standard for the proposed use of the site:
Three or more bed/house flat: an average of 1.5 spaces per dwelling below that 1.25 spaces per

Page 112

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
dwelling. The vehicular parking provision is a maximum. This is considered acceptable. The
proposed parking arrangements are considered acceptable subject to conditions.
As summarised in the TS the development proposal comprises:
12 x 1 bed units with 1 car parking space
10 x 2 bed unit (less than 4 persons) with 1 car parking
space11 x 2 bed unit (4 persons) with 1 car parking space
14 x 3 bed unit with 2 car parking
spacesInternal shared surface design
Internal traffic calming via rumble strips
61 allocated car parking spaces, including EVCP passive provision
(4No.)8 (20%) unallocated EVCP spaces
3 (5%) unallocated Disabled parking spaces
Parking spaces have been appropriately spread across the street scene of the site according to
theirneed. The 61 proposed car parking spaces are marginally above the Local Plan standard of
59 spaces. For a suburban location such as this this level of car parking is considered appropriate.
In Summary, TDM have no objection the level of parking.

ACCESS AND LAYOUT
Nine units are located in three storey blocks that front on to Broadbury Road. A conventional
junction in to the site provides the transition to a block paved shared surface which provides the
means of access to the remainder of the site. In line with BCC guidance, the shared surface is 7.5m
wide which will allow for a service strip as well a lighting and drainage. The internal layout could be
further enhanced with the additional of planters in line with Low Traffic Neighbourhood good
practice. Houseson the south side are accessed via a continuous footway between the parking and
the housing which,it is assumed, will remain in private ownership. The internal layout has been
tracked for an 11.4m
refuse truck to enter the site (using the full width of the road) and turn using a turning head. Both
ofthese will be protected with double yellow lines to stop parking.
It appears that data within submitted Appendix E may relate to a different site however TDM
haveraised no concerns regarding the scheme in general.
The proposal is not proposed to result in a detrimental impact to the parking of the adjacent roads
orresult in a detrimental impact to Highway Safety.
CYCLE PARKING
In relation to cycle parking, Policy DM23 requires a provision of 2 cycle parking spaces per 2 or 3
beddwelling.
Policy compliant cycle parking provision via:
-

Each garden shed accommodates 2 cycle spaces = 50 spaces
The flats have 48 spaces within the 4 cycle stores
4 Sheffield stands for public use - 8 spaces.
Total = 106

TDM are happy that the development provides sufficient cycle storage provision and this has

Page 113

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
beenconditioned.
REFUSE
Policy DM32 (Recycling & Refuse Provision in New Development) of the SADMP outlines that all
newdevelopment should provide bin and recycling storage facilities fit for the nature of
development, with adequate capacity for the proposed development, in a location which is safe and
accessible for all users and does not harm the visual amenity of the area or neighbouring amenity.
Refuse and recycling storage areas for the houses and flats are suitably located to ensure
thatcollections can take place safely.
Waste and recycling facilities are provided in the form bin stores in front gardens for houses
andcommunal bins stores for the flats.
The refuse storage proposed is suitable and accessible, the collection points are a suitable
distancefrom the highway and has been conditioned.
I)

CLIMATE CHANGE

J)

ENERGY STRATEGY

Themes of sustainability, carbon reduction and climate change underpin national planning policy.
Policies BCS13-15 of the Core Strategy relates to the Councils expectations with regard to
sustainable construction of new buildings and emissions in respect of climate change. These
policies must be addressed and the guidance within the Council's Climate Change and
Sustainability Practice Note followed. New dwellings are expected to minimise energy
requirements. This will be achieved byhigh standards of energy efficiency including optimal levels
of thermal insulation, passive ventilation and cooling, passive solar design, and the efficient use of
natural resources in new buildings. Core Strategy Policy requires new dwellings are also
incorporate an element of renewable energy to reduce carbon emissions by a further 20% above
energy saving measures.
A sustainability statement and energy table have been submitted accompanying the application
including a range of proposed energy efficiency measures and further on site renewable energy
generation measures. Suggested on site renewable energy measures include both Ground Source
heatpumps which is welcomed. Sustainable cities accept the targets can be met and have requested
that further details of the proposed renewable energy sources are conditioned prior to occupation.
The design of the residential buildings will ensure that they are built to achieve up-to-date
standardsof construction and energy efficiency. The scheme delivers a comfortable micro-climate
for its occupants, neighbours and passers-by (Urban Living SPD, 2018) through providing a
positive response to the building orientation and dimensions allowing year-round day-light and
natural ventilation into the heart of the dwellings.
In addition, an effective mitigation scheme will be implemented as part of the proposals, allowing
forthe management of surface water drainage.
Following the overheating assessment measures have been included to ensure that the proposal
candeal with adaptations of a changing climate.
Electric Vehicle Point Charging has been conditioned prior to commencement to ensure that
thedevelopment meets sustainability requirements to limit increases in air pollution.
The proposed development is therefore considered acceptable and would make a
positivecontribution towards reducing energy consumption and carbon emissions.

Page 114

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT

ii)

DRAINAGE

A sustainable drainage strategy has been conditioned prior to commencement. Any draining
potentialissues should be covered in the strategy.
iii)

OTHER SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES

It is important that superfast Broadband is available to all new development. There is a commitment
inthe submission to the provision of a connectivity assessment, but this has not been received to
date. This can be conditioned.
K)

ARE THERE ANY EQUALITY ISSUES?

It is considered that the scheme is inclusive of the wider community and supports equality
anddiversity within its design.
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme
inrelation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected
characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication
orevidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would
have different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed
development.
Overall, it is considered that the determination of this application would not have any
significantadverse impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010.
L)

OTHER ISSUES

No other issues.
CONCLUSION
The proposal represents a site that has been allocated for housing be planning policy and is
situatedin a sustainable location in South Bristol in line with Policies BCS1 and BCS20 of the Core
Strategy.
The proposed design is considered in keeping and the proposal meets sustainability targets.
The Playing Pitch Strategy has not identified a shortfall of marked pitches in the City. The site's
potential use for marked junior or mini pitches would be very limited and it can be considered the
sitehas no special significance to the interests of sport. The development of the site for new
dwellings is considered to outweigh any losses.
The allocation in the Local Plan is for housing with no provision in the allocation for any retention
orre-provision of a community facility. The principle of housing development and the loss of any
community facility is established by the allocation; so DM5 is not applicable and would not have
weight in this case.
The proposed positive aspects of the proposal far outweigh any negatives and it is recommended
thatpermission be granted to the proposed development in this case.

Page 115

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS OBLIGATIONS
The proposed TRO plan in the TS indicates that waiting should be prohibited at any time at
BroadburyRoad, within the vicinity of the site access. A TRO would have to be made for that
purpose, for which a fee would be payable.
Consideration should be given to designating the whole of the internal road a Restricted Parking
Zonewhich would remove the need for yellow lines to be laid on the block-paved shared surface
and the associated maintenance problems.
The 11 unallocated spaces could be adopted, in which case, they would need to be covered by
aTRO to deter misuse and ensure they were available for their designated purposes (8 x
electric vehicle and 3 blue badge).
Broadbury Road, the internal road and the unallocated parking spaces could be covered by the
sameTRO.
Broadbury Road is subject to a 20 mph speed limit and so the same speed limit should apply to
the internal road, which would entail the making of a speed limit order, for which a separate fee
would bepayable.
So, two TROs should be funded through the s106 at a cost of £12,134 (£6,067 x 2).
Trip generation modelling has been carried out and predicts that the site would generate 23 AM
peak/20PM peak/ 185 daily vehicular trips.Whilst the levels of trips is not sufficient to warrant
detailed junction modelling we consider that an amount of mitigation would be appropriate to
maximise the useof non-car modes and in particular promote the use of buses.
As such, it is considered that it would be appropriate for this development to fund the upgrade of the
adjacent outbound bus stop on Leinster Avenue. The existing facilities are not fit for purpose, and it
can be expected that demand will increase at this stop as a result of the new development. In
addition, new and upgraded public transport facilities are required, in order to provide a more viable
alternative to the private car and to encourage modal shift. The upgrade would include the provision
ofReal-time Information displays, raised kerbs and new shelters, valued at £39,402.
The following development types will be liable for CIL:
i.
Development comprising 100m2 or more of new build floorspace
ii.
Development of less than 100m2 of new build floorspace that results in the creation
ofone or more dwellings
iii.
The conversion of a building that is no longer in lawful use
In this case, the proposed development would comprise of new build residential floor space creating
anew dwelling. The development is therefore CIL liable for £318,133.18
EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme
inrelation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected
characteristics. These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is
no indication or evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups
have or would have different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular

Page 116

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that this application would not have any significant adverse impact
upondifferent groups or implications for the Equality Act 2010.
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission

The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from thedate
of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amendedby
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
2.

Enabling Works

Prior to the grant of planning permission no works shall be undertaken other than "Enabling
Works" as here defined to include; demolition of buildings on the site, site clearance,
investigations for assessing ground conditions, remedial work in respect of any land
contamination, diversion and laying of services, erection of any temporary means of enclosure,
the temporary display of site notices or advertisements, ecology mitigation measures, offsite
highway works and such other enabling works as the Local Planning Authority shall agree in
writing ("Enabling Works")".
Reason: To permit investigation and preparation of the site prior to commencement of the
development permitted by this Decision Notice
3.

Completion of a S106 Agreement

No development shall take place or commence on any part of the site save for Enabling Works(as
defined in condition 1 of this Decision Notice) unless and until all parties with a relevant legal
interest in the relevant part of the site have entered into a planning obligation with Bristol City
Council pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)
substantially in the form of the draft Section 106 agreement appended to this Decision Notice.
Reason: Development must not commence on any part of the development site until all relevant
legal interests in the site are bound under the Section 106 agreement to ensure thatthe
development hereby approved is acceptable in planning terms."

Pre commencement condition(s)
4.

Construction Management Plan

No development shall take place until a site specific Construction Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The plan must demonstrate the adoption and
use of the best practicable means to reduce the effects of noise, vibration, dust and site lighting.
Advice
The Construction Environmental Management Plan should also include but is not limited to
reference to the following:

Page 117

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
o

o

o
o
o

All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such other
place as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out only
between the following hours: 08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays and 08
00and 13 00 Hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2 : 2009 Noise and Vibration
Control on Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbancefrom
construction works.
Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.
Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants .
Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working orfor
security purposes.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity
5.

Broad Plain Social Club Premises Management Plan

No use of development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in
writing, by the Council, a Broad Plain Social Club Premises Management Plan, setting out
details of what activities will be held in the hall, how the hall will be managed/supervised, how
residents will be informed of events in the hall and how any noise issues or complaints will be
dealt with.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity
6.

Land affected by contamination - Site Characterisation

No development shall take place until an investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application, and has been completed in accordance with a
scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it
originates on the site. The contents of the scheme should be submitted to and be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken
by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must
include:
a.

a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;

b.
*
*
*
*
*
*

an assessment of the potential risks to:
human health,
property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
andservice lines and pipes,
adjoining land,
groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

c.

an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both
during the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the

Page 118

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other
offsite receptors
7.

Land affected by contamination - Submission of Remediation Scheme

No development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a
condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings
and other property and the natural and historical environment has been prepared, submitted to
and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme mustinclude all works
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria,timetable of works and
site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both
during the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,neighbours and other
offsite receptors.
8.

Highway to be Adopted

No development shall take place until plans to a scale of 1:200 showing the following information
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
o
o
o
o
o
o

Long sections
General arrangement
Threshold levels to buildings
Drainage
Structures
Swept path for two directional movement of a 11.4m long refuse vehicle
passing a4.98m long large saloon car

Prior to occupation detailed technical plans to a scale of 1:200 setting out how the internal
access road(s) will be constructed to the Highway Authority's adoptable standard shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These works shall then be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the internal roads are planned and approved in good time to a satisfactory
standard for use by the public and are completed prior to occupation.
9.

Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)

No development shall take place until a detailed design, management and maintenance plan of
surface water drainage for the site using SuDS methods in line with the submitted Drainage
Strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable
Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory
means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the

Page 119

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the
lifetime of the proposal.
10. Prior to commencement of development, details of the Ground Source Heat Pumps (including the
exact location, dimensions, design/ technical specification) together with calculation of energy
generation and associated C02 emissions to achieve 20% reduction on residual emissions from
renewable energy in line with the approved energy statement should be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. Prior to occupation of the dwellings photographic
evidence of the installed renewable energy technologies shall be submitted and approved in writing
by the local planning authority and the technologies shall bethereafter retained.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.
11.
Provision of material samples/sample panels on site for inspection
Sample panels of all external materials including wall facing materials, external cladding, plinth,
external doors and windows including frames, sills, lintels and surrounds, door/window, decorative
features, eaves, rainwater goods demonstrating the colour, texture, face bond and pointing shall be
erected at an appropriate location on site and approved in writing by the LocalPlanning Authority
before the relevant parts of the works are commenced.
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved reference panel before the
building is occupied. The approved reference panel should be retained until the completionof the
building.
Reason: In order to ensure the quality of the design and external appearance of the building isof
high quality and compliant with the local Plan.
12. No development shall take place until (a) detailed part of elevation(s) and section(s) (for each
building) at 1:20 scale showing all typical external treatments and building elements has been
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development will be
carries out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: in order to ensure that the external appearance of the building(s) is/are satisfactory,in
accordance with quality expectations set out within the approved plans, and appropriate to the local
context (specify setting of historic asset if relevant).
13.

Landscape Details

Notwithstanding the approved plans detailed drawings including plans, sections and elevationsat a
relevant scale between 1:5 and 1:20 of the following shall be submitted to and be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of work is begun. The works shall be
carried out in accordance with that approval.
o

o
o
o

Full details of tree pit construction in highway and soft landscape areas showing
relationship to the surrounding highway and footway paving, tree grills where used,
nature ofgrowing medium, size of pits, tree support, method of anchoring and
means of irrigation to ensure the provision of optimum growing conditions for newly
planted trees.
Construction details for junctions between i) paving materials (showing changes
of level ) and ii) between areas of hard and soft landscape treatments.
Construction details of boundary treatments, retaining walls
Details of street furniture including seating, lamps

Page 120

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the proposed landscaping is acceptable.
14.

Maintenance Plan/Ecology Plan

A detailed maintenance plan to ensure establishment of the soft landscape works for the scheme
over the first 5 years should be provided and agreed with the local planning authorityprior to the
commencement of soft landscape works.
All retained and created habitats will need to be managed and a 10 year Management Plan be
prepared for those areas (As suggested in the Biodiversity Assessment) and agreed with the local
planning authority prior to commencement of ecological works.
Once agreed, the soft landscape should be maintained and ecology managed in accordancewith
these plans.
Reason: To ensure that approved landscaping scheme is maintained following its
implementation and ecology is preserved.
Pre occupation condition(s)
15.

B13 Implementation of approved remediation scheme

In the event that contamination is found, no occupation of the development shall take place until the
approved remediation scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local
Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the
remediation scheme works.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification
report (otherwise known as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectivenessof the
remediation carried out must be produced, and be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
16.

Land affected by contamination - Reporting of Unexpected Contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development
that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to theLocal Planning
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of Condition 6 and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be
prepared in accordance with the requirements of Condition 7 which is to be submitted to and be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority
in accordance with condition .
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

Page 121

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT

17.

Sound insulation of residential properties from noise

All recommendation detailed in the Noise Assessments submitted with the application with regards
to sound insulation and ventilation of residential properties shall be implemented infull prior to the
commencement of the use permitted and be permanently maintained.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity
18.
Prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved there should be submitted and
approvedin writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed layout of the PV panels to the
roofs. This should be approved by an MCS,(Microgeneration Certification Scheme),
accredited installer toensure analysis of and shading is taken into account. The analysis
shall include calculation of energy generation and associated C02 emissions to achieve at
least 20% reduction onresidual emissions from renewable energy in line with the approved
energy statement.
The PV panels shall be installed in prior to occupation of the dwellings and thereafter retained.
Reason: To address the need to reduce C02 emissions through the use of renewable energy.
19.
Prior to first occupation, evidence should be provided to the local planning authority that
thedevelopment has been registered with a high speed broadband provider and a copy of the
connectivity assessment provided.
Reason- To ensure the development is in accordance with policy BCS15, (Sustainable Designand
Construction)
20.

Management and Maintenance of Private Streets

No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until details of arrangements for the future
management and connectivity and maintenance of proposed footpaths within the site that provide
potential connectivity to the site from both Leinster Avenue and St Whytes Road hasbeen
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following occupation of the
first dwelling on the site, the streets shall be maintained in accordance withthe approved
management and maintenance details.
Reason: To ensure that all private streets and landscaped areas are appropriately managedand
maintained to ensure the safety of all users and future proofing the development for pedestrian
connectivity.
21.

Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on Approved Plans

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the car/vehicle
parking area (and turning space) shown on the approved plans has been completed and thereafter
the area shall be kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles associated with
the development. Driveways/vehicle parking areas accessed from the adoptedhighway must be
properly consolidated and surfaced, (not loose stone, gravel or grasscrete) and subsequently
maintained in good working order at all times thereafter for the lifetime of thedevelopment.
Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development
constructed to an acceptable standard.

Page 122

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT

22.

Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept free
of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.
23.
Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities - Shown on
ApprovedPlans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the refuse store and
area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approvedplans have
been completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable
materials associated with the development shall either bestored within this dedicated store/area, as
shown on the approved plans, or internally within the building(s) that form part of the application
site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored or placed for collection on the adopted highway
(including the footway), except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises; protect the general
environment; prevent any obstruction to pedestrian movement and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.

Post occupation management
24.

Travel Plan Statement - Submitted

The Travel Plan Statement hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the
measures set out therein.
Within three months of occupation, evidence of the implementation of the measures set out in
Travel Plan Statement shall be prepared, submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority unless alternative timescales are agreed in writing.
Reason: To support sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single occupancycar
journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking and cycling.
25.
The invasive plant species Japanese Knotweed was recorded on site during the
ecologicalsurveys. The guidance of the Knotweed Management Plan (Rapleys 09/10/19) should
be adhered to.
Reason: It is an offence under section 14(2) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to "plant or
otherwise cause to grow in the wild" any plant listed in Schedule 9 Part 2 of the Act.

List of approved plans
26.

List of approved plans and drawings

The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority inorder
to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.

Page 123

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
Drawing issue sheet , received 21 September 2021
11454-0002 D ENGINEERING LAYOUT , received 21 July 2021
416.05330.00044.29.001.2 Landscape proposals, received 2 March 2021 416.05330.00044.29.002.2
Hard landscape finishes and planting plan, received 2 March 2021
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Advices
1.

Noise complaints- balconies and open windows

The application has been assessed taking into account the noise from Broad Plain Social Cluband
a scheme of noise mitigation to ensure an acceptable living environment for future residents.
Future owners/occupants of the site are advised that given the matters above and that the Broad
Plain Social Club have been in operation for some time prior to this development; that itmay not be
possible to uphold any noise complaints received from future residents of the site regarding noise
impacts from Broad Plain Social Club.
2.

Street Name and Numbering

You are advised that to ensure that all new properties and streets are registered with the
emergency services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and National Land and Property
Gazetteer to enable them to be serviced and allow the occupants access to amenities including but
not limited to; listing on the Electoral Register, delivery services, and a registeredaddress on utility
companies databases, details of the name and numbering of any new house(s) and/or flats/flat
conversion(s) on existing and/or newly constructed streets must be submitted to the Highway
Authority.
Any new street(s) and property naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with the
Councils Street Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations can onlybe
issued under the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) and the Public Health
Act 1925 (Section 17, 18 & 19). Please see www.bristol.gov.uk/registeraddress
3.

Highway to be Adopted

The development hereby approved includes the construction of new highway. To be considered for
adoption and ongoing maintenance at the public expense it must be constructed to the Highway
Authority's Engineering Standard Details and terms for the phasingof the development. You are
advised that you must enter into a highway agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980.
The development will be bound by Sections 219 to 225 (the Advance Payments Code) of the
Highways Act 1980.
Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
DMengineering@bristol.gov.uk You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in
undertaking the following actions:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Drafting the Agreement
Set up costs
Approving the highway details
Inspecting the highway works

Page 124

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/00816/F : Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club Broadbury Road Bristol
BS4 1JT
To discuss the requirement for sewers contact the Highway Authority's Flood Risk Management
Team at flood.data@bristol.gov.uk You should enter into discussions with statutory undertakers as
soon as possible to co-ordinate the laying of services under any newhighways to be adopted by
the Highway Authority.
N.B. The Highway Authority's technical approval inspection fees must be paid before any
drawings will be considered and approved. Once technical approval has been granted a Highway
Agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed and thebond secured.
4.

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)

You are advised that a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is required. You must submit a plan to ascale
of 1:1000 of an indicative scheme for a TRO, along with timescales for commencement and
completion of the development. Please be aware that the statutory TRO process is not
straightforward; involving the public advertisement of the proposal(s) and the resolution of any
objections.
You should expect a minimum of six months to elapse between the Highway Authority's TRO Team
confirming that it has all the information necessary to enable it to proceed and the TRO being
advertised. You will not be permitted to implement the TRO measures until the TRO hasbeen
sealed, and we cannot always guarantee the outcome of the process.
We cannot begin the TRO process until the appropriate fee has been received. To arrange fora
TRO to be processed contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team
at transportdm@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. The cost of implementing any lining, signing or resurfacing required by the TRO is separate
to the TRO fees, which solely cover the administration required to prepare, consult,amend and
seal the TRO.

Page 125

Supporting Documents
2.

Land At Broad Plain House Lads Club, Broadbury Road

1.
2.
3.
4.

Location Plan
Proposed Planning Layout
Proposed Elevations and Floorplans
Proposed Streetscenes

Page 126

56

12

4
12

LB

9

13

Police
Station

62

0

Co No
mm ver
un s P
ity ark
Ce
nt
re

Hall

64

TCB
70

Shelters
65

Knowle West
Media Centre

El Sub Sta

Play Area

67

Knowle
Pentecostal
Church

71
69

62

73

O
BR
AD

E
EN
U
81

LE

IN
S

TE

AD

R

RO

AV

RY
BU

Broad Plain House

88

45

2

93

4

1

10
2

43

Page 127

8

D

OA

7

SR

10

5

E
YT

ST

11

11
4

20

WH

7

2

11

23

12

6

32

D

12

8

a
20

5

b
20

1

35

42

CH

A
RO

S

EP

16

W
TO

7

12

9

2

60

52

43

11

NORTH
2.5

12.5

25

50m

0

A

Red line amended as per client email - 13/06/19

Amendments

PK 17/06/19
By

Date

PLANNING
Job No/Drawing No

13319/1000A

Broadbury Road Red Line Plan

Scale
1:1250
@ A3

Date
06/19

Drawn
PK

Job Title

Broadbury Road Filwood
Drawing Title

Red Line Plan

All Dimensions to be checked on site

OS Licience No:

pad Design Ltd - The Tobacco Factory - Raleigh Road - Bristol BS3 1TF - Tel. 0117 9530059 - www.pad-design.com

4
12

190802 13319 SCH003 BROADBURY ROAD FILWOOD

9

LB

13
0

Drawing Reference: 13319/5000 PLANNING
LAYOUT

Police
Station

62
frontage/building line to
Broadbury Road

m m er
un s P
ity ark
Ce
ntr
e

Unit Number

No of Beds Area Sqft

Parking

Storeys Total Sqft

CLAVERTON - TYPE A1 & A2

12

1

552

1 Space

2&3

6624

CLAVERTON - TYPE C1 & C2

10

2

769

1 Space

2&3

7690

MILSOM 2B4P

11

2

875

1 space

2

9625

KENSINGTON 3B5P

14

3

1021

2 spaces

2

14294

C2 2B
.4P.7

69

Hall

64

Schedule of Units

1-3

3 storey gateway buildings
to site entrance

A2

TCB

.2

1B
55

P.

70

2

Shelters

6

Knowle West
Media Centre

El Sub Sta

4-

Play Area

65

5
4

67

9
7-

3

6

1

7

8

9

e
cl
cy ore
st -11
10

.2

A2

2
1B

10

55

P.

In addition:
8 no unallocated spaces with electric charging points plus 4 no allocated spaces
3 no disabled parking spaces

2

55

P.

73

45
11

2

2B
2*

E

18

15

13

18

40

0

C

44

N

R

13

3B

KE

16

14

21
.10

42

.5P

TE

3B

42
41

NS

17

15

81

LE
I

15
16

L 5
MI.4P.87

ed

2B

ar
sh

5
.87

P
B.4

2

88

17

0

18

5
.87

e

40
0

40

18

0
18

36
0
18

e

0

18

Page 128

40

e

35

0

18

5

33
40

7
P.8

.4

2B

0
18

0

18

e

.10

.5P

40

2m high close
board fence

42

Private drives/footpaths
(to engineers detail)

41

Block paving
-refer to detail landscape proposals

40
3B

33

N
KE

0
18

34

Focal open space
with natural play trail

21

L

5

L
MI

40

35

40

.10

.5P

3B

0

18

MI

21

N
KE

.87

.4P

2B

40

40

5

.87

.4P

2B

36

40

.10

.5P

3B

37

0

Macadam - adoptable footpaths
(to engineers detail)

e
38

40

18

19

0

18

38

.4P

2B

18

e
ac

rf

su

0
18

40

39

45

Min 650mm margin
between retaining wall
& site boundary
to allow for landscaping

L
MI

39

40
40

3B

L
MI

40

0

18
0

18

N 21
KE .5P.10

19

retain existing
building

40

16

18

Macadam - adoptable roads with
opportunity to change materials at
junctions and crossing points
(to engineers detail)

AD
RO

AV

14

Application red line boundary

refuse & cycle store
behind

-4
43

40

N 21
KE .5P.10

45

4

43

0

Key

RY

EN
U

3

46

BU

Broad Plain House

9

76

P.

.4

12

21

47

AD
O

0

.1
5P
B.

st

BR

M B.4

N

KE

14

n

bi

IL P.875

7
-4

62

13

.10

.5P

3B

21

38233

Allocated parking provision based on:
1 space/ 1 Bed
1 space / 2 Bed
2 spaces / 3 Bed

New access to Broadbury Road

.2
1B

47

Grand Total

PARKING

A2

Knowle
Pentecostal
12
Church

71
69

2

C

2

7
P.
.4
2B

69

L

MI

21

2

39

N
KE

Public Open Space or Highway
Verge- refer to detail landscape
proposals

38

N
KE

40

e

37

0
18

32
32
31
30

40

93

30

40

e

.10

.5P

3B

21

e
29

.10

.5P

29

3B

28
.8
.4P

2B

40
0

18

40
0

18

1

02

.1
.5P

3B

26

Tree Planting
- refer to detail landscape proposals

75

M

IL

21

8

33

N
KE

1

32

N
KE

31

26

122

40
18

40

0

0

3B
75

24

.8
.4P

2B

23

21

30

N
KE

52

P.5

21

2
&A

.2
1B

1
02

P.1

.5
3B

KE

N

24-25

L

MI

28

S

26

TE
Y
H

B.2

5
10

2B

C1

&
A1

.4P

&

.76
9

C2

22-23

ST

20

20-21

W

Electric Vehicle Charging Point

e

D

27

A1

1
A2

Plot Number/Parking Number

122

29

75

2B

52
P.5

M

IL

.8
.4P

20

22

.10

.5P

18

25

Existing Tree Retained
(with Root Protection Zone)

43

1m high timber post &
3 rail fence to top of
retaining wall

35
34

0
18

27

L

MI

Plot Soft Landscape
-refer to detail landscape proposals

4

36

N
KE

N
KE

40

st
bin

5

.87

.4P

2B

0
18

0

18

1

02

P.1

.5
3B

A
RO

7
1.8m Boundary Walling

11

Wall & Railings

Naturalistic landscape
and ecological zone
(slow worms)

1.8m Close Board Fence

Pedestrian
Access Gate
2
cycle store

NORTH
Shed

23

a
20

5 2.5 1

b
20

16

S
EP
H
C

W
TO

H. SLR landscaping added.
G. Steps shown to ecology area & RW now ties in with plot 18 parking bay.
F. Red Line and retaining wall amended as per the Planning Consultants
email received 13/07/21.
E. Footpath link added connecting site to Leinster Avenue
D. SRT annotation deleted from apartments adj Broadbury Rd.
C. Plots 20/21 re-positioned & rear parking court to plots 1-11 re-planned.

AD
O
R Amendments

5

Date

PLANNING

Job Title

13319/5000H
Date
08/19

PK. 05.07.21
MNR. 12.02.21
MNR. 18.10.19
By

Job No/Drawing No

Scale
1:500
@ A2

MNR. 20.07.21
MNR. 19.07.21
PK. 13.07.21

Broadbury Road Filwood

Drawn
MNR

Drawing Title

1

Broadbury Rd Filwood - Planning Layout
35

10

0

32

42

20m

Planning Layout

All Dimensions to be checked on site

OS Licience No:

pad Design Ltd - The Tobacco Factory - Raleigh Road - Bristol BS3 1TF - Tel. 0117 9530059 - www.pad-design.com

B R OA D B U RY R OA D, F I LW O O D
Page 129

H O U S E T Y P E PA C K

O C TO B E R 2019

Page 130

CONTENTS
HOUSE T YPES
Kensington - 3B.5P.1021................................ 2
Milsom - 2B.4P.875.......................................... 3

Page 131

A PA R T M E N T S
Apartment Block 1.......................................... 7
Apartment Block 2........................................11
Apartment Block 3........................................19
Apartment Block 4........................................23

STOR AGE
Bin Store.........................................................28
Cycle Store.....................................................29

Page 132

Page 133

HOUSE TYPES

1

2

Page 134

3

Page 135

Page 136

Page 137

A PA R T M E N T S

2

Page 138

7

Page 139

8

Page 140

9

Page 141

Page 142

11

Page 143

12

Page 144

13

Page 145

Page 146

15

Page 147

16

Page 148

17

Page 149

Page 150

19

Page 151

20

Page 152

21

Page 153

Page 154

23

Page 155

24

Page 156

25

Page 157

Page 158

Page 159

STORAGE

3

28

Page 160

29

Page 161

Page 162

Page 163

Agenda Item 8c
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
WARD:

Avonmouth & Lawrence Weston

SITE ADDRESS:

46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE

APPLICATION NO:

21/03337/F

ITEM NO. 3

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
30 September 2021
DEADLINE:
Change of use from currently vacant former bookmakers (Sui Generis) to a Hot Food Takeaway (Sui
Generis) together with new shopfront and roller shutters to the front elevation and wall mounted
extract and boiler flues, fresh air intake grill and condenser to the rear elevation.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

Tetra Tech
3 Sovereign Square
Sovereign Street
Leeds
LS1 4ER

APPLICANT:

Papa John's (GB) Ltd
11 Northfield Drive
Milton Keynes
MK15 0DQ

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

04/10/21 14:34

Page 164

Committee report

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE

SUMMARY
The application relates to a change of use of a unit with the Ridingleaze local centre, in Lawrence
Weston, from a bookmakers to a hot food takeaway. This has resulted in a high number of objections
from local residents, including the Lawrence Weston neighbourhood forum, on the basis of the
overconcentration of takeaways in the area, and subsequently the impact on the vitality and viability of
the local centre, amenity and health.
However, having considered the application, officers are of the view that Ridingleaze centre provides
for a range of uses, has limited history of vacancies, and that the impacts on amenity and potential
anti-social behaviour can be managed. Importantly, it is noted that even if the planning permission
were to be granted the number of takeaways in the centre would still be below the benchmark set out
in the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan. As such, officers are satisfied that the
proposal will not result in a harmful overconcentration.
As such, the application is being reported to committee as officers do not consider that a refusal of the
application can be justified, and are recommending approval of the proposals.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The application relates to a commercial unit within the Ridingleaze local centre, in Lawrence Weston.
The centre was constructed in the 1960s, and is made up of a linear row of three storey buildings. All
of the units retain commercial units on the ground floor, with many of the units having residential use
above. The application relates to the ground floor of the building, which is currently vacant, but was
most recently used as a bookmakers. The other commercial units are generally occupied by a mix of
town centre uses, including a co-op general grocery store, and there is also a Lidl supermarket
immediately to the north of the designated centre.
The current local plan designates the site as being within the Ridingleaze local centre, as well as
Primary Shopping Area. There are no heritage designations at or near the site.
RELEVANT HISTORY
It appears that this group of buildings was originally permitted in 1966, with the use of the unit as a
bookmakers permitted in 1967.
There are no other applications that relate to the ground floor use of the building, although there is a
concurrent application for advertisement consent at the property.
APPLICATION DETAILS
The application is for full planning permission to change the use of the property from a bookmakers
(sui generis use) to a hot food takeaway (sui generis use). This would provide 83.4 square metres of
floorspace in the proposed use. It is proposed that the new unit would operate from 10am to 11pm on
Sunday to Thursdays, and 10am to midnight on Fridays and Saturdays.
Also proposed are alterations to the shopfront, to include a new roller shutter to be hidden behind the
fascia sign. To the rear it is proposed to add wall mounted boiler and extract flues, fresh air intake grill
and condenser.
PRE APPLICATION COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
No indication of pre-application community involvement has been submitted with the application.
Given the scale and nature of the proposal this is not a validation requirement.

Page 165

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
The application was advertised by a site notice erected close to the site, and by writing to 10
neighbouring properties. As a result, 31 objections were received raising the following issues:
Principle of Development (see key issue A)
• There is already an oversupply of hot food takeaways (particularly pizza takeaways) in the
area, and there is a need for more retail instead;
• The proposal for a national chain will displace locally run businesses (Officer comment: The
planning system does not seek to control whether commercial units are independent or
national chains, and therefore an application cannot be resisted on this basis).
• The proposal could impact on the health of young children - particularly children at the nearby
secondary school;
• The proposal is contrary to the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan;
• The proposal is contrary to the Bristol One City Strategy - specifically policies related to access
to healthy, locally grown produce (Officer comment: The planning system cannot control the
produce sold in any retail outlet);
• The proposals would be contrary to emerging Local Plan policies relating to the provision of a
balance of uses within local centres.
Impact on Amenity (see key issue B)
• The proposal would add to noise in the area;
• The proposal would add to anti-social behaviour and littering;
• The proposed hours of use run later than is common in the area;
• The location of the extract/air conditioning will impact on the quality of the adjacent amenity
space.
Other comments
• No attempt has been made to consult with the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Forum or the
director of the Port Communities Resilience Fund (Officer comment: there is no statutory duty
for the applicant to consult with these groups given the nature of the application. In addition
comments have been received by the neighbourhood forum in relation to the application. The
Port Communities Resilience Fund was a project set up to work with the port communities to
identify and deliver a set of Capital projects, and has no remit to comment on planning
applications).
An objection has also been received from Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Forum, raising the
following comments:
We believe our view on the current Application is well founded. - This application is against both spirit
& detail of the Neighbourhood Development Plan, (NDP), itself written in accordance with the existing
Core Strategy, and to be reflected in the developing Local Plan. - If implemented, the proposal in this
application will significantly increase the existing over supply of takeaway food outlets in the local, and
nearby neighbourhoods.
We feel this application is not in conformity with our Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development
Plan or the Bristol Core Strategy:
NDP Policy JSB3 states:
"..........proposals for changes of use to fast-food take-away outlets will be resisted......"
NDP Justification JSB3 states:
"Policy BCS7 recognises the role of Ridingleaze as a district centre in a network of 3 centres within
Avonmouth and Kingsweston. The policy also recognises the need for a diverse retail offer.

Page 166

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE

As fast food takeaway outlets account for over 20% of current retail units in Ridingleaze, this
neighbourhood plan policy limits further changes of use to Use Class A5 (of The Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as amended). Further takeaways may result in harm to the
vitality, viability and retail function of the centre if the existing proportion of shops is not maintained."
Policy DM10 states
"......This policy aims to ensure that the individual or cumulative impacts of food and drink uses do not
harm the character and user's experience of a centre, cause nuisance to residents living in the vicinity
of food and drink uses or have specific impacts on health considerations. Development of food and
drink uses will be acceptable provided that they would not harm the character of the area, residential
amenity and/or public safety, either individually or cumulatively.
Proposals which would result in a harmful concentration of food and drink uses will not be permitted.
.............
Takeaways in close proximity to schools and youth facilities will not be permitted where they would be
likely to influence behaviour harmful to health or the promotion of healthy lifestyles."
We can confirm that there are factual errors/omissions with in the applicants planning statement,
those being:
1. The applicant claims there are 5 vacant units with in the centre, this is incorrect, as of 04/08/21
there is only 1 vacant unit, that being the one subject to this application. This retail centre continues to
see historic high levels of occupancy, with rapid re-lets, and high demand.
There are 19 units in total with 11 of these offering foods, and of these 11, 5 units being Takeaways,
those being
I. Smiler's Café and takeaway
II. Pecking Chef, Cantonese takeaway
III. New Horizons takeaway, offering Pizza delivery
IV. Greggs takeaway, offering Pizza delivery
V. Simply Fish, Takeaway
2. The applicant also states that the Bristol Gateway School is located within 400 meters of the site,
however the applicant fails to mention the following:
* Our Lady of the Rosemary Primary School, being 321 meters from the site.
* Lawrence Weston Army Cadets Force, being 319 meters from the site.
* Lawrence Weston out of School Services (4-12 year olds) being, under 50 meters from the site.
* Bristol City Councils, Young people and Families centre, under 50 meters from the site.
* St Bedes Secondary School, 350 meters from the site
Lawrence Weston already suffers from high levels of obesity in children and young people with the
Public Health National Child Measurement programme citing 34% of 10/11 year olds, and 25% of 4/5
year olds living in Lawrence Weston measuring as obese, both higher than the Bristol average, that
being 10/11 years at 20% and 4/5 years at 9.9%. Lawrence Weston has a much higher proportion
than the city average of children, young people and families as stated in the Lawrence Weston NDP
Therefore, we feel an additional fast food takeaway outlet in such close proximity to schools and youth
facilities is contrary to planning policies, and would result in a concentration of fast-food takeaways
harmful to health., and contrary to policy DM10, and NDP JSB 3
We also believe that, yet another takeaway would result in harm to the vitality, viability and diversity to
the retail function of the centre.

Page 167

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
The impact of this proposed change of use would cause an increase in noise as a result of Motorcycle
deliveries, air pollution from added traffic, and smells from the kitchens extractor fans and flues,
especially to the many, above shops, vulnerable family housing tenants, who have little choice over
where they live, due to the current housing crisis and their financial circumstances.
The fact that the applicants also intend to operate up to 12 o'clock midnight would also negatively
affect those and other surrounding tenants and their children's sleeping patterns. With all other
takeaways closing at 10pm this is already a problem that would be made far worse. All of which would
cause added nuisance to residents in the vicinity.
We also believe that this proposed change of use will have a negative effect on the local economy.
With 4 of the 5 current takeaways being independently owned and ran by local family business's,
employing local people, has a positive effect on the local economy and helps keep incomes and
profits generated, in the local area.
Trying to compete with a multinational company, following the pandemic crisis for small businesses
could cause devastating damage on these already under pressure family ran businesses, and the
local circular economy.
The residents of Lawrence Weston, as seen through the making of our NDP, are pro development,
but only when developments improve the, viability, vitality, diversity and health and wellbeing of our
residents, to ensure we help to create a well-balanced sustainable community.
Therefore, we, the Lawrence Weston planning forum implore the planning department to refuse this
application.

OTHER COMMENTS
Transport Development Management has commented as follows:No objections.
Pollution Control has commented as follows:I do have concerns regarding odour from the extraction system and noise from the premises and shall
deal with each of these in turn.
Odour
A low level outlet to the kitchen extract is proposed. Whilst I would prefer to see a higher level
terminus for the extraction system, to allow for better dispersal of cooking odours I appreciate that in
the circumstances here a low level discharge at the rear of the ground floor is likely to be the most
appropriate. A carbon filtration system is proposed and I would just need to ensure, by condition, that
this system is properly maintained to prevent odour nuisance.
Noise
Whilst some information has been provided regarding noise levels for the kitchen ventilation system
and condenser unit no information has been given regarding the sound insulation between the
proposed take away premises and the flats above and only a limited amount of information has been
provided in the Noise Management Plan with regards to noise from pizza delivery vehicles. I would
therefore need to see further details regarding noise, ideally as part of the application.
As such, if the application is recommended for approval conditions should be added to cover the

Page 168

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
following:
* The requirement for a noise assessment;
* The requirement for an odour management plan;
* Noise from plant and equipment to be maintained at 5dB below background noise levels;
* Deliveries and refuse collection to take place between 0800 and 2000;
* Opening times as per the application.
Crime Reduction Unit has commented as follows:Analysis of crime figures show that there are significant issues within the vicinity of the application
site, with the Police actively dealing with two problem solving plans for business in the area.
It is noted that the applicant intends to install roller shutters, but there is little information on how crime
or anti-social behaviour will be addressed.
Whilst it is recognised that the nature of the use would not encourage theft and anti-social behaviour
experienced by other units, it may result in loitering outside and nuisance behaviour impacting on
other businesses and residents. Therefore, the developer should consider the following measures to
mitigate the impact:
* Anti-graffiti coating to be used on the roller shutter;
* A surveillance camera to be position to the front of the unit.

RELEVANT POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the Hengrove and
Whitchurch Park Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019.
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.

KEY ISSUES
(A) IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN LAND USE TERMS?
As stated above, the application site is located in a designated local centre, and is allocated as a
Primary Shopping Area. It also is in an area covered by the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood
Development Plan. As a result there are a number of planning policies that need to be considered in
relation to the change of use of this unit. For clarity, the Use Class Order has been amended since the
adoption of the Local Plan, and as such the Local Plan polices refer to the old use class order.
Specifically, this application relates to a takeaway, which was previously considered to be an A5 use,
but is now considered a sui generis use, which means that planning permission is required for change
of use from or to a takeaway, no matter what the development is changing from or to.
In general, planning policies aim to maintain the vitality and viability of local centres and, as part of
this, maintaining the diversity of uses. In particular, policy BCS7 of the Cores Strategy states that
retail uses should predominate, and policy DM8 of the Development Management Policies states that

Page 169

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
the loss of A1 (retail uses – now covered by use class E(a)) will not normally be permitted. However,
in this case the site has a long established use as a bookmakers (which again is regarded as a sui
generis use). As such, the existing building is not in use in retail, and furthermore does not benefit
from permitted development rights to be used for retail purposes. As such, the proposal would not
result in any potential loss of retail from the local centre, and would not be in conflict with these
requirements as set out in BCS7 or DM8.
As such, the more relevant policies in this case are policies DM9 and DM10.
DM9 states:
Within Local Centres shown on the Policies Map development will be expected:
i. To generate a reasonable level of footfall and be of general public interest or service; and
ii. To maintain an appropriate balance of uses in the Local Centre; and
iii. To help maintain or enhance the function of the centre and its ability to meet day-to-day shopping
needs; and
iv. Not to harmfully dominate or fragment the centre’s retail frontages; and
v. To be compatible with a shopping area in that it includes a shopfront with a display function and
would be immediately accessible to the public from the street.
Development in Local Centre frontages will be expected to maintain or provide active ground floor
uses. Proposals which would result in the reduction of retail floorspace, including storage or servicing
space, will be expected to demonstrate that they will not be detrimental to the continued viability of the
retail unit.
DM10 relates specifically to food and drink uses, and states the following:
Development of food and drink uses will be acceptable provided that they would not harm the
character of the area, residential amenity and/or public safety, either individually or cumulatively.
Proposals which would result in a harmful concentration of food and drink uses will not be permitted.
In order to assess the impact of food and drink proposals on an area the following matters will be
taken into account:
i. The number, distribution and proximity of other food and drink uses, including those with
unimplemented planning permission; and
ii. The impacts of noise and general disturbance, fumes, smells, litter and late night activity, including
those impacts arising from the use of external areas; and
iii. The availability of public transport, parking and servicing;
iv. Highway safety; and
v. The availability of refuse storage and disposal facilities; and
vi. The appearance of any associated extensions, flues and installations.
Takeaways in close proximity to schools and youth facilities will not be permitted where they would be
likely to influence behaviour harmful to health or the promotion of healthy lifestyles.
Firstly, it should be noted that planning policies direct this type of use into local centres. The unit
would have a large picture window and active frontage, and would encourage footfall. It is noted that it
is likely to encourage more footfall outside of ‘9 to 5’ shopping hours, but as part of a balanced local
centre this can encourage activity over a longer period, and can contribute positively to the local
centre. The centre is also well served by public transport, and the mix of uses in the area would
contribute to linked trips, reducing the need for individual car journeys.
In general, it is considered that the local centre is well served by the mix of uses you would expect to
serve the local community, including a supermarket and other convenience stores, as well as a mix of

Page 170

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
other retail uses, and a cafe. It is noted that the applicant claims in support of the application that
there is a relatively high vacancy rate in the local centre. This is not supported by recent site visits,
which suggests that the application site is the only vacant unit. This suggests that the centre
continues to be healthy in attracting business, although clearly the filling of any vacancy would be
beneficial to the centre. Whilst there are notable shortcomings in the offer which have been raised by
local residents (butchers/greengrocers etc), the site is not currently in retail use and the Local
Planning Authority have no power to direct shops to occupy this location.
However, policy JSB3 of the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan relates specifically
to the Ridingleaze Local Centre and states as follows:
Proposals for development which would create improvements to the Ridingleaze district centre will be
supported provided that the development would reinforce or contribute to the character and retailing
vitality of the centre… In this area, proposals for changes of use to fast-food take-away outlets will be
resisted.
As justification for this policy it states that there is a concern that further takeaways would impact on
the vitality and viability of the local centre, given that over 20% of the commercial units are in
takeaway use. Elsewhere in the Neighbourhood Plan it describes the Local Centre as including 20
units, 5 of which are in use as takeaways, resulting in 25% takeaway use. For clarity, the Lidl
Supermarket is not part of the allocated centre, despite the fact that it is by far the largest floorspace
of any unit in the area, given that it was been constructed after the publication of the Local Plan.
However, officers have recently visited the centre, and it is not considered that analysis in the
Neighbourhood Plan is up to date. The Neighbourhood Plan includes details of the uses in the local
centre, showing five units as takeaways, and it is also noted that the comments from the Lawrence
Weston forum also identifies five units (although not the same units). There would appear that there
are three units where there is some level of disagreement as follows:
* Smilers Café is identified as a takeaway by the Neighbourhood Forum, but not in the Neighbourhood
Plan where it is categorised as a café (under A3 – now class E(b)). Whilst the unit may offer a
takeaway service, it appears that the primary use remains as a café.
* 56 Ridingleaze is listed as a takeaway in the Neighbourhood Development Plan, but is currently
used as retail. It appears that the unit was briefly used as a takeaway, but appears to have reverted to
retail use in the late 2010s. There is no current permitted development right to allow the conversion
bake to a takeaway without planning permission.
* Greggs (42 Ridingleaze) is also listed as a hot food takeaway in the Neighbourhood Development
Plan. Whilst it is acknowledged that Greggs does offer a takeaway service, it appears to be primarily a
retail unit (use class E(a)), and case law would support the fact that lawful use of that unit would be
use class E. In addition, there is no evidence of any planning permission being granted to use this unit
as a takeaway, and the lawful use remains as retail.
As such, officers are of the view that there are three units which are currently in lawful takeaway use.
These are a fish and chip shop, Chinese takeaway and Kebab shop. The proposed unit would result
in four takeaways in the local centre, which are relatively well spread across the centre, with larger
‘anchor’ retail units at either end. As such, even if planning permission were granted there would still
be less takeaways than identified in the Neighbourhood Development Plan, 20% of the 20 units
identified in the Neighbourhood Development Plan in takeaway use, and no evidence to suggest that
the proposal would impact on the viability or vitality of the local centre.
It is noted that policy DM10, as well as addressing the issue of concentration, also covers impact on
amenity and healthy eating. Amenity issues are dealt with in key issue B below, but in respect of
healthy eating the following issues are considered to be material:
The policy requirement relates directly to schools and youth facilities, and states that takeaways will

Page 171

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
not be permitted ‘where they would be likely to influence behaviour harmful to health or the promotion
of health lifestyles’. It is noted that the consultation responses have drawn attention to a number of
youth facilities within walking distance of the site, including two schools, a playground and a young
person’s services building.
However, the site is located within an area where there are already a range of uses, offering a mix of
healthy and unhealthy choices. The actual offer in any specific unit is outside of the control of the
Local Planning Authority. It is arguable that a pizza takeaway, as proposed here, would not
necessarily be targeted at school children, being relatively expensive and mainly focused on
deliveries. In order to be found to be contrary to the policy it has to be demonstrable that the proposal
would ‘influence behaviour’, and given the wide range of options available to anybody in the local
centre officers do not consider that there is any evidence to support this case.
It is noted that in the public comments it has been stated that the proposal would be contrary to the
emerging local plan. However, in the 2019 review of the Local Plan, the policies listed above are
highlighted for retention, and as such remain the material policies for the determination of this
application.
Consequently, whilst the concerns about the proliferation of takeaways are acknowledged, in turns of
occupancy and range of facilities Ridingleaze appears to be a vibrant local centre, without a current
overconcentration of a single use. Indeed, even if permission were allowed the actual number of
takeaways would be below the benchmark set out in the Neighbourhood Development Plan. Equally,
given the range of retail offer there is nothing to suggest that permitting this use would result in an
unhealthy impact on eating behaviour. As such, there is not in principle objection to the change of
use.
(B)

WOULD THE PROPOSAL UNACCEPTABLY AFFECT THE AMENITY OF THE AREA?

As stated above, policy DM10 requires consideration of the impacts of food and drink uses on local
amenities, including any impacts that result from the concentration of uses. In addition, policy BCS21
of the Core Strategy, as well as requiring development to be of a high quality design, also requires
new development to safeguard the amenities of existing development.
The Ridingleaze local centre includes a mix of uses, which includes residential uses on the upper
floors. There are also residential uses in the surrounding streets, although to the rear of the unit they
are separated from the application site by a car park. As discussed above, officers are satisfied that
there is no overconcentration of takeaways, but the individual management of the unit can impact on
amenity.
•

Noise and cooking odours

The application is supported by details of the extraction equipment and noise management plan,
which has been reviewed by the Council’s Pollution Control Officers. The extraction equipment will
discharge into a small yard to the rear of the site, which is proposed to contain the bin store for the
development. Usually, it is recommended that any fumes are discharged at high level, however this is
not possible in this case as there is no access to the higher levels of the building.
It is noted that objections have been received on the basis that the location of the extraction
equipment would impact on the outdoor amenity space for the flats. It appears that the flats do not
have any access to ground level outdoor amenity, and therefore there would be no direct impacts
from the location of the flue. However, they do benefit from an extended deck at first floor level, which
appears to provide for a degree of communal amenity amongst the flats. The area is relatively large,
which means that there area with the highest amenity value is not directly adjacent to the flue. The
Pollution Control Officer has confirmed that he is satisfied that the carbon filtration system proposed is
appropriate for the use proposed, and is satisfied that it will protect amenity subject to being properly

Page 172

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
maintained. This can be secured through condition.
With regard to noise, whilst some information has been provided, it is noted that the Pollution Control
Officer has requested additional information, including current levels of sound insulation between the
restaurant and flats above, noise levels from plant and equipment and management of Pizza Delivery
vehicles. Some additional information has been provided which is currently being considered by the
Pollution Control team. However, notwithstanding this it is considered that the additional information
could be secured by condition if necessary. Members will be updated on this information at the
meeting, along with any additional conditions required if there are still outstanding issues.
•

Hours of Use

The applicant proposes for the use to be open from 10am to 11 pm on Sundays to Thursdays, and
10am to midnight on Fridays and Saturdays. It is noted that objectors to the development have made
reference to other takeaways in the area closing at 10pm, and therefore the extended hours of use of
this unit would impact on residential amenity.
Historically, when the local centre was originally developed, there appears to have been no control
over the hours of use. Therefore, it is only those units that have undergone a relatively recent change
of use that are subject to controls through conditions. This includes the following:
* 68 Ridingleaze (Kebab shop) – closes 23:30 Monday to Saturday and 22:30 on Sunday;
* 72 Ridingleaze (Smilers Café) – closes 5pm.
In addition, a number of units are also restricted by licence – this includes the following:
* 32 Ridingleaze (Costcutter) – closes 23:00.
* 50 Ridingleaze (Shop) – closes 22:00.
* 58 Ridingleaze (Shop) – closes 20:00.
* 60 Ridingleaze (Shop) – closes 22:00.
* 66 Ridingleaze (Peking Chef – Chinese takeaway) – closes midnight.
* 78-84 Ridingleaze (Co-op) – closes 23:00.
As can be seen, there a mix of closing times across the centre. However, this proposal would not
extend beyond the latest current opening times. As such, there is likely to be activity at the centre
anyway during the proposed opening timeas, and therefore the proposed opening hours are not
considered to justify an objection to the proposal.
•

Anti-Social Behaviour

It is noted that the Police Crime Reduction Unit have commented on the relatively high level of antisocial behaviour, and raised concerns about potential for groups of people to gather in the street to
the front of the site. To mitigate this they have suggested the provision of CCTV, as well anti-graffiti
coating on the proposed shutter. The applicant has confirmed the intention to include these measures,
and these can be secured by condition.
Therefore, subject to relevant conditions it is not considered that the proposal would be harmful to the
neighbourhood amenity.
(C)
WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HARM THE CHARACTER OR
APPEARANCE OF THIS AREA?
Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy promotes high quality design, requiring development to contribute
positively to an area's character, promote accessibility and permeability, promote legibility, clearly
define public and private space, deliver a safe, healthy and attractive environment and public realm,
deliver public art, safeguard the amenity of existing development and future occupiers, promote
diversity through the delivery of mixed developments and create buildings and spaces that are

Page 173

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
adaptable to change. The adopted development management policies reinforce this requirement, with
particular reference to shopfronts in policy DM29, requiring them to ‘have regard to the host building
and the wider street scene’.
The proposal involves the provision of a new shopfront to replace the existing. This would include
similar proportions and materials as the existing shop front, including large picture windows. It is noted
that this also includes a solid roller shutter, which the Local Planning Authority would normally advise
against, given the visual impact and the resulting blank frontage when the units are closed. However,
in this case it would be replacing an existing roller shutter, and is also noted that roller shutters are
common in the area. It is also noted that the Police have identified high levels of anti-social behaviour
in the area, and it is likely that a mechanism to defend the unit will be required.
Therefore, it is considered that the changes to the shopfront are consistent with the character of the
area. It is noted that there is a separate application for advert consent, but notwithstanding this it is
not considered that the proposal would be harmful.
(D)
WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS
TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT ISSUES?
Development Plan policies are designed to promote schemes that reflect the list of transport user
priorities outlined in the Joint Local Transport Plan, which includes pedestrian as the highest priority
and private cars as the lowest (BCS10). In addition, policy DM23 requires development to provide
safe and adequate access to new developments.
Given the location within a local centre the area is a focus for public transport, and multi-visit trips, and
as such is considered an appropriate location for a use such as this. The applicant states that it is
proposed to make three deliveries per week, and delivery vehicles will be on site for a limited time. In
addition, the refuse and recycling will be stored to the rear of the site, with good access to the
highway. As such the Council’s Transport Development Management Officer has confirmed that there
is no objection to the proposal on highway safety grounds.
(E)
WILL THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT MAKE AN ADEQUATE CONTRIBUTION TO
THE SUSTIANABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE GOALS OF ADOPTED PLANNING POLICIES?
Policies BCS13, BCS14 and BCS15 of the adopted Core Strategy give guidance on sustainability
standards to be achieved in any development, and what measures to be included to ensure that
development meets the climate change goals of the development plan. Applicants are expected to
demonstrate that a development would meet those standards by means of a sustainability statement.
However, in the supporting guidance to these policies it states that changes of use which result in no
additional floorspace are exempt from the requirement to submit a sustainability statement, as is the
case here. As such, there is no objection to the application on this basis.
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
It is noted that specific concerns have been raised in this case about high numbers of children in the
area, and high degrees of childhood obesity. However, it has been found that there is no evidence to
suggest that the proposal would disproportionately impact on these groups, given the range of other
facilities in the area. Overall, it is considered that the approval of this application would not have any
significant adverse impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010.

Page 174

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
CONCLUSION
The application relates to the provision of a new takeaway use within the Ridingleaze local centre. It is
noted that there is considerable public concern about the proliferation of takeaways in the local centre,
and the impact that this has on amenity, the vitality and viability of the local centre, and health and
well-being. However, officers consider that the centre has a healthy mix of uses, with low vacancy
rates. Indeed, even if permission is granted the number of takeaways in the centre would be less than
the benchmark set in the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan. In addition, subject to
appropriate conditions it is not considered that the proposal would be harmful to amenity, highway
safety or the character of the area. Therefore, the application is recommended for approval.
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a new
dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of buildings in
lawful use, are exempt from CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no
CIL is payable.
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Further details before relevant element started
Detailed drawings at an appropriate scale, and operational details, of the following shall be
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant
part of work is begun. The detail thereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with that
approval prior to the occupation of the building, and shall thereafter be retained, unless
otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
a)
b)

Details of the roller shutter, including the housing within the fascia;
CCTV cameras.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character of the area, and to mitigate issues
related to anti-social behaviour.
Pre occupation condition(s)
3.

Odour Management Plan
No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until there has
been submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority, an Odour
Management Plan, setting out cleaning, maintenance and filter replacement policies. The plan
should include a written recording system to record and demonstrate when all such work is

Page 175

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
carried out. The approved odour management plan shall be complied with throughout the
duration of the use.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally.
4.

Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities – Shown on Approved
Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the refuse
store and area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved
plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans.
Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be
stored within this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within
the building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be
stored or placed for collection on the adopted highway (including the footway), except on the
day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises; protect the general
environment; prevent any obstruction to pedestrian movement and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.

Post occupation management
5.

Restriction of noise from plant and equipment
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall
be at least 5 dB below the background level as determined by BS4142: 2014 Methods for
rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally.

6.

Hours open to customers
No customers shall remain on the premises outside the hours of 10:00 to 23:00 Sunday to
Thursday and 10:00 to midnight on Fridays and Saturdays.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

7.

Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables and the tipping of empty bottles
into external receptacles shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to Saturday
and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

8.

Deliveries to the premises
Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

Page 176

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 13 October 2021
Application No. 21/03337/F : 46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE

List of approved plans
9.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
20190-01 Location and block plan., received 5 July 2021
20190-02 Existing ground floor plan., received 5 July 2021
20190-03 A Existing elevations., received 5 July 2021
20190-10 REV A Proposed plans., received 5 July 2021
20190-11 REV B Proposed elevations., received 23 September 2021
Supporting information - Proposed Extraction System and Plant, received 5 July 2021
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Page 177

Supporting Documents
3.

46 Ridingleaze

1. Location & block plan
2. Proposed plan
3. Proposed elevations

Page 178

E

DI
NG

LE
A

ZE

RI
DI
NG
LE

AZ

62

G
LE
AZ
E

RI

50

RI

DI
N

4
48 6

50

Car Park

36
34

32

AZ
E

4

Ri
di

Ho
us

DI
NG
LE

ng
lea
ze

El Sub Sta

e

8

4
48 6

Serial number: 207694
C

10

0

20

30

40

50

METRES

RI

Crown copyright and database right 2021
Ordnance Survey licence 100048957
Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited
without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey

LOCATION PLAN
1:1250@A3

36

Page 179

34

32
REV

AMENDMENT

DATE

CHKD

CLIENT

-

PROJECT

46-48 RIDINGLEAZE
BRISTOL
BS11 0QE

BLOCK PLAN
1:200@A3

El Sub Sta

DRAWING TITLE

LOCATION & BLOCK PLAN

SCALE

0

2

4

6

SCALE BAR ( METRES )

8

10

1:1250@A3
1:200@A3

DRAWN BY

MAS

CHECKED

-

DATE

MAR'21

TO BE PRINTED ON A3 AT 100% OR NO SCALING
DRAWING NUMBER

REVISION

20190-01

-

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN 1:50@A3

CUSTOMER AREA

140 sq.ft.

BACK OF HOUSE

753 sq.ft.
893 sq.ft.

TOTAL

ELEC

EXTERNAL
STAIRCASE TO
FIRST FLOOR

FRESH AIR INTAKE

CUSTOMER AREA
13 sq.m.

GREASE
TRAP

Page 180

CONDENSER
UNIT

INTERNAL SIGN

WC

REAR
YARD

EXTRACT FLUE

BREAKFAST BAR

W

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR
83.4sq.m / 893sq.ft.

NOTE
DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
AND SUPERSEDED BY SCHEDULE OF WORK
DOCUMENT AND SIGNAGE PACKAGE.
CONSERVATION OF FUEL AND POWER
ALL HEATING, COOLING, MECHANICAL VENTILATION
AND LIGHTING TO BE DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH APPROVED DOCUMENT L2B2010.
MAIN CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE STATEMENT OF
SUBMISSIONS TO BUILDING INSPECTOR TO
DEMONSTRATE COMPLIANCE.

CH - SUSPENDED CEILING HEIGHT
SH - STRUCTURAL / SOFFIT HEIGHT
BH - BEAM HEIGHT

A

DRAWING REVISED

12.3.21

MAS

REV

AMENDMENT

DATE

CHKD

CLIENT

-

PROJECT

46-48 RIDINGLEAZE
BRISTOL
BS11 0QE
DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED PLAN

0

1

2

3

4

5
SCALE

1:50@A3

DRAWN BY

MAS

CHECKED

-

DATE

MAR'21

TO BE PRINTED ON A3 AT 100% OR NO SCALING

SCALE BAR ( METRES )

DRAWING NUMBER

20190-10

REVISION

A

ELEVATIONS 1:100@A3

0

1

2

3

4

5

SCALE BAR ( METRES )

NOTE MEMORIAL
MURAL ON WALL
TO BE RETAINED

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
NORTH EAST

Page 181
EXTRACT
FLUE

FRESH AIR
INTAKE GRILLE

SIGNAGE
B
A

ROLLER SHUTTER
CONCEALED BEHIND
SIGNAGE

CONCEALED ROLLER SHUTTER HOUSING

BOILER
FLUE

DRAWING REVISED
DRAWING REVISED

REV

21.9.21
01.7.21

AMENDMENT

MAS
MAS

DATE

CHKD

CONDENSER
UNIT

EXTERNAL
STAIRCASE TO
FIRST FLOOR

CLIENT

-

PROJECT

NEW ALUMINIUM SHOPFRONT
WITH STALL RISER PANEL
DECORATED RAL9005

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
NORTH WEST

46-48 RIDINGLEAZE
BRISTOL
BS11 0QE

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
SOUTH EAST
NOTE
SEE SIGNAGE CONTRACTORS DRAWINGS
FOR SIGNAGE DETAILS

DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

SCALE

1:100@A3

DRAWN BY

MAS

CHECKED

-

DATE

MAR'21

TO BE PRINTED ON A3 AT 100% OR NO SCALING
DRAWING NUMBER

20190-11

REVISION

B

